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T h €00000,0000.875per centNotesdue4 November 2029 t WNetesfi) ar e t o IcddeeSantés ts isaueld bdgade Bant® )
on4 Novembe2019( t Hssue Dat® ) .

Interest on the Notes will accrue at the rat®d &75per centper annumfrom, and including, the Issue Date and will be payable in Euro

annually in arrear o4 Novembeiin each year, commencing dnfNovember 2020 as furt her descr iPlogectudn t his pr
Payments of principal and interest on the Notes béllmade without deduction for or on account of taxes of the Republic of France (See
ATerms and CondiiTtaixoantsi oonfo )t.he Notes

Unless previously purchased and cancelled in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Notes, the Notesesithdzt atdheir

principal amount o November 202%the fiMaturity Date ¢). The Notes may, and in certain circumstances shall, be redeemed, in whole but

not in part, at their principal amount together with accrued interest in the event that certaintFeencle s ar e i mposed ( See
Conditions of the NotetsRe dempt i on and Purchaseo) .

I f a Put Event occurs further to a Change of Cont r olhagveteeamitn Not ehol
to require the Issuer t@deem or procure the purchase of, all or part of the Notes held by such Noteholder at their principal amount together

with interest accrued al/l as defined and i Raemptiodand RughasiRedemptia bed i n 0
at the option of Noteholders following a Change of Control o.

The Issuer may, at its option (i) from and includhdwugust 20290 but excluding the Maturity Date, redeem the Notes outstanding on any

such date, in whole or in part, at their principaloamn t plus accrued interest, in accordance w
Conditions of the Notes PreMat uri ty Cal l Optiono, (ii) redeem the Notes, in whol
defined in ATermsheamMdt@smdi taito msn yo ft i mthe fiost day of thenPrdtaturityeCalltPeriodt (asme , prio
defined in ATerms and iCondctoobpdanoé WlhlehNbluespDOV|S|on|sMaIseet out i
Whole Redemptin by the | ssuero and (iii) redeem the Notes, in myhole but

time prior to heir Maturity Date, if 75per cent. of the Notes have been redeemed or purchased and cancelled, in accordathee wit
provisions set out in fATEeamusp aCmad | COpdiitoinddns of the Notes

This Prospectusconstitutes a prospectus for the purposeArtitle 6 of Regulation (EU) 2017/1126f the European Parliament and of the
Council of 14 June 2017 onefprospectus to be published when securities are offered to the public or admitted to trading on a regulated
market as amendedr supersede(l t HPeospéctusRegulationd )This Prospectus has been approved by the FrAotbrité des marchés
financiers(the "’AMF ¢) in France in its capacity as competent authority pursuant to the Prospectus Regulation. The AMF only approves this
Prospectus as meeting the standards of completeness, comprehensibility and consistency imposed by the ProspectuSirReguptioral

should not be considered as an endorsement of the Issuer or the quality of the Notes that are the subject of this IRvespectishould

make their own assessment as to the suitability of investing in the Matelication has been made admit theNotesto trading on the
regul at ed mar ke tEuranéxt Parisd )dtre RaotesshaP leadmisted fofirading on Euronext Paris with effect from the Issue
Date. Euronext Paris is a regulated market for the purposes of Dir2@fi¥é65/UEof the European Parliament and of the Council on markets

in financial instrumentsas amended, appearing on the list of regulated markets issued by the European Securities and Markets Authority (each
a Régulated Marketo .)

This Prospectus wilbe valid until the date of admission of thietesto trading on Euronext Parexpected to be othe Issue DateThe
obligation to supplement the Prospectus in the event of significant new factors, material mistakes or material inadgtturatcigsply when
the Prospectus is no longer valid.

The Noteswill on the Issue Date be inscribeidqcription en complein the books of Euroclear France which shall credit the accounts of the
Account Hol ders (as def i ne dNotesinForf,Jdenommmationaandi t Ce 0 d ihteir@en ) ofi nthedi ng |
S. A. / BHurodleard6()i and the depositary baCdarsttamd) Cl earstream Banking S. A. (

The Noteswi | | be issued in dematerialised beaNaeswilfabail times be reprdsenteddire nomi nat
book entry form@ématérialis¢ i n t he books of the Account Hol dNetessFormaenondnatboi ned i n 7
andti t 1 ed herein) in coMmhdiRa2iit e theAFrenchCodé monétaire éranciér.No thyisital document of title

(including certificats représentatifpursuant to Article R. 217 of the FrencitCode monétaire et financiewill be issued inrespect of the
Notes

The longterm debt of the Issuer has been rd&@&B+ (stable outlookpy S&P Global Rating€Europe Limited| $&P06 ) . Ndidshave been

assigned a rating &BB+ by S&P. S&Pis established in the European Union, registered under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009, as amended

( t hCRA Regulationo ) and included in the [|ist of r eEpropedaneSecaridies and éMdrkets r at i ng
Authority on its website (itps://www.esma.europa.eu/supervision/crediing-agencies/risk) in accordance with the CRA Regulation. A

security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to revision, suspensiomail efthdyatime by

theassigning rating agency.

Prospective investors should have regard to the factors described under tBectionfiRisk Factor® i n t hi sUnRssoteepmse t u s .
stated, references in this [ade Sgnté@rtouussp o0t oa rteh er efif Gerroeunpcoeossotilabedot hteh el sfis u
subsidiaries.Copies of this Prospectus will be published on the websitef the Issuer fttps://www.icade.fr/finance/icadesante and of
the AMF (www.amf-france.org).

Joint Lead Managers
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This Prospectusonstitutes a prospectus for the purposes of Artiélef the Prospectufkegulation

This Prospectus does not constitute an offer of, or an invitation by or on behalf of, the Issuer ofaim Lead

Managers( as defined in ASubscription and Sal bldies Bhel ow) t
distribution of this Prospectus and the offering of tHéotesin certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law.

Persons into whose possessithis Prospectus comes are required by the Issuer andJihiat Lead Managerso

inform themselves about and to observe any such restrictions.

Potential purchasers and sellers of thdotesshould be aware that they may be required to pay taxes or other
documentary charges or duties in accordance with the laws and practices of the country wheMotkeare

transferred or other jurisdictions (including as a result of change in law). Potahinhvestors are advised to ask

for their own tax adviserds advice on their individua
redemption of theNotes

The Notes have been rat&8BB+ by S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited i S & Flieyaing assigned bys&P

to the Notes and/or the Issuer may not reflect the potential impact of all risks related to structure, market,
additional factors discussed above, and other factors that may affect the value of the Notes. A rating is not a
recommendatia to buy, sell or hold securities and may be revised, suspended or withdra8@&Byat any time.

A revision, suspension or withdrawal of a rating may adversely affect the market price of the Notes.

Each potential investor in the Notes must determine thetahility of that investment in light of its own
circumstances. In particular, each potential investor should:

0] have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the Notes, the merits
and risks of investing in the Notes and ghinformation contained in this Prospectus or any applicable
supplement;

(i) have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of its
particular financial situation, an investment in the Notes and the impact surchestment will have on its overall
investment portfolio;

(i) have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the Notes,
including where the currency for principal or interest payments is different from thbeot ent i al i nves
currency;

(iv) understand thoroughly the terms of the Notes and be familiar with the behaviour of any relevant
indices and financial markets; and

(v) be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) poss#inenarios for
economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear the applicable
risks.

For a description of further restrictions on offers and sales btesand the distribution of this Prospectus, see
SectonfiSubscri ption and Saled bel ow.

| MPORTABRHEA RETAI L | NMENGOTt@GRs®2 not intended to be offere:d
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of fering, osnanleinidn hhago(edirees ¢ roipbhuotudrd t ake i nto consbi der ati

target amaegsement ; however, a distributor subject to

t ar gett naasrskees s men't Not @l®ys p@idtolpeori nd her refi nGtmg gteh e

I
m:

mar kesessment) and determining appropriate distributi

No person is or has been authorised to give any information or to make any representations other than those
contained in this Prospectus ah if given or made, such information or representations must not be relied upon
as having been authorised by, or on behalf of, the Issuer oribmt Lead Managers

Neither the delivery of this Prospectus nor any sale made in connection herewith shalileru any
circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer or the Group,
since the date hereof or the date upon which this Prospectus has been most recently amended or supplemented
or that there has been no adrse change in the financial position of the Issuer since the date hereof or the date
upon which this Prospectus has been most recently amended or supplemented or that the information contained
in it or any other information supplied in connection with &iNotesis correct as of any time subsequent to the

date on which it is supplied or, if different, the date indicated in the document containing the same.

The Joint Lead Managershave not separately verified the information contained herein. To the fullestent
permitted by law, thdoint Lead Managersaccept no responsibility whatsoever for the information contained in
this Prospectus or any other information provided by the Isswerin connection with theNotesor their
distribution or for any other statement, made or purported to be made byJdiet Lead Managersor on their
behalf in connection with the Issuer or theffering and issue of the Notes The Joint Lead Managers
accordingly disclaim all and any liaitity whether arising in tort or contract or otherwise (save as referred to
above) which they might otherwise have in respect of this Prospectus or any such information or statement.

Neither this Prospectus nor any other information supplied in connectigith the Notesor their distribution is
intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation or should be considered as a recommendation by
the Issuer or thelJoint Lead Managerghat any recipient of this Prospectus or any other information slipd in
connection with theNotes or their distribution should purchase any of th&lotes None of theJoint Lead
Managersacts as a fiduciary to any investor or potential investor in tNetes Each investor contemplating
subscribing or purchasingNotesshould make its own independent investigation of the financial condition and
affairs, its own appraisal of the creditworthiness, of the Issuer or the Graun of the terms of the offering,

including the merits and risks involved. For further details, sectioni Ri sk Factorsod herein.

this Prospectus are not to be construed as legal, business or tax advice. Each prospective investor should
subscribe for or consult its own advisers as to legal, tax, financial, credit and related aspectsiofestment in

the Notes None of theJoint Lead Managersundertakes to review the financial condition or affairs of the Issuer

or the Group after the date of this Prospectus nor to advise any investor or potential investor Matesof any
information coming to the attention of any of th&oint Lead Managers
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RISK FACTORS

The Issuer considers that the risk factors described below are important to make an investment decision in the
Notesand/or may alter its ability to fulfil its obligationsnder theNotestowards investors. The risk factors may

relate to the Issueandthe Group.The risk factors that thissuerconsiders to be the ast important at the date of

this Prospectus are mentioned fingithin each of the risk categori@s this Prospectus.

The risks described below atlgose that the Issuer believes could have a material adverse effect on the Group, its
business, financial position, reputation, results or outlook, and that are material to an investment dé&tision
inability of the Issuer to pay interest, principal or other amounts on or in connection witNatagmay occur for

other reasons and the Issueradmot represent that the statements below regarding the risks of holdingciey

are exhaustive. Atitional risks and uncertainties not currently known to the Issuer oritlwatrrently believe to

be immaterial could also have a material impactitsibusiness operations or on an investment inNb&es

Prior to making an investment decision in tNetes prospective investors should consider carefully all the
information contained in this Prospectus, including the risk factors detailed below. In particular, prospective
investors, subscribers and holders Wbtes must make their own analysis and asseent of all the risks
associated to th&lotesand the risks related to the Issuds activities and financial position. They should also
consult their own financial or legal advisors as to the risks entailed by an investment Motieand the
suitakility of such an investment in light of their particular circumstances.

The Notesshould only be purchased by investors who are financial institutions or other professional ingestors
qualified investorsvho are able to assess the specific risks imphigdn investment in thdotes or who act on
the advice of financial institutions.

Terms defined in nTeélote®s baenldo wC osnhdailtli ohnasv eo ft hteh es a me me an

1. Risks factors relating to the Issuerand the Group

This sectionpresents the principal risks that could, on the date of Rnaspectusimpact the business, financial
position, reputation, results or the outlook of the Group, as identified primarily in the preparation lahthe
Groupd s r i s k(carograppié @sgisques)which assesses therateriality, that is,the expected magnitude
of their negative impact and thgirobability of occurrenceafter taking into account the risk management action
plans put in place

1.1 Risks related to the business sector of éhGroup

Risk related to trends in the healthcare and seniors housing industriesparticular macroeconomic and
competitive trends and changes in the demandrelatedservices

The Group invests exclusivelp France,in healthcare properties, and haganded recently its investments to
seniors housing properties, exposing it to the specific trends of these industries. Any adverse effects that result
from these trends could be more pronounced than if the Group diversified its investments outsidbaafrbeald

seniors housing properties. These trends include, among other things:

1 changes in the demand for, and methods of, delivering healthcare and seniors housing services: such
changes could affect the r evenudehedemandihservicks oupds
these tenants provide, which depends itself on more general trends affecting the healthcare and
seniors housing sectors. For instance, the ageing population and medical progress have led to an
increasing demand in healthcare and @enhousing servicesf those trends were to change or if
such demand were to decrease due, for instance, to alternative methods of medical treatment, such as
innovative treatments substituting to surgeoy, the growingdevelopment of home care and
ambuhbtory care, which has led to a decrease in the average length dhtapuld have a material
adverse effect on t hendGromuptolse tzdhaquasdy refvenhe
demand



T economic downturns coul demadnwnesédebysianéssestbe Gh
in the Groupbés tenantsdéd geographic region, whi ct
to pay rent and the value of its healthcare and seniors housing properties;

1 the competitive environment inwhc h t he Groupds tenants operate,
private and public hospitals and sRisksirdatedtohousi n
consolidation, increased competition and market changes faced by &nants

1 anincreased sciiny of billing practices by public authorities;

1 the risk that the current trend of externalizing property holding in the healthcare and seniors housing
sectors does not continue.

In addition, the property portfolio of the Group éxclusively locatedin France, making the Group more
economically vulnerable to specific maeoonomic trends in France, such as economic growth and inflation, or

the regulatory environment of healthcare and seniors
across different countries. In particulatecreasein househdd disposable income, or the pereption thered, in

timesof ecanomic dowrturn could leadto a reduction in individua | ledlhcare exprditure. This may resultin
patientspogponing certain types of medical treatnent and coud result in a drop in the volume of the Groupod:
business.

These factors may adversely affect the economic perfo
the Groupds |l ease revenues, which could have a mater.i
financial position and outlooéf the Group.

Risk related to regulation in the healthcare and seniors housing industriesgover ni ng in particul
tenantsé operations and the tariffs applied by the Gr

The activities o fhehedlthcar&and semodshousing maustirtes arei highlytregulated, whether
it concerns the operations themselves or the tariffs

The healthcare and seniors housing sectors are subject to a number ehtegglations governing in particular

medical care, public health, hygiene and safety, privacy, the environment and medical waste. Failure to comply
with such regulations by the Groupbs tenamrg(ecludirgul d r e
criminal sanctions) on the Groupdbs tenants or the | os:
affect their ability to make lease payment to the Group and could in turn have a material adverse effect on the

Gr o u p @ess, keaulss,ifinancial position and outlook.

In particular, he operation of private hospitalsin France,aswell asupgralesto existing cgpacity andinvesiment
in certain types of equipment (such as MRI macdhines), require administrative authorization from regional health
authorities @gencesrégionalesde santg, or AARSQ)). Theseauhorizationstypically have a term of sevenyears,
after which they must be renewel. For seniors housing facilitie€ HPAD), authorizations to operate are given by
ARS andlocal authoritiesgonseil départementafor a term of 15 year®keneval of authorizations carbe refused
if afacility fails to meetcertaincriteria, althoughhe refusal torenew an authorization canbe challengedin court.

The failure by the Groupébés tenants to obtain new aut
existing authorizations could reduce their revenue and hinder their ability to pay rents to the Group, which could in
turnhaveamateridd d ver se ef fect on the Groupb6s business, resul

There are also mandatory prices or pricing methodologies set and revised annually by the French authorities for all
or substantially all/l o f tenénts perierdlhecFeerich gothodtiesemiichmagy or t he Gr
a vastmajority of t h e Gr o u pséwmices thmughaSodiak Security, have in the past and may well continue

to institute padlicies designed to limit the growth or decreaskeealthcareexpenditureas a meansof containing

overall budgetdeficits. In particular, the French authorities implemented direct and indirect healthcare tariff
reductions amounting to declines of 1.2% in 2018 (source: French Ministry of Social Affairs and)HEadth

govemmert may reduce tariffs, fail to increasetariffs in line with expectatians or costs,or could make chagesto



medicalguidelines that lower the volume of procedurest h e  Gr o u pab Eerfotmeandthendegseeof carethe
Groupobs ravieche,nt whipch could have a materi al adverse ef
profitability andt he Gr oupds | ease revenues, which could have i
business, results, financial position and outlook.

Riskrelated to trends in the real estate industig particular the evolution of interestrates and the illiquidity of
real estate investments

Real estate investments are subject to various risks
particul ar:

f an increase in interestthat ene dtaardm,brinm mmigmtgi «cwls
current context where i nterceosutl dr adteecsr eaarsee atth eh idset
estate and, thus, ttheeprieaseof nrdalmansdt dbe r eal
di fficult for the Groupehood=Bbfsgcoislieiitnifie si tast haetatl rtah
prevent it from disposing of its facilities at a

T economic upturns could increase the value of ree
financing costs coul d increase demand for real

circumstances could makeéoi acmali ¢ ed indedw ibardad thhauus it
properties at attractive prices or prevent the G

T illiquidity of real estate invest@memths | i whi ¢l ¢ @

to mdeechanges in the pesftoi masfcabcoialkiitnigesss .heal t hc

I f the Group were to experience onel drhanwe ea ohatt édirei ali
on the business, resuliten amd ueutblfoalkseft st hd i Gmrowep al |

Risk related to reductions in reimbursement from thighrty payors (including French Assurance Maladend
private insurance payois

Sources of revenue for the Gr Assyadce MalagiéiBonidl Securitypfor c al | y i
the most part, as well as private insurance payors.

Economic diffic ulties in Francein recent years have resultedin the French government seeking to contain
expenditures onhealthcare. For instance, ecording to the Frencinstitute of Statistics and Economic Studies

( INSEEo0 ) whil e health care spending increased at a r at e
then slowed, to 3.2% in 2008 and to 1.5% in 2018hdlgh Social Security and relateghublic healthcare

programs financedapproximately 90%of the sperding in the Fiench hapital market in 2018, and such financing

has been relatively stable in the past decade (soDRESS/ Les dépenses de santé en 20165 dépenses de

santé en 2018 patientsare directly or indirectly regponsble for the remainder ofthat cost (generally covered

through privatesupplementary healtimsurance which implies the payment of premiums by patigntéie portion

oft he Gt e un psirdicésyaidfor by patientsmay increasef Social Searity reducesreimbursement levels

for certain treaments or if private supplementary healtinsurers reduce coverage or increase premiums.

Congquently, individual decisbns to reduceout-of-pocket healhcareexperditures or the risk for patients to pay

higher premiumgo private supplementary health insurance when an expenditure is not reimbursed by Social
Security, may resultin reduced demand for non-life savng treaments. This may resultin patients pogponing

certain typesof medicaltreatmentandcoud result in adropinthevolumeof t he Gr o uusiress. Morenant 6s
generally, any reductions in payments or reimbursements frompaityg payors could adversely affect the
reimbursement rates received by®e oup6s tenants and therefore affect tI
material adverse effect on the Groupbés business, resul



1.2 Ri sks related to the Groupbds operations
Risk related to the failure, inability ounwillingness by tenants to pay rent

The Group generates its revenue from the rents paid by its tenants, which are themselves members of groups
operating healthcare facilities (such as Elsan or Ramsay Santé, respectively the first and second oplmtors of t
Groupbs facilities in terms of gross rental i ncome) a
December 2018, no tenant of the Group represented more than 10% of its consolidated gross rental income.
Al t hough t he Gaure toptdtenantsisediatively limiteg given the broad range of its portfolio of
tenants, any failure, inability or unwillingness by a significant number of tenants, to pay rent, due to notably
financial difficulties they may encounter, could have aamat adverse effect on business, results, value of assets,
financi al position and outlook of the Gr(manjyElsashor addit
Ramsay Santés e e p ar a g Riskprdélateth to comosntrdtion, increasedimpetition and market changes

faced by tenanés generally provide a guarantee to the Group for the payment of rents by each individual tenant of
facility which are part of their respective groups, any financial difficulties that such operators may encoutat

impede their ability to perform their obligations of guarantors if and when the guarantee is called, which could
have a material adverse effect on business, results, value of assets, financial position and outlook of the Group.

Risk related to indequacy to markeand reconversionof facilities

As a longterm investor, the Group is exposed to the risk of obsolescence, significantly increasiigk thie
having to adapt or reconvert facilities, at significant co€mrtain facilities may not adeately respond to the

needs of tenants due to changes in technologies, habi
Group may be required to spend substantial amounts to adapt the facilities to such needs. In addition, if the Group,
orany of its tenants, terminate the | eases for the Gro

to operate these facilities, the Group may not be able to locate suitable replacement tenants to lease the facilities for
their speciaked uses. Any loss of revenues or additional capital expenditures occurring as a result could have a
material adverse effect on the Groupds business, finar

Risk related to the evolution of rent levels particular uponrenewalof an existing lease

Rental income of the Group stems from ldegn lease commitments which are reviewed annually, based
primarily on upward or downward changes in indexes including in particular combinations of thef-cost
construction index (IC), the commercial rent index (ILC), the consumer prices index (IPC) or an index based on
seniors housing tariffs (for seniors housing facilities). Upon expiry of an existing lease (generally after 12 years),

the Issuer is subject to the risk of a downwagedjotiation of the rent by the tenant, depending notably on the
tenantds profitability and the possibilities of moder
does not renew the lease, which exposes the Group to facilities vanraheypcertainties (depending in particular

on macroeconomic conditions (especially economic activity and employment)) as to the timibettiigeand the

rent level it will be able to negotiate whenletting the vacating space to a new tenant. Theelexpiry schedule

of the Group is shown i n Dpsariptorgofthedssuérl lof2 t B ls. Pofostpee t e

Any decrease in the Groupds rent |l evels or if the Gro
have amatei a | adverse effect on the Groupbds business, resu

Risk related taconcentration increased competition and market changes faced by tenants

Competition could Iimit the Gr expapdtiseir hugness artd coalth haveiat y t o
materi al adverse effect on their revenue, which coul
business, results, financial position and outlook.

Reforms in the French health sector have led operat@titba major process of consolidation in the healthcare
industry (such as the merger between MédiPdle Sud Santé andPdégnaires in 2014, to create MédiPdle
Partenaires; the merger between Vedici and Vitalia in 2015, to create Elsan; the acquisitigai®dle
Partenaires by Elsan in 2017; and the acquisition of Capio by Ramsay Séet&mu o2018)in order to become

more efficient. The seniors housing sector has also experienced a consolidation process, with notably the merger of



Korian and Medica in 2014 and the acquisition of Residalya by Domus Vi in Z8&95roup has developed leng

term partnerships with some of these operators, sudbraxamplethe framework agreement signed with the

Korian group in 2017For the financialyear ended 31 December 2018, EJf@amsay Santénd Capio (whicthas

been acquired by Ramsay Santé in the end of 20ffg)esented 58.5%9.3% and 8.8%o0 f the Groupbd
consolidated gross rental income respectively. Juthe nomenon of Gergratipnfceuldtinereasent s ¢ o
pricing pressure or | ead to the Groupds dependence on
effect on the Groupbés business, results, financial po:
The Gr oup6s séenoms houdinghdustry fade leaenpetition from a wide range of public and private

entities offering different types of care services for the elderly such as home cartsrioncare nursing homes,

assisted living facilities, physical therapy and rehabilitation clinidsis Tdiversity of the offering enables

residents, patients or their families to choose the most appropriate solution based on their situation, which may
turn not to be the services offered by theoff@edbyupds t e
their competitors. This could affect occupancy rates

The Groupbs tenant s fdcexcompetition fdan patehtsfrone atherdosgitaisoh the regions
wheretheyoperate. T h e Gr o u p dompetitos m ¢his indugtrynclude public hospitals that have the aility

to financecapital expenditures withallocations from the French govemment or with public subsidies, which may

not beavailabletot h e Gr o u phosgitalst Peivatefortpofl healthcare providers account for about 50% of

the surgical procedures in France, 25% of the overall hospital stays and about 25% of the nursing homes beds.
The French government has taken measures to increasentipetitiveness of public hospitals in response to the

need to limit public spending on health care, including measures to increase the numbers of patients public

hospitals can accommodatEh e Gr oupdés tenant s adlsocompdiesgaitstdasge dgrivetie ar e i n.
hospital groups that may havegreaterfinancialand other resurcesthan t he Gr o o puéhermdreetheant s d
Groupds tenants in the healthcare industry face compe

nearbyhospitals and other healthcare facilities, including urgent care and primary care facilities as well as home
healthcare companies. tlie expansion or maintenance of existing hospitals (whether public or private) ipaces

the demandfor care in theregionsin whicht h e Gr o u pgeste, theseegiomgemay becane saturted. An
oversupply of hospitalscoud reault in decreasedolumes,reducedoperatingmargins andlower profitability.

Risk related to acquisitions of real estatexternal growth beinpone of t he pill ars of the
strategy

For the financial years ended 31 December 2018 and
increased respectively by 026.1 million a.6uoilliodRas5 mi | |

been generated through the acquisition of existing fai
strategy. In April 2019, the Group acquired 12 medium and-teng care assets from an OPCI| managed by Swiss

Life and in ily 2018, the Group acquired 14 nursing homes from Residalya. The Group intends to continue to rely

on external growth through acquisitions to support its future development and the growth of its revenue and results.

|l cade, t maorityssharelngdd@rpublished arobjective to proceed with investments for an amount of
approxi mately 01 i B0>022pkriodfon theoFveactactivitiesof it ldltBcare property division
(correspondingttheper i met er of t Re Groupbs activities)

The Groupmay be subject to risks in connection with the acquisition of real estate, including:

1 exposure to any undisclosed or unknown potential liabilities relating to the acquired facilities or
entities;

1 underperformance of the acquired facilities due to varfao®rs, including unfavorable terms and
conditions of the existing lease agreements relating to the facilities, disruption caused by the
management of the Groupds tenants or changes 1in

1 See 2018 full year results presentation of Ic@delated 18 February 2019, page 20.



1 the Group may not be able to proceed with tbguésitions of facilities scheduled in its investment
program;

1 the Group may have no previous business experience with the tenants at the facilities acquired, and
may face difficulties in working with them;

T diversion of the Gr oawapfmmotterbasmessoentdrn®;s attenti on
1 potential underinsured losses on the acquired facilities.

In general, the expected benefits of future or completed acquisitions may not materialize within the expected
timeframe and at the expected levels, which coulktea material adverse effect on the business, financial
position, value of assets, results and outlook of the Group.

Risk related to health and safety hazards and compliance with environmental laws

As a gener al rul e, the rGrmaiprotsenaemaentworak e irre stploer sGrbad L
making the appropriate improvements to the building in order to comply with the health and safety standards
applicable to their operations and would be held responsible in case of breach aireania laws due to their
operations (for instance, a Groupds tenant would be r
its operations). However, as a property owner, the Group has to ensure that the building materials used for the
construction of its facilities comply with environmental and health regulations (for instance regulations relating to
hazardous materials), in particular in a context where the properties it owns receive sick or injured people, for
healthcare facilities, aependent elderly persons, for seniors housing.

Failure to comply with these regulations, or the need to comply with significant new regulations that may be
introduced in these domains could lead to higher capital expenditures, the closing of adadktay in the

devel opment of the Groupbs activities, or fines, whi
business, financial position, results and outlddku r t her mor e, any failure by any of
with health and afety standardsn particular in respect of the treatment of sick or injured people, for healthcare
facilities, or dependent elderly persons, for seniors housiag, even if no liability would directly be attributable

to the Group, be subjecttomedmecer age, which could affect the Groupbs
I n addition, each of the Groupodés facility is potenti al
disasters such as fires, floods, hurricanes and earthquakes (or otheic aweats), which could result in the
destruction of all or part of the Groupdés facilities,
costs and constraints related to repairs, or the potential legal proceedings brought lagy@mnetup by potential
victims for damages, could have a materi al adverse ef
outlook.

Risk related to ethics and compliance

The Group is required to make significant legal and finarmmahmitments as part of its property development
activities (acquiring land, launching projects) and its property investment activities (acquigitipagjcular when
such acquisitions are made from individudsinching new property developments fardétvn account, disposals).

As part of the Icad&&r oup és et hics policy, t he Gr oup-tepnugtosth busi ne
strategy and applies the main principles of the Codgldts applicable to all Icade @ip employees.

Particular #ention is paid to the fight against money laundering and financing of terrorism when entering into real
estate transactions (property development and investments or disposals) as well as lease agreements.

However, in the normal course of business, theu may face risks related to failure to comply with ethical and
compliance standards or breaches of-amhey laundering regulations. The Group cannot guarantee that its
employees, suppliers, subcontractors or other business partners will complyensthidhrequirements to which it

is subject or with the regulations in force. If the Group were unable to enforce its compliance policies and
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procedures, it could be subject to civil and criminal penalties, including large fines. The occurrence oéstgch ev
could have a material adverse effect on its reputation, business, financial position, results and outlook.

1.3 Other risks related to the Issuer

Risk related to the relationships with Icaden relation to theservices and financing agreements entered into
between the Issuer and Icade

The | ssuerdés operations and strategy are subject to t
of its share capital and voting rights, which is able to egersignificant influence over decisions submitted for the
approval of shareholders at ordinary and extraordinary general meetings, including those concerning the election of

the President (currently I cade) ngnd ot merigegiser @Gdh antgreast
share capitalandbly aws and certain other major transactions, wh
Notes.

I n addition, the | ssuer rel i es Icade Grbupda)dresevarahl decessars s ub s
support functions, in particular for legal and IT services and has entered into services agreements with Icade,
entrusting asset management, property management andoffiaek functions and services to Icade (see

par agr Matehia céntrac® o f  Descriptiomafithefissuer of t hi s Prospectus). I n
Group has made available to the Issuer some of its managers and employees to perform their functions for the
| ssuerds Group. I n addition, the | ssueradacbmpaniegtr t|l y r

instance, the Group has entered into several agreements with Icade Promotion, the property development division
of the Icade Group, under whicltade Promotion is in charge of property development or of the project
management of variouwonstructionworkon t he | c ade ;$e feds@addy therlssyeraa I¢adedos

the services described above amedrit o 013 . 3 mil |l i on for t h(see pamgraph>X nded
fiMaterial contract® o f sDegripiion of thélssued o f t hi sandRates $024.410.2.52and

10.2.50f the audited financial statements of the Issuer for the years ended 31 December 2018, 2017 and 2016
included in this Prospectudg-urthermore, for the purposes of financing the developiits portfolio, the Issuer

has also entered into several intragroup loan agreements and a cash advance agreement with Icade.

1)

The dependency of the Issuer on the Icade Group resulting from these agreements give rise to a number of risks,
including thefollowing:

- the expiration or termination of one or more of t
generate potential disruptions related to difficulties in obtaining substitute services, if it is not able to
perform these functions imeally, or could require it to incur costs for replacement (potentially more
expensive) service providers or to create these services internally;

- the renegotiation of financial terms when these ag
Grouw;

- the services provided by the Icade Group are performed by its own employees, who do not work
exclusively for the | ssuerds Group.

The occurrence of any of these risks could have a me
position, reslis and outlook.

Market risks (indebtedass, liquidity, interest rates)

As part of its strategy, the Group relies largely on debt to finance its growth. As at 30 June 2019, the gross financial
l'iabilities of the Group amolulnt5e0d6 .t70 mi1,l 4 55:. 7c omirlelsipoon
granted by banks and u571.1 million are granted by 1Ic¢c
on its borrowingsor to refinance or repay its borrowings according to the agreed tedrsaditions, will depend

on its future operating performance and could be affected by numerous factors (economic conditions, debt market
conditions, regulatory changes etc.), some of which are beyond its control. The Group also makes significant
investmet s as part of its 3IHdmialtleiggn ahi ath ZAmolumned2® D9 Gan
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December 2018, which are financed through cash gener ¢
lines. In the event of insufficient liquidity to service its debt or finance its investments, the Group could be required

to reduce or postpone agsitions, investments or renovations of assets, dispose of its assets, refinance its debt or

seek additional financing, which could have a material adverse effect on its business or financial position.

In addition, the documentation of the abewentionel corporate loans contains financial covenants the Group

must comply with, in particular a LTV (Loaho-Value) ratio and an ICR (Interest Coverage Ratio), as further
described in not®5.2.2.1 of the financial statements of the Is$methe sixmonth peiod ended 30 June 2019 and

6.2.2.1 of the audited financial statements of the Issuer for the years ended 31 December 2018, 2017 and 2016
included in this Prospectuéll these covenants wemmmplied withas of 30 June 2019 and 31 December 2018
2017and @16 The requirement to comply with these covenants
operations and limit its ability to react to market conditions or to seize business opportunities that may arise. In
addition, in the event of necompliance with any such covenants that is not remedied or waived, the lenders may
exercise their securit y(see notedl.lelsdthesaudibed inancidl steaemedhts ofuhp 6 s a's
Issuer for the years ended 31 December 2018, 2017 and 20ddeithdn this Prospectdsr a description of these

security interests)terminate their commitment and/or require that all outstanding amounts become immediately
due. The occurrence of any such event s cimess| fihandeh ve a
position, results and outlook.

The Groupbs significant debt also exposes it to risks
charges paid by the Issuer on its variaialie borrowings rising significantlyexcluding debt associated with
equity interests and bank overdrafts, variable rate d

June 2019 (56%, 49% and 41% respectively as of 31 December 2018, 2017 and 2016), with a hedging ratio of 69%
(84%, 78% and 75% respectively as of 31 December 2018, 2017 and R0d€t)of the debt§9% as of 30 June

2019 and84%, 78% and75% respectively as of 31 December 2018, 2017 and 2016) was protected against an
increase in interest rates (fixed rate debt or Wéeiaate debt hedged by interest rate swahs)of 30 June 2019,

the hedged debt was 88%, including hedges starting in 20X$etailed analysis of the notional amounts of
hedging instruments is shown i n t heatedfinaneid statements foe Gr o u
thesikmont h period ended 30 June 2019 and in the notes t
years ended 31 December 2018, Fida@clal/statanmedts o2 thell&yer far the s e t 0
sixmonth period ended 30 June 2019 a Autlitedifinancial statements of the Issuer for the years ended 31
December 2018, 2017 and 2@id this Prospectus, respectively.

Risk related to the SIIC tax regime and to taxation

Sinmoere than 95% of the sharaeSId&pc(t @invsefsd i s emsatied mr
Cot)@aed ©OPCHani smes de Pl acementt h@olllsesateirf alnmdma ktisl ieelri
opted folSoth@tn&ssle@e(s t I mmo)lh ialxi ere gConte®gg ovi ded for in
French Gener al Tax Code and, as a result, i s exempt

sing easi sgbof certain realinpsrogpredtoeresdi ondeaeredd ai e
sidiaries that are also subject to the SII C regi me.

T Qo

benefits of the SI1C regime are subjiecd!| udi rcg mpil )
igation to distnriobfutteeaplsadgingif i Ca®B% @obrprofits froc
i tal gai ns, and 100% of dividends from subsidiarie
ome and distributable profitesr) )orangr o(uipi )o ft hsh acroenhdo
ividually or acting in concert, may hold 60% or mot

-/ T 0o -4 u —
5SS QTS C o
o 0T — 0

=}
—
>
(¢

event of a failure to comply with thecolllidgat i c
its benefits under the regi me, which would resul
rate income tax wunder standard conditions for tt
red thdaoaddheback axabl e income, for the fiscal y e
i butable profits existing as of the close of t h
ts previously exemprteeqdui rhodr etoov epagy theryt avionu | dp ebcei
of an exit from the SIIC regime within 10 years
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Substanti al modi fications to the SIIC ofaxtheghatee aiptpsd i

regi me and more generally any changes in tax & egisla
business, financi al position, results and outl ook.

2. Risk management and control

The Issuer relies on the risk management and control procechpiesnented at the level of the IcaGeoup for
managing the risks it i s s u bRjsks dactorst relating modthe dssuer amditiee d i n
Groupd above. Ri sk management all ows executi vileedcadeo i den
Groupbs staff, assets, environment, objectives or rep!

particular through an internal control framework.

This framework is intended to ensure: compliance with laws and regulations; compliance with the directions and
guidelines defined by the management of the Icarip; the proper functioning ofthe lcaGe oupds (i ncl ud
the | ssuer 6s) the relaklity ofafihancialrirdocratiors. &enerally speaking, it contributes to the
management of its activities, the effectiveness of its operations, and the efficient use of its resources.

The risk management frame&Gwodph busvaeres s alalct o¥ i tsihees | (cian
activities) and is implemented under the responsibildi

charge of the different busi ness di vi si osmst nfenftf,i can dF
Property Devel opment) and support functions (Finance,
addition, t he Audi t Ri s k, Compliance and I nternal

i mpl ementation amamenooi k orumdgenfthedeadt hority of the (
3. Risksfactors relating to the Notes

3.1 Risks for the Noteholders as creditors of the Issuer

3.1.1 Credit Risk

As contemplated in Condition 2 of the Terms and Conditions of the Notes, thatmvlgyof the Issuer in respect

of the Notes and any interest payable under the Notes constitute direct, unconditional, unsubordinated and
unsecured obligtions of the Issuer.Meholdersre exposed to the credit risk of the Issuer. Credit risk refengto

risk that the Issuer may be unable to meet its financial obligations unddptée If the creditworthiness of the

Issuer deteriorateand notwithstanding Conditio of the Terms and Conditions of tiNoteswhich enable the
investors to request thugh the Representative of thassethe redemption of thélotes it may not be able to

fulfil all or part of its payment obligations unddre Notes, which could materially and negatively impact the
Noteholdersaandinvestors may lose all or part of their investment.

3.1.2 French insolvency law

Under French i nsolvency i awuedd| dgr sa dfredebt apenpanit
automatically grouped intofiAzssimbinllyearads sendlelfyendf thel d
i nt eirresdtasse of the opening in pran®acurod da sagwwd garad e C
accelerated fi pamciRalurpr deesvaatvieglardre 4 i pppnce®Pd et acd®
sauvegaordea judici al peoc@®anuireatdieomeproecéesdtmeat 6pudici a
The Assembly comprises holders of all debt secnwrities
wi || not be convteme@on i falcecrmA fsaemlel ywidel i berates on t

(projet de pllan tdlkee spuopagsae d eacpered jeertatdeed psladre gdi, r da Ypu e
accelerated finpnoijalt deaf opdaandeplsan a@g ®If @ad®fgiami sati o
pl omr o(j et de pl @dn ade |riecdarbel ses etmo ittdlglresstter and may

T increase the liabilitiescharge$ of holders of debt securities (including tNeteholdes) by rescheduling due
paymets and/or partially or totally writing off receivables in form of debt securities;

T establish an unequal treatment between holders of debt securities (includiidptiteoldes) if the
differences in situation so justif@and/or
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T decide to convert delsecurities into securities that give or may give right to share capital.

Decisions of the Assembly will liaken by a twethird majority (calculated as a proportion of the amount of debt
securities held by the holders who voted during such Assembly;thetamnding any clause to the contrary and the
law governing the issuance agreement). No quorum is required for the Assembly to be validly held.

Stipulations relating to the representation of holders oNibtes provided in Condition ®ill not be applicable if
they depart from any imperative provisions of French insolvency law that may be applicable.

The procedures, as described above or as they may be amended, could have an adverse impact on holders of the
Notesseeking repayment ithe event that the Issuer or its subsidiaries wetgeteubject to French insolvency
proceedings

The insolvency procedure in France is regulated by the provisions of the Bedehde commercas amended
by ordinance n°201326 dated 1March2014 and liese provisions govern the common rights, intsresid
representation of the Ndtelders in this context. As a resultpteholders should be aware that they will generally
have limited ability to influence the outcomeasf accelerated preservatigrdcédure de sauvegarde accéléyge
an accelerated financial preservatigmocédure de sauvegarde financiére accéliréepreservationpfocédure
de sauvegardeor a judicial reorganisation procedunerqcédure de redressement judicidiref the Issuer in
France, especially given the current capital structure of the Issuer.

It should be noted that new Europearirectivee nt i t | e d (EW) R019/1®23n ipreventive restructuring
frameworks, on discharge of debt and disqualifications, and on measunesetase the efficiency of procedures
concerning restructuring, insolvency and discharge of debt, aednacthi ng Di r ect i vhas béeb U) 201
adopted by the European Union on 20 June 2019. Once transposed into French lavs(sdtieduled thappen

by 17 July 2021 at the latest), such directive should have a material impact on French insolvency law, especially
with regard to the process of adoption of restructuring plans under insolvency proceedings. According to this
directive, fi a f dreditons, andludipgathie tNotehslders) (shall ke treated in separate classes which
reflect certain class formation criteria for the purpose of adopting a restructuring plan. Classes shall be formed in
such a way that each class comprises claims or itgemash rights that are sufficiently similar to justify
considering the members of the class a homogenous group with commonality of interest. As a minimum, secured
and unsecured claims shall be treated in separate classes for the purpose of adoptingtwimgsplan. A
restructuring plan shall be deemed to be adopted by affected parties, provided that a majority in the amount of
their claims or interests is obtained in each and every class (the required majorities shall be laid down by Member
States ahot higher than 75% in the amount of claims or interests in each itlasfng noted that Member States

may require that in addition a majority in number of affected parties be obtained in eaghfdlassestructuring

plan is not approved by eachdaevery class of affected parties, the plan may however be confirmed by a judicial

or administrative authority by applying a cradass crardown, providechotablythat:

- the plan has been notified to all known creditors likely to be affected by it;

- the phn complies with the best interest of creditors test (i.e., no dissenting creditor would be worse off
under the restructuring plan than they would be in the event of liquidation, whether piecemeal or sale as a
going concern);

- any new financing is necessaty implement the restructuring plan and does not unfairly prejudice the
interest of creditors;

- the plan has been approved by a majority of the voting classes of affected parties, provided that at least one
of those classes is a secured creditors classsanior to the ordinary unsecured creditors class; or, failing
that, by at least one of the voting classes of affected parties or where so provided under national law,
impaired parties, other than an eqtlitgiders class or any other class which, upealaation of the debtor
as a goingconcern, would not receive any payment or keep any interest, or, where so provided under
national law, which could be reasonably presumed not to receive any payment or keep any interest, if the
normal ranking of liquidatin priorities were applied under national law;

- the plan complies with the relative priority rule (i.e. dissentimging classes of affected creditors are
treated at least as favourably as any other class of the same rank and more favourably thaonrany juni
class). By way of derogation, Member States may instead provide that the plan shall comply with the
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absolute priority rule (i.e., a dissentingting class of creditors must be satisfied in full before a more
junior class may receive any distributionkaep any interest under the restructuring plan); and

- no class of affected parties can, under the restructuring, plan receive or keep more than the full amount of
its claims or interests.

Therefore, when such directive is transposed into French laanitot be excluded th#te Noteholders will no

longer deliberate on the proposed restructuring plan in a separate assembly, meaning that they will no longer
benefit from a specific veto power on this plan. Instead, as any other affected parties, thédbistetit be

grouped into one or several classes (with potentially other types of creditors) and their dissenting vote may
possibly be overridden by a cresdlass cram down.

The commencement of insolvency proceedings agdmsissuemwould have a material adverse effect on the
market value of Notes issued the IssuerAny decisions taken by the Assembly or a class of creditor, as the case
may be, couldmaterially andnegatively impact the Noteholders and cause them to lose allrbwofp#heir
investment, should they not be able to recover amounts due to them frizsutbe

3.2 Risks relating to the trading markets of the Notes
3.2.1 Market value of the Notes

The market value of the Notes will be influenced by the creditworthiness of ther Eesd a number of additional
factors, including, but not limited to, market interest and yield rates and the time remaining to the maturity date.

The value of the Notes depends on a number of interrelated factors, including economic, financial iaat polit
events in France or elsewhdgeich as, in particular, the possible exit of the United Kingdom from the European
Uni on without adre a4 g rBaireloing facjo(s fafi€cting capital markets generally and the
stock exchanges on which tiNotes are tradedlhe marketvalue of the Notes may also be significantly and
adversely affected by a variety of factors that may impadistheer its competitors, macroeconomic conditions or

the healthcare property investment sectdihese factors maynclude, among others, market reaatito
announcements made by the Groupsd competitors or ot he
concerning thehealthcare property investmeneéctor, including announcements relating to the financial and
operating performance or outlook of those conaiT he price at which a holder of Notes will be able to sell the
Notes prior to maturity may be at a discount, which could be substantial, from the issue price or the purchase price
paid by such purchasdfor example, any negative change in an applicable credit rating could negatively affect the
trading price for th&otes

3.2.2 The secondary marketfor the Notes

The Notes constitute the first issue of straight bonds by the Issuer on the rAafietation hasbeen made to
Euronext Paris for the Notes to be admitted to trading on Euronext Paris. Howeestablished trading market

in the Notes may never develop or if a secondary market does develop, it may be illiquid. Although this
Prospectus will bapprowed bythe AMF as théNotesare expected to be admitted to trading on Euronext Baris
from the Issue Datehere is no assurance that such filings will be accepted, thilotieswill be so admitted or

that an active market will develoff.an active trading market for the Notes does not develop or is not maintained,
the market or trading price and liquidity of the Notes may be adversely affected.

The development or continued liquidity of any secondary market foNtheswill be affected by a number of

factors such as general economic conditions, the financial condition, the creditworthiness of the Issuer and/or the
Group, the outstanding amount of tRetes any redemption features of thimtes as specified in Conditiondd

the Terms and Conditions difie Notesand the level, direction and volatility of interest rates generally. Such
factors also willnegativelyaffect the market value of thidotes

The yield of theNotesas at the Issue Date 68939 per centper annum However,investors may not be able to

sell theirNotesin the secondary market (in which case the market or trading price and liquidity may be adversely
affected) or may not be able to sell theivtesat prices that will provide them with a yield comparable toilsir
investments that have a developed secondary makaice, the investors may receive a lower yield than
anticipated at the time of the issue.
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3.2.3 Interest rate risks

The Notesbear interest on their outstanding principal amount from time to time aatth@f0.875per centper
annum payable annually in arrear oh Novemberin eachyear and commencing o# November 2020in
accordance with Condition #nhvestment in théotesinvolves the risk that subsequent changes in market interest
rates may adwsely affect the valuand the yieldof the Notes and Noteholders may receive lower return on the
Notes than anticipated at the time of the issue

While the nominal interest rate of a fixed interest raiteis fixed during the life of such mote(as isthe case for

the Notes)or during a certain period of time, the current interest rate on the capital market (market interest rate)
typically changes on a daily basis. As the market interest rate changes, the price nbtewdtanges in the
opposite diretion. If the market interest rate increases, the price of satdtypically falls, until the yield of such

noteis approximately equal to the market interest rate. If the market interest rate decreases, the price of a fixed rate
notetypically increasesyntil the yield of suchnoteis approximately equal to the market interest rdtsteholdes

should be aware that movements of the market interest rate can adversely affect the pridetettral can lead

to losses for théloteholdes if they sellNotesduring the period in which the market interest rate exceeds the fixed

rate of theNotes

3.3 Risks relating to the structure of theNotes
3.3.1 The Notesmay be redeemedy the Issuerprior to maturity

In the event that the Issuer would be obliged to pay iaddit amounts payable in respect of any Notes due to any
withholding as provided in Condition 5(b) of the Terms and Conditions of the Notes, the Issuer may, and in certain
circumstances shall, redeem all outstanding Notes in accordance with such Condition.

In addition, the Issuer may, at its option (i) from and includirgugust 20290 but excluding the Maturity Date,

redeem the Notes outstanding on any such date, in whole or in part, at their principal amount plus accrued interest,
as provided in Conditin 5(f) of the Terms and Conditions of the Notes and (ii) redeem, in whole or in part, the
then outstanding Notes at any time priortitie first day of the Pr®aturity Call Period at the relevant make

whole redemption amount, as provided in Conditiat) Bf the Terms and Conditions of the Notes.

Furthermore, if seventfive (75) per cent. or more in initial aggregate nominal amount of the Notes (including any
notes assimilated to the Notes issued pursuant to Condition 12 of the Terms and ConditienslaiEs$) have

been redeemed or purchased and cancelled, the Issuer will have the option to redeem all of the outstanding Notes
at their principal amount plus accrued interest as provided in Condition 5(e) of the Terms and Conditions of the
Notes. In partiular, there is no obligation for the Issuer to inform investors if and when this percentage has been
reached or is about to be reached, and the | ssueros
prior to the serving of a notice in respeaf the exercise of this option, the Notes may have been trading
significantly above par, thus potentially resulting in a loss of capital invested.

The Issuer may choose to redeem the Notes in accordance with Conditions 5(d) and 5(f) of the Terms and
Condtions of the Notes at times when prevailing interest rates may be relatively low. During a period when the
Issuer may elect, or has elected, to redeem Notes, such Notes may feature a market value not substantially above
the price at which they can be redeed. As a consequence, the yields received upon redemption may be lower
than expected. Furthermore, an investor may not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds in a comparable
security at an effective interest rate as high as that of the relevarst Note

In addition, a partial redemption of the Notes pursuant to Conditions 5(d) and 5(f) of the Terms and Conditions of
the Notes may also adversely affect liquidity for the remaining outstanding Notes depending on the number of
Notes in respect of which sl partial redemption is exercised.

3.3.2 Modification of the Terms and Conditions of theNotes

Condition 9 of the Terms ando@ditions of the Notes contaprovisions for calling meetings of Noteholders, to
consider matters affecting their interests generally. These provisions permit defined majorities to bind all
Noteholders including Noteholders who did not attend and vote at the relevant meeting araldRiteliho

voted in a manner contrary to the majority and Noteholders who did not respond to, or rejected, the relevant
Written Resolution. General Meetings may deliberate on proposals relating to the modificatioT efmiseand
Conditions of the Notesubject to the limitation provided by French laifva decision is adopted by a majority of
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Noteholders and such modifications were to impair or limit the rights of the Noteholders, this maynemative
impact on the market value of the Notes and hémaestors may lose part of their investment.

3.3.3 Exercise of put option in respect of certainNotesfollowing a change of control of the Issuemay
affect theliquidity of the Notesin respect of which such put option is not exercised

Upon the occurrence of Rut Event further to a Change of Control of the Issuer (as more fully described in
Condition 5(c) of the Terms and Conditions of the Notes), each Noteholder will have the right to request the Issuer
to redeem or, at t he | shaseefrada pad pfitd Notes at theo pripcipal enwouné  t h e
together with any accrued interest. In such case, any trading market in respect of those Notes in respect of which
such redemption right is not exercised may become illigtherefore, investorsiithe Notes not having exercised

their put option may not be able to sell their Notes on the market and may have to wait until the Maturity Date to
obtain redemption of their investments in the Notes, which may have a negative impact on the Noteholders and
reduce the profits anticipated by the investors at the time of the Issaddition, investors may not be able to

reinvest the moneys they receive upon such early redemption in securities with the same yield as the redeemed
Notes.

3.3.4 Purchases by the Isser in the open market or otherwise (including byway of atender offer) in
respect of certainNotesmay affect the liquidity of the Noteswhich have not been so purchased

Depending on the number of Notes purchased by the Issuer as provided in Condiiof thgh Terms and
Conditions of the Notes, any trading market in respect of the Notes that have not been so purchased may become
illiquid. Therefore, investors in tidotesnot having exercised their put options may not be able to sellNbé&s

on themarket and may have to wait until the Maturity Date to obtain redemption of their investmentblotdhe

which may have a negative impact on the Noteholders and reduce the profits anticipated by the investors at the
time of the issue
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TERMS AND CONDIT IONS OF THE NOTES

The terms and conditions of the Notes will be as follows:

The i s $00600,0000.87% per cent. Notes dud November 2029the fiN o t e &f dcade Santé (the

fil s s 0 leas lieen authorised by a resolution of@lodlectivité des associéd the Issuer datedl7 October2019

and a decision dicade Chairman(Présiden} of the Issuerdated28 October2019. The Issuer has entered into a

fiscal agency agreement {(REi s c al A g e n c)yated39 OctoberP@INwitid Société Généralas fiscal

agent, principal paying agent and calculation agent. The fiscal agent, principal paying agent, paying agents and
calculation agent for the time being are referred to in these Conditionsf#s the ¢ a | , th&iPaymg Agend

and thei Cal cul at jeach ofAMpiehrexpression shall include the successors from time to time of the
relevant persons, in such capacities, under the Fiscal Agency Agreement, and are collectively referred to as the
AA g e n. (Ref@rences t@Condition s @re, unless the context otherwise requireshto numbered paragraphs

below.

In these Conditions, references to fidayo or fAdayso ar e

1 For m, Denomination and Titl e

The Notes are issued @nNovemler 2019 (thefil s s u e ) iDdematedalised bearer forrau porteu in the
denomination of 0100,000 each. Title to the3etseqt es wi l
and R. 2111 et seq.of the FrenchCode monétaire et financigsy bookentries {hscription en compde No

physical document of title (includingertificats représentatifpursuant to Article R.2%Y of the FrenchCode

monétaire et financi@will be issued in respect of the Notes.

The Notes will, upon issue, be imgzd in book entry form in the books of Euroclear Frant€utoclear

F r a n)cwhich shall credit the accounts of the Account Holders. For the purpose of these Corfilbmosint
Ho | d ehalsndean any intermediary institution entitled to hold accoufitsctly or indirectly, on behalf of its
customers with Euroclear France, and includes Euroclear Bank S.A.MEV1 ( o c ) aadathie @epositary bank
for Clearstream Banking, SAC| ear stream, ))Luxembour go

Title to the Notes shall be evidenced by emstiiethe books of Account Holders and will pass upon, and transfer of
Notes may only be effected through, registration of the transfer in such books.

2 Status and Negative Pledge

@) Status of the Notes

The obligations of the Issuer under the Notes in réspfgarincipal, interest and other amounts, constitute
direct, unconditional, unsubordinated gsdbject to the provisions of Condition 2(Ndgative Pledgeé
unsecured obligations of the Issuengagements chirographaifgesand rank and will at all ties rank

pari passuand without any preference among themselves and equally and rateably with all other present
or future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations (subject to exceptions mandatory under French law)
of the Issuer.

(b) Negative Pledge
So longas any of the Notes remains outstanding (as defined below), the Issuer undertakes thaotit will
create or permit to subsist any mortgage, lien, charge, pledge or other form of security interest that would
constitute aslreté réellaupon any of its respiive assets or revenues, present or future, to secure (i) any
Bond Indebtedness (as defined below) incurred by it or (ii) any guarantee or indemnity assumed or
granted by it in respect of any Bond Indebtedness, unless at the same time or prior tletstuetts
obligations under the Notes are equally and rateably secured therewith.

For the purpose of this Condition:

0] fiout st ameahs, mgeatation to the Notes, all the Notes issued other than: (a) those which
have been redeemed on their due datetherwise in accordance with the Conditions, (b) those in
respect of which the date for redemption in accordance with the Conditions has occurred and the
redemption monies (including all interest accrued on such Notes to the date for such redemption
and any interest payable under Condition 4 after such date) have been duly paid to the Fiscal
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Agent, (c) those which have been purchased and cancelled as provided in Condition 5 and (d)
those in respect of which claims have become prescribed under Conditiamdl

(i) fiBond | nd enedns ahypmesentdor future indebtedness for borrowed money in the form
of, or represented by, bondsh{igationg or other debt securities (includinijres de créances
négociableswhich are, or are capable of being, qaetadmitted to trading or ordinarily dealt in
any stock exchange, ovdre counter or other securities market.

Restriction on Secured Borrowings

The Issuer agrees that, so long as any of the Notes remains outstanding and except with the prior approval
of the General Meeting (as defined under Condition 9.1) of the Noteholders, the Unsecured Revalued
Assets Value (as defined below) shall not be less than the Relevant Debt (as defined below) at any time.

i Appr ai s arheany, avithuresgect to any Person, dggregate market value of all Real Estate
Assets owned or held directly or indirectly by such Person (including through financial leases and
including the Real Estate Assets used as operating properties) as it is shown in, or derived from, the latest
annial or semiannual consolidated financial statements of the Issuer.

AFinanci al Imeahe & ang tnme eagysobligation for the payment or repayment of money,
whether present or future, in respect of:

0] any outstanding prinxznyafi»xenduannt ritmigreadhepr avinit U
repayment) of all moneys borrowed (with or witht

(i) any amounts raised by acceptance or under any
f

inanci al institution;

(iii) any | eanrle bmalkeangdapur chase or hire purchase ¢
which woul d, in accordance with the accounting
|l at est consolidated financi al statempntuntef et h
detes fi)danci res

vy the outstanding pri ncdilplaildad mmwmantne orf a@thlyerbosidn
(incltudirregg de cr ®awméesasny®membabl e§ the Group;

(v) any outstanding amount of the dederdefli padchak
where payment (or, if payable in instal ments,
after the date of purchase of such Real Estate

(vi) any amount rai sed wunder any ot her threa nrseal cetviaonnt
accounting principles in the |l atesmproaonsolidaté
financi(orees in the case of such amounts raised
been so treated hardi arhetyo bseuwecnh rdaatsee)d;, on or p

provided that:

€) for purposes of computing the outstanding principal amount of any Financial
Indebtedness in paragraphs (i) to (vi) above, any interest, dividends, commission, fees or
the like shall be excluded save to the extenttthey have been capitalised; and

(b) no amount shall be included or excluded more than once in calculating the amount of
principal outstanding in respect of any Financial Indebtedness.

fi Gr o meaas the Issuer and its Subsidiaries taken as a whole;

fi P e rosinelades any individual, company, corporation, firm, partnership, -j@nture, association,
organisation, trust, state or agency of a state (in each case whether or not having separate legal
personality);
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iPr operty meamslithe errttose propengluer(s) of the Issuer referred to in its most recent
annual report or, in the event that the Issuer publishes-ammial financial information including
revaluations of its Real Estate Assets, in its most recent-aamial financial report, or any othe
recognised property valuer of comparable repute as selected by the Issuer;

i Real E st aneans (i thase dssets of any Person being real estate properties (being land and
buildings (either completed or under constructianiithose assetgsed orheld by any Person under any
construction leaseagreements (baux a construction or longterm lease agreementsbafix
emphythéotiqugsand (ii) equity or equivalent investmengsa(ticipationg directly or indirectly held in

any other Real Estate Subsidiary

i Real Est at aneaBuudbKubsidianawhichbissaciété a prépondérance immobiligar its
equivalent in any other jurisdiction) or any other Subsidiary (whether listed or not listed) whose more than
fifty (50) per cent. of the assets comprisal restate assets.

i Rel e v anmean®a& any tme the aggregate amount of the Financial Indebtedness of the Issuer as
shown in, or derived from, the latest audited annual or unauditedasemal consolidated financial
statements of the Issuer, excludamy Secured Debt;

iReval ued A meapstatsanyYirae, wite respect to the Issuer, (i) the Appraisal Value (excluding
transfer rightsqroits de transferf{s latent taxesfiscalité latent¢ and legal dutiesf(r a i s )) prévidedlt e s

by the Propertyaluers on all relevant Real Estate Assets owned or held directly or indirectly by the

Issuer (including through financial leases and including the Real Estate Assets used as operating
properties) as shown in the latest audited annual or unauditedamseuail consolidated financial
statements of the Issuer and restated from the share not held by the Issuer of assets held by Persons that are
proportionally consolidated in such | ssuerés <cons
equity-accounted investments (including advances) held directly or indirectly by the Issuer in any Person

as shown in such financial statements;

fi Se c ur e dneabseabanytime the aggregate amount of the Financial Indebtedness of the Issuer as
shown in, or derivedrom, the latest audited annual or unaudited sammual consolidated financial
statements of the Issuer, that is secured by or benefits from a Security Interest over any of the Group's
assets;

iSecur it ymeana ang martgayed charge, pledge, dieomther form of encumbrance or security
interest which would constitutesdireté réelleor any other agreement or arrangement having substantially
the same economic effect (including, but not limited to, any retention of title, lease or hire purchase
arrangement);

i Su b s i théamasregch subsidiary, as defined in Article L:23% the FrencifCode de commercef
the Issuer or an entity controlled (within the meaning of Article L-228 the FrencliCode de commerke
by the Issuer; and

AfUnsecur e dAsReetad méaad at any time an amount equal to the Revalued Assets Value
less the Secured Debt.

4 Il nterest

The Notes bear interest at the rateOd875 per cent.per annum from and includingd November 2014the

il Nt er est Co mme toout ercudingt NDemberd202@¢hefiMa t u r i t)ypayatdetaenaally in

arrear ond Novemberin each year (each a@ nt er e st P 3,yamdefan the fistatime and November

2020 The period commencing on, and including, the Interest Comment®&uaenand ending on, but excluding,

the first Interest Payment Date and each successive period commencing on, and including, an Interest Payment
Date and ending on, but excluding, the next succeeding Interest Payment Date is ddlledtare r e st Per i od o

Notes will cease to bear interest from the date provided for their redemption, unless the Issuer defaults in making
due provision for their redemption on said date. In such event, the Notes will continue to bear interest in
accordance with this Conditiorag well after as before judgment) on the principal amount of such Notes until
whichever is the earlier of (i) the day on which all sums due in respect of such Notes up to that day are received by
or on behalf of the relevant holder and (ii) the day afierRiscal Agent has notified the holders of the Notes (the
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fiN o t e h o)lindaecordaace with Condition 10 of receipt of all sums due in respect of all the Notes up to that
day.

Interest will be calculated on an Actual/Actual (ICMA) basis. Where intésetst be calculated in respect of a

period of less than one (1) year, it shall be calculated on the basis of the number of days elapsed in the relevant
period, from and including the date from which interest begins to accrue to but excluding the daihdhfalls

due, divided by the number of days in such period in which the relevant period falls (including the first but
excluding the last day of such period).

5 Redemption and Purchase
The Notes may not be redeemed otherwise than in accordance witlottaigion 5 and Condition 8.
@) Final Redemption

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled as provided below, the Notes will be redeemed by
the Issuer at their principal amount #4WNovember 2029

(b) Redemption for Taxation Reasons

® If, by reason of a change in French law or regulation, or any change in the official application or
interpretation of such law or regulation, becoming effective after the Issue Date, the Issuer would
on the occasion of the next payment due in respect of thesNuit be able to make such payment
without having to pay additional amounts as specified in Condition 7 below, the Issuer may on
any Interest Payment Date, subject to having given not more than sixty (60) nor less than thirty
(30) days b ENoteholders @vhidh aatice shall bé irrevocable), in accordance with
Condition 10, redeem all, but not some only, of the outstanding Notes at their principal amount
plus any interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption provided that the due date for
redemption of which notice hereunder may be given shall be no earlier than the latest practicable
Interest Payment Date on which the Issuer could make payment of principal and interest without
withholding or deduction for French taxes.

(i) If the Issuerwould on the occasion of the next payment in respect of the Notes be prevented by
French law from making payment to the Noteholders of the full amount then due and payable,
notwithstanding the undertaking to pay additional amounts contained in Conditielow, then
the Issuer shall forthwith give notice of such fact to the Fiscal Agent and the Issuer shall upon
giving not | ess than seven (7) days®dé prior not
10 redeem all, but not some only, of the Notemntoutstanding at their principal amount plus any
accrued interest on the latest practicable date on which the Issuer could make payment of the full
amount payable in respect of the Notes without withholding or deduction for French taxes, or, if
such datés past, as soon as practicable thereafter.

(c) Redemption at the option of the Noteholders following a Change of Control

If at any time while any Note remains outstanding (i) a Change of Control occurs and (ii) within the
Change of Control Period, (X)f(at the time of the Change of Control the Issuer and/or the Notes
outstanding have a rating from a Rating Agency) a Rating Downgrade occurs or has occurred as a result of
such Change of Control or (y) (if at the time of the Change of Control the Issdé&r dhe Notes
outstanding do not have a rating from a Rating Agency) a Negative Rating Event in respect of that Change
of Control occurs (such Change of Control and Rating Downgrade or Negative Rating Event, as the case
may be, occurring within the Changé Control Period together calledi® u t E)v eachtNoteholder

will have the option (théiChange of ControlP ut O p (unlessh @rior to the giving of the Put Event
Notice (as defined below), the Issuer gives notice of its intention to redeem th& iater Condition 5)

to require the Issuer to redeem or, at the | ssuer
Optional Redemption Date (as defined below). Each Note shall be redeemed or purchased at its principal
amount together with (omvhere purchased, together with an amount equal to) accrued interest to (but
excluding) the Optional Redemption Date.

A fiChange of Controb shall be deemed tcakie occurred each time they person or persons acting in
concert (thefiRe | e v a n t) (ofher thancadéand/or any company or other legal entity which are
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controlled bylcadewithin the meaning of Article L.233 of the FrenciCode de commerte&ome(s) to
own, directly or indirectly, more thaB0 per cenbf the share capital or votinggtits normally exercisable
at a general meeting of the Issuer.

fiChange of Control Periodd meanshe period commencing on the date that is the earlier of (i) the date of
the first public announcement of the occurrence of the relevant Change of Contral) toreddate of the

earliest Potential Change of Control Announcement (if any) and ending on the date which is 180 days after
the date of the first public announcement of the occurrence of the relevant Change of Control.

fiNegati ve Rahall be glemédvte hatedccurred if the Notes have no credit rating and no
Rating Agency assigns an investment grade rating to the Notes within the Change of Control Period,
provided that the Rating Agency (A) announces or publicly confirms or, (B) having beerussteshjby

the Issuer, informs the Issuer or the Fiscal Agent in writing that its declining to assign such rating was the
result, in whole or in part, of the applicable Change of Control (whether or not the Change of Control shall
have occurred at the tingeich rating is declined).

fiPotential Change of Control Announcemem means any pub |public statememt byn c e me n-
the Issuer oany actual or potential bidder relating to any potential Change of Control, such announcement

or statement occurring naore than 120 days prior to the first public announcement of the occurrence of

the relevant Change of Control.

fiRating mMmgemsyany of the f ol | &GlbalRgting, 4 divisionfthend ar d ¢
McGrawHill Companies, Inc.; or (b) any othamting agency of equivalent international standing
established in the European Union and registered under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009, as amended and
requested from time to time by the Issuer to grant a rating and, in each case, their respectiv@soccess

affiliates.

AfRat i ng Do shalde deelmedto have occurred in respect of a Change of Control if within the
Change of Control Period:

(A) the rating previously assigned to the Notes or to the Issuer by any Rating Agency is (x) withdrawn or
(y) changed from an investment grade ratiB®B-, or its equivalent for the time being, or better) to a
noninvestment grade ratin@B+, or its equivalent for the time being, or worse); and

(B) such rating is not within the Change of Control Period subsgiguapgraded (in the case of a
downgrade) or reinstated (in the case of a withdrawal) either to an investment grade credit rating (in the
case of (y)) or to its earlier credit rating or better (in the case of (x)) by such Rating Agency;

provided howevethat a Rating Downgrade otherwise arising by virtue of a particular change in rating
shall be deemed to have occurred in respect of a particular Change of Control only if (i) the Rating Agency
making the relevant decision referred to above publicly anresuac publicly confirms that such decision

was the result, in whole or in part, of the Change of Control or (ii) the Rating Agency making the relevant
decision referred to above has confirmed in a letter or other form of written communication sent to the
Issuer and publicly disclosed that such decision was the result, in whole or in part, of the Change of
Control, and provided further that if the Notes are rated by more than one Rating Agency, a Rating
Downgrade shall be deemed not to have occurred ingespa particular Put Event if only one Rating
Agency has withdrawn or lowered its rating.

Promptly upon the Issuer becoming aware that a Put Event has occurred, the Issuer shall give notice (a
fiP u t Ev e n) to the Fiscal &gent and to the Notehoklén accordance with Condition 10
specifying the nature of the Put Event, the circumstances giving rise to it and the procedure for exercising
the Change of Control Put Option contained in this section.

To exercise the Change of Control Put Option to megreédemption or, as the case may be, purchase of a
Note under this section, a Noteholder must transfer (or cause to be transferred by its Account Holder) its
Notes to be so redeemed or purchased to the account of the Fiscal Agent (details of whidatifigakispe

the Put Option Notice) for the account of the Issuer within the period offiuety(45) days after the Put

Event Notice is given (thBP u t P ¢ togethet with a duly signed and completed notice of exercise in
the form obtainable from the specified office of the Fiscal Agent or the Paying AgéRu{aOption
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N o t i) and ia which the Noteholder shall specify a bank account denominated in evhizhopayment
is to be made under this Condition.

A Put Option Notice once given shall be irrevocable.

The Issuer shall redeem or, at the option of the Issuer, procure the purchase of, the Notes in respect of
which the Change of Control Put Option hasrbeelidly exercised as provided above, and subject to the
transfer of such Notes to the accounts of the Fiscal Agent for the account of the Issuer as described above
on the date which is the fifth (5th) Business Day following the end of the Put PeriodQpimnal
Redempt i {d Rayneattineedpect of any Note so transferred will be made via the relevant Account
Holders on the Optional Redemption Date in Euro to the Hermminated bank account specified by the
Noteholder in the Put Option Notice.

Forthe avoidance of doubt, no additional amount shall be payable by the Issuer to a Noteholder as a result
of or in connection with such Noteholderos exerci:
(whether as a result of any purchase or redematrising therefrom or otherwise).

(d) Make Whole Redemption by the Issuer

The Issuer will, subject to compliance by the Issuer with all relevant laws, regulations and directives and
having given not less than thirty (30) nor more than forty ve ( 45) daysdéd notice i
Condition 10 to the Noteholders (which notidet be irrevocable), have the option to redeem the Notes,

in whole or in part, at any time prior tbe first day of the Pr&laturity Call Periodthe iOptional Make

Whol e Rede mpattihariOpDa toenda | Re d e mas defined bdlonwptegethedth

any accrued and unpaid interest up to, but excluding, the Optional Make Whole Redemption Date and any
additional amounts.

The Optional Redemption Amount will be calculated by the Calculation Agent and will be an amount in
Euro rounded to the nearesint (half a cent being rounded upwards) being the greater of (x) one hundred
(100) per cent. of the Principal Amount (as defined belofithe Notes so redeemed and, (y) the sum of
the then present values on the Optional Make Whole Redemption Datetlod @rincipal Amount (as
defined below)pf the Notes and (ii) of the remaining scheduled payments of interest on sualmhilotee

first day of the Préviaturity Call Period(determined on the basis of the interest rate applicable to such
Note from but egluding the Optional Make Whole Redemption Date), discounted to the Optional Make
Whole Redemption Date on an annual basis (Actual / Actual ICMA)e Early Redemption Rate plus an
Early Redemption Margin.

The determination of any rate or amount, thedaboting of each quotation and the making of each
determination or calculation by the Calculation Agent shall (in the absence of manifest error) be final and
binding upon all parties. The Calculation Agent shall act as an independent expert and notfas tgent
Issuer or the Noteholders.

AEar |l y Rede mpmeandr20pbtaentgpar anoum

AEar |l y Rede nmednstheraveRgetofdafiiee (5) quotations given by the Reference Dealers of

the midmarket annual yield to maturity of the Referenca®enark Security on the fourth (4th) business

day in Paris preceding the Optional Make Whole Redemption Date at 11.00 a.m. (Central European time
(CET)).

If the Reference Benchmark Security is no longer outstanding, a Similar Security will be chosen by the
Calculation Agent after prior consultation with the Issuer if practicable under the circumstances, at 11.00
a.m. (Central European time (CET)) on the fourth (4th) business day in Paris preceding the Optional Make
Whole Redemption Date, quoted in writing the Calculation Agent to the Issuer.

APrincipamedamsutaidi®60, 000.

i Ref er ence Be n creans th&k GeBnegovernnient poind (bearing interest at a rate.00
per centper annumand maturing oi5 August 202%vith ISIN DE0C0011024738
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(€)

(f)

)

(h)

(@)

i Rerfeen c e Dmeans eeack of théve (5) banks (that may include théoint Lead Manage)s
selected by the Calculation Agent which are primary European government security dealers, and their
respective successors, or market makers in pricing corporatddsoied.

iSi mi | ar mBansaurefarencg bond or reference bonds issued by the Geoveimment having

an actual or interpolated maturity comparable with the remaining term of the Notes that would be utilised,
at the time of selection and in accordanwith customary financial practice, in pricing new issues of
corporate debt securities of comparable maturity to the remaining term of the Notes.

CleanUp Call Option

In the event that sevenfive (75 per cent. or more in initial aggregate nomiaatount of theNotes

(including any further notes to be assimilated with tetes pursuant to Condition 12) have been
redeemed or purchased and cancelled and provided that the Issuer has not reded&otss ithgart

pursuant to Condition 5(d) above, tlssuer may, at its option, subject to having given not more than sixty
(60) nor | ess than t hiNoteholdes i® ctorddnaeywithbComdition d0r(whicto t i ¢ e
notice shall be irrevocable), redeem the outstanding Notes, in whole birt patt, at their principal

amount plus accrued interest up to but excluding the date fixed for redemption.

Pre-Maturity Call Option

The Issuer may, at its option, from and includihdwugust 20290 but excluding the Maturity Datghe

fiPre-Maturity Call Periodo ,)subject to having given not more than sixty (60) nor less than thirty (30)
daysdé prior notice to the Noteholders in accordanc
redeem the outstanding Notes, in whole or in part, at gingicipal amount plus accrued interest up to but

excluding the date fixed for redemption.

Partial Redemption

If the Issuer decides to redeem the Notes in part as set out in Conditions 5(d) and 5(f), such partial
redemptionwill be effectedby reducingthe nominal amount of all such Notes in proportion to the
aggregate nominal amount redeeno@dsuch daysubject to compliance with any applicable laws, ad

long as the Notes are admitted to trading on Euronext Paris, the requirements of Euronext Paris

Purchases

The Issuer may at any time purchase Notes together with rights to interest relating thereto in the open
market or otherwise (including by way of tender offer) at any price and on any condition, subject to
compliance with any applicable lawblotes so purchased by the Issuer may be cancelled or held and
resold in accordance with Articles L.2031 and D.2130-1 of the FrenclCode monétaire et financiéor

the purpose of enhancing the liquidity of the Notes.

Cancellation

All Notes which ae redeemed or purchased for cancellation pursuant this Condition will forthwith be
cancelled and accordingly may not be reissued or resold and the obligations of the Issuer in respect of any
such Notes shall be discharged.

Payment s
Method of Payment

Payments of principal and interest in respect of the Notes will be made in Euro by credit or transfer to a
Eurodenominated account (or any other account to which Euro may be credited or transferred) specified
by the payee in a city in which banks haveemscto the TARGET Systedilf ARGE T S ymedng mo
the Trans European Automated Real Time Gross Settlement Express Transfer (known as TARGET2)
System or any successor thereto.

Payments of principal and interest on the Notes will, in all cases, be subgest fiscal or other laws and
regulations applicable thereto in the place of payment, but without prejudice to the provisions of Condition
7. No commission or expenses shall be charged to the Noteholders in respect of such payments.
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(b)

(©

(@)

(b)

8

Payments on BusineBays

If any due date for payment of principal or interest in respect of any Note is not a Business Day (as defined
below), then the Noteholder thereof shall not be entitled to payment of the amount due until the next
following day which is a Business Dand the Noteholder shall not be entitled to any interest or other
sums in respect of such postponed payment.

In these ConditionsiB u s i n e smeanb any day, not being a Saturday or a Sunday, on which the
TARGET System is operating and on which Eurockrance is open for general business.

Fiscal Agent, Calculation Agent and Paying Agent
The names of the initial Agents and their specified offices are set out below:

Soci ®t ® G®n ®r al e

32, rue du Champ de Tir
CS 30812

44308 Nantes Cedex 3
France

The Issuer reserves the right at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of the Fiscal Agent, the
Calculation Agent or the Paying Agent and/or appoint additional or other Paying Agents or approve any
change in the office through which any such Agent.ddtsice of any such change or any change of
specified office shall promptly be given to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 10.

Taxation
Withholding Tax

All payments of principal, interest and other assimilated revenues by or on behalfisguéein respect

of the Notes shall be made free and clear of, and without withholding or deduction for, any taxes, duties,
assessments or governmental charges of whatever nature imposed, levied, collected, withheld or assessed
by or on behalf of any jisdiction or any political subdivision or any authority thereof having power to

tax, unless such withholding or deduction is required by law.

Additional Amounts

If, pursuant to French laws or regulations, payments of principal, interest or otheitedsdimevenues in

respect of any Note become subject to withholding or deduction in respect of any present or future taxes,
duties, assessments or other governmental charges of whatever nature, the Issuer shall, to the fullest extent
then permitted by laywpay such additional amounts as may be necessary in order that the holder of each
Note, after such withholding or deduction, will receive the full amount then due and payable thereon in the
absence of such withholding or deduction; provided howeverhihassuer shall not be liable to pay any

such additional amounts in respect of any Note to, or to a third party on behalf of, a Noteholder who is
liable to such taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges in respect of such Note by reason of his
havng some connection with France other than the mere holding of such Note.

Any references to these Conditions to principal, interest and other assimilated revenues shall be deemed
also to refer to any additional amounts which may be payable under thsigmeef this Condition 7.

Events of Def aul t

The Representative (as defined in Condition 9.1) oMMhsse(as defined in Condition 9.1upon request of any
Noteholdershall, by written notice sent to the Issuer, with a copy to the Fiscal Agent, ratjtire Notes (but not

some only) to be redeemed at their principal amount, together with accrued interest thereon as of the date on which
a copy of such notice for payment is received by the Fiscal Agent, if any of the following elewntats of

Defaultd) occurs, unless such Events of Default have been cured by the Issuer prior to the receipt of such notice:
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(a) if any amount of principal or interest on any Note shall not be paid by the Issuer on the due date
thereof and such default shall not teenedied by the Issuer within a period of fifteen (15) days
from such due date; or

(b) if the Issuer defaults in the due performance of any other obligation in respect of the Notes and
such default continues for a period of thirty (30) days following ptdey the Issuer of a written
notice of such default given by the Representative ofthsse or

(c) if (i) any other present or future Financial Indebtedness (as defined in Condition 3) of the Issuer or
any of its Material Subsidiaries (as defined beld®wefomes due and payable prior to its stated
maturity by reason of any default, event of default or the like (howsoever described) in respect of
such Financial Indebtedness and including, where applicable, after the delivery of any notice
and/or the expittton of any applicable grace period required in order for such Financial
Indebtedness to become so due and payable, or (i) any such present or future Financial
Indebtedness is not paid by the Issuer or any of its Material Subsidiaries when due ocaae the
may be, within any applicable grace period, or (iii) the Issuer or any of its Material Subsidiaries
fails to pay when due or, as the case may be, within any applicable grace period, any amount
payable by it under any present or future guarantee fandemnity in respect of, any present or
future Financial Indebtedness; provided that the aggregate amount of the relevant Financial
Indebtedness and/or guarantees or indemnities, individually or in the aggregate, is equal to or in
e x ¢ e s s milboh (onitgle@uivalent in any other currency); or

(d) if the Issuer is wound up or dissolved or ceases to carry on all or substantially all of its business
except (i) in connection with a merger or spiffi (including fusionscission, consolidation,
amalgamaobn or other form of reorganisation pursuant to which the surviving entity shall be the
transferee of or successor to all or substantially all of the business of the Issuer and assumes all of
the obligations of the Issuer with respect to the Notes oodiisuch other terms approved by a
resolution of the general meeting of the Noteholders; or

(e) if the Issuer or any of its Material Subsidiaries (i) makes any proposal for a general moratorium in
relation to its debts or (ii) any judgment is issued fojutkcial liquidation (iquidation judiciaire)
or the transfer of the whole of its businessssion totale de l'entreprisén the context of a
procedure of judicial liquidation liQuidation judiciaire or of a judicial rehabilitation
(redressement judiaire).

For the purpose of this Condition:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

iMat eri al M@aatsson ahy givenydate, any Subsidiary (as defined in Condition 3) of the Issuer
which is consolidated by way of global consolidationtggration global¢ (i) which has EBITDA
represenng ten (10)per cent. or more of the Consolidated EBITDA or (ii) which Contributory Revalued
Net Assets represent more thtan (10)per cent. of the Revalued Assets Value (as defined in Condition 3)
of the Issuer, in each case calculated by reference to the latest audited annual or unaudiedusémi
consolidated financial statements of the Issuer;

AConsol i dat endansBeBEHBITDAAEKCEdent brut opérationnedf the Issuer as shown in its
latest audited annual or unaudited seamnual consolidated financial statements;

fi EB 1 T nAais, with respect to a Subsidiary, the EBITDA of this Subsidiary as shown in its latest
audited annual or unaudited seamnual financial statements;

AContributory Re maanutledgrodia of theARekvant Revalued Assets Value of the
relevant Subsidiary and the rate of direct or indirect detention of the Issuer in ttent&ebsidiary; and

iRel evant Re v al umehns fos ang Bubsidisry thas Appraisal Value (as defined in
Condition 3) (excluding transfer rightdrpits de transferfs latent taxesfiscalité latentg¢ and legal duties

(f r ai s)) grévala byette Property Valuers (as defined in Condition 3) on all relevant Real Estate
Assets (as defined in Condition 3) owned by said Subsidiary (including through financial leases and
including the Real Estate Assets used as operating properties) as shienatest audited annual or
unaudited semannual consolidated financial statements of the Issuer and (ii) the value of the equity
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9

9.

accounted investments (including advances) held directly or indirectly by the Subsidiary in any Person (as
defined in Condion 3) as shown in such financial statements.

Representation of the Noteholders

1 Gener al

Noteholders will be grouped automatically for the defence of their common interests in a masiéagb®).
The Masse will be governed by the provisions of ttenEhCode de commercand with the exception of Articles
L.22848, L.22859, R. 22861, R.22867, R.22869, R. 22879 and R. 234.1 subject to the following provisions:

(@)

(b)

(©)

Legal Personality: The Masse will be a separate legal entity and will act inthestigh a representative

(the AR e p r e s e ndna in ipartetirougtcollective decisionsof the Noteholders (théCollective
Decision®).

The Collective Decisions ar e Gene@lpMeetidp ))ei dheby i a
i

e
followingawrit e n ¢ o n s u WittantResolationpt ke @ efi ned in Condit n

0
o
The Massealone, to the exclusion of all individual Noteholders, shall exercise the common rights, actions
and benefits which now or in the future may accrue respectively with reeggbet Notes.

Representative: The office of the Representative may be conferred on a person of any nationality.
However, the following persons may not be chosen as Representatives:

0] the Issuerjts Chairmanjts general managerslifecteursgénérauy, its statutory auditors, or its
employees as well as their ascendants, descendants and spouse; or

(i) companies guaranteeing all or part of the obligations of the Issuer, their respective managers
(géranty, general manage(slirecteurs générayx members of their Board of Director&dnseil
ddadmi n), Marmagemeénto Board Dfrectoire) or Supervisory Board Qonseil de

surveillancg, their statutory auditors, or employees as well as their ascendants, descendants and
spouses; or

(i)  companis holding ten (10) per cent. or more of the share capital of the Issuer or companies
having ten (10) per cent. or more of their share capital held by the Issuer; or

(iv) persons to whom the practice of banker is forbidden or who have been deprived ighthad r
directing, administering or managing an enterprise in whatever capacity.

The following person is designated as initial Representative dfidsse

Association de Repr®sentation des Masses de Titul
Centre Yaoques rke
32 rue du Champ de Tir
CS 30812208ntes cedex 3
Cont actsegmadiclma@ass oc om

The Issuer shall pagn the IssueDatto t he Repr esent ati ve o4000(VAE Masse
excluded).

The Representative will exercise its duty until its death, liquidation, dissolution, resignation or termination
of its duty by a General Meeting or until it becomes unable to act. Such Representative will be replaced by
an alternate Represtative which will be elected by a meeting of the general assembly of Noteholders. Its
appointment shall automatically cease on the Maturity Date, or any date on which all the Notes are
redeemed prior to the Maturity Date in accordance with these Camglitio

Powers of the RepresentativeThe Representative shall (in the absence of any decision to the contrary of

the General Meeting) have the power to take all acts of management necessary in order to defend the
common interests of the Noteholders.
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(d)

()

()

(9)

(h)

9.

All legal proceedings against the Noteholders or initiated by them, must be brought by or against the
Representative.

The Representative may not interfere in the management of the affairs of the Issuer.

General Meeting: A General Meeting may be held at a@ipe, on convocation either by the Issuer or by

the Representative. One or more Noteholders, holding together at leatirteth of the principal

amount of the Notes outstanding, may address to the Issuer and the Representative a demand for
convocatiorof the General Meeting, together with the proposed agenda for such General Meeting. If such
General Meeting has not been convened within two (2) months after such demand, the Noteholders may
commission one of their members to petition a competent colxdris to appoint an agefrhandatairg

who will call the General Meeting.

Notice of the date, time, place, agenda and quorum requirements of any General Meeting will be published
as provided under Condition 10 not less than fifteen (15) days prior tiatbef such General Meeting on
first convocation and six (6) days on second convocation.

Each Noteholder has the right to participate in a General Meeting in person, by proxy, correspondence, or
by videoconference or any other means of telecommunicatdiosving the identification of the
participating Noteholders. Each Note carries the right to one vote.

Powers of the General MeetingsThe General Meeting is empowered to deliberate on the dismissal and
replacement of the Representative and the alierRapresentative and also may act with respect to any
other matter that relates to the common rights, actions and benefits which now or in the future may accrue
with respect to the Notes, including authorising the Representative to act at law as plaitgiéndant.

The General Meeting may further deliberate on any proposal relating to the modification of the Conditions
including any proposal, whether for arbitration or settlement, relating to rights in controversy or which
were the subject of judiciadecisions, it being specified, however, that the General Meeting may not
increase the liabilities charge3 to Noteholders, nor establish any unequal treatment between the
Noteholders, nor to decide to convert Notes into shares.

General Meetings may dbkrate validly on first convocation only if Noteholders present or represented
hold at least a fifth of the principal amount of the Notes then outstanding. On second convocation, no
quorum shall be required. Decisions at meetings shall be taken by-thitsvonajority of votes cast by
Noteholders attending such General Meetings or represented thereat.

In accordance with Article R.2281 of the FrencifCode de commergcé¢he rights of each Noteholder to
participate in General Meetings will be evidenced by ghtries in the books of the relevant Account
Holder of the name of such Noteholder on the second (2nd) business day in Paris preceding the date set for
the meeting of the relevant General Meeting at 0:00, Paris time.

Information to Noteholders: Each Noteholder or Representative thereof will have the right, during the
fiteen-day (15) period preceding the holding of each General Meeting, to consult or make a copy of the
text of the resolutions which will be proposed and of the reports which will beregsat the General
Meeting, all of which will be available for inspection by the relevant Noteholders at the registered office
of the Issuer, at the specified offices of the Paying Agent and at any other place specified in the notice of
the General Meety.

Expenses:The Issuer will pay all reasonable expenses relating to the operation of the Masse, including
expenses relating to the calling and holding ©bllective Decisionsand, more generally, all
administrative expenses resolved upon by the Gérdeeting, it being expressly stipulated that no
expenses may be imputed against interest payable under the Notes.

Notice of Decisions:Decisions of the meetings and Written Resoluti¢es defined belowshall be
published in accordance with the pigions set out in Condition 10 not more than ninety (90) days from
the date thereof.

2 Written Resolutions and Electronic Consent
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Pursuant to Article L.2286-1 of the FrenchCode de commercehe Issuer shall be entitled, in lieu of
convening aMasse to seek approval of a resolution from the Noteholders by way of a Written Resolution.
Subject to the following sentence, a Written Resolution may be contained in one document or in several
documents in like form, each signed by or on behalf of one or witke Noteholders. Pursuant to
Articles L.22846-1 and R.2230-1 of the FrenchiCode de commercapproval of a Written Resolution

may also be given by way of electronic communication allowing the identification of Noteholders

( Electronic Consend ) .

Notice seeking the approval of a Written Resolution (including by way of Electronic Consent) will be
published as provided under Condition 10 not less than five (5) calendar days prior to the date fixed for the
passing of such WWwiitten ResolutRre Bat®l )u.t i Noont i(ctehse sfieeki ng
Written Resolution will contain the conditions of form and tilimits to be complied with by the
Noteholders who wish to express their approval or rejection of such proposed Written Resolution.
Noteholders expressing their approval or rejection before the Written Resolution Date will undertake not
to dispose of their Notes until after the Written Resolution Date.

For the pur pose Writen Réseuiond Comali It i mean ingsigeesorl ut i on

approved by or on behalf of the holders of not less than ninety (90) per cent. in nominal amount of the
Notes outstanding. References to a Written Resolution include, unless the context otherwise requires, a
resolution approved by ElectronBonsent.

10 Noti ces

Any notice to the Noteholders will be valid if delivered to the Noteholders through Euroclear France, Euroclear or
Clearstream, Luxembourg, and, for so long as the Notes are admitted to the operations of such depositaries or
custodian, phblished on the website of the Issudttps://www.icade.fr/finance/icaggantd; and so long as the

Notes are admitted to trading on Euronext Paris and the rules of Euronext Paris so requireyeisiteeof

Euronext Parisviww.euronext.com Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given on the date of such
delivery or, if delivered more than once or on different dates, on the first date on which susty demade.

11 Prescription

Claims against the Issuer for the payment of principal and interest in respect of the Notes shall become prescribed
ten (10) years (in the case of principal) and five (5) years from the due date for payment thereof.

12 Furthees | ss

The Issuer may, from time to time without the consent of the Noteholders, issue further notes to be assimilated
(assimilable¥ with the Notes as regards their financial service, provided that such further notes and the Notes shall
carry rights idential in all respects (or in all respects except for the first payment of interest thereon) and that the
terms of such further notes shall provide for such assimilation. In the event of such assimilation, the Noteholders
and the holders of any assimilated esowill, for the defence of their common interests, be grouped in a single
Masse having legal personality.

13 Governing Law and Jurisdiction

The Notes are governed by the laws of France.

The competent courts within the jurisdiction of the Court of Apped®arfs have exclusive jurisdiction to settle
any dispute arising out of or in connection with the Notes.
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USE AND ESTIMATED NET AMOUNT OF PROCEEDS

The estimated net proceeds of the issue ofNbeswi | | a m495,210,00Gra willi be used forgeneral
corporate purposes of the Issuer
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DESCRIPTION OF THE ISSUER

l. Information about the Issuer

1. Issuer name

The name of théssuer  slcade Sant@ .
2. Registration location and number

The Issueris registered with the Nanterre Trade and Companies Register (RCS Nanterre) under number
318251600

LEBPS65950067NFROMWI 0CJI 45
3. Date of incorporation and term of thelssuer

Thelssuerwas incorporated oh0 October 2007or a term of 99 years, unlessstdissolved early or extended by
collective decision of the shareholders pursuant to law and the articles of association.

The corporate year begins on 1 January and closes on 31 December of each year.
4, Headquarters, legal form and governing laws

The headygarters of thdssuerarelocated27, Rue Camille Desmoulins, 92130 Issy les Mouline&uance The
telephone number of the headquarters is %33 5770 0Q

Thelssueris a Frenctsimplified joint stock companysciété par actions simplifige

The address of thissueb s w e bhitps:¥/veww.icade.fr/finance/icadgante The information provided othe
Issuebs website iPespactus part of this

1. Business overview

Leaderin investmats in healthcarefacilities in Francg Icade Santé is a subsidiary of Icada integrated real

estate playemnd the fifth property investment companyn Francé. It relies on its recognized expertise in
healthcare real estate, lotgym institutional bareholding, angbresence alonché whole real estate value chain.
Icade Santé&tarted operations in 20@vith a focus on private clinic facilitieand has diversified by investing in

nursing homes sinc2018

As of 30 June 2019 cade Santé holds a portfolio 4fl4 healthcare facilitieslocated exclusivelyin France,
representing 04.5 Dbillion in assets (excluding duties,

The followingmapshows the geographical split of these facilities ag86fJune 2019

In terms of portfolio value as of 31 December 2018.
2 In terms of portfolio value as of 31 December 2018 and based on the annual reports of property investment companiés &panating
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Through longterm partnerships, it supports healthcare operators to develop their activibdsynizetheir
facilities, and meet local needshe experti se of |l cade Sant®b6s teams coO
management for complex projects, and detailed knowledge of the challenges facing players in healthcare.

Thanks to its strengths, Icade Santé has developedtdomgpartnerships witmational private hospitalisation
operators, such as Elsan, Ramsay Santé, and Vivalto Santé, but also with regional grypsdiiedh in their
local areasThe framework agreement signed with the Korian grisu@017 regarding senior care and services

also illustrates this support
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Looking ahead t0 2022 | cade Sant ®0 s strenghennitsleading position asehealithsare tproperty

company in France in tharivate clinic sectorand continue its diversificiain in the nursing home sectdn this

context | cade, the Groupbés majority sharehol der, publ i she
of approxi mat el y i2022peribd for inenFrench activitids lofdéts h2altHcae property division
(correspondingtdt he peri meter ofl the Groupds activities)

1. Presentation of the healthcare sector markét

a. Assets with attractive features

The healthcare sector represents a promising market that is less cyclical than the rest of the economy, thanks to
underlying fundamenta such as the ageing population in Europe, rising healthcare costs and the prevalence of
chronic diseases. Healthcare property assets are-sisglproperties with lonterm leases that can be divided into

two main categories:

1 healthcare facilities inctling, for shortterm stays, acute care facilities (medicine, surgery and obstetrics)
with extensive space dedicated to medical technology equipment, or for medianstays, psychiatric
(PSY) or postacute care (PAC) facilities. 85 to 90% of tenantomeras 6 r evenues come fro
national health insurancégsurance Maladie

1 medicalsocial facilities referred to as nursing homes; tenant operators derive their revenue from the French
national health insurancéAssurance Maladjefor care and fromDepartmental Councils for the costs
associated with assisting dependent persons, while accommodation costs are primarily borne by the residents
themselves or their families.

In France, leases are predominantly for a term of 12 years with no break claus# service charges are
recoverable from the tenant operators, excluding major works falling within the scope of Article 606 of the French

Civil Code, which are now borne by property owners in new leases signed or renewed on or after November 5,
2014 (fdlowing entry into force of the decree establishing rules for allocation of service charges under Law 2014

626 dated June 18, 2014 for commercial leases, known &irtekLaw). The sel | er sd parent <co
provide corporate warrantieser the rendue

b. Strong operatoramong French healthcare operators

The main healthcare operators (Elsan and Ramsay Santé for acute care facilities along with Orpéa and Korian for
postacute care and psychiatric facilities) own over 400 out of the 1,003 facikttesded by the Directorate of

Research, Studies, Evaluation and Statistics (DREES) in A0E&e operators benefit from a clear visibility on

their revenue, as a significant portioniof o mes fr om t he Fr eAssutanchMattii)h.car e sys

Reforms in the French health sector have led operators to start a major process of consolidation in order to become
more efficient and thus preserve historical margins.

Foll owing El sands takeover of M®di p?! | e atBpatetraskingforr es i n
heal thcare operators through its acquisition of Capio
shareholders in October 2018, this new structure habled Ramsay to become tH¥ Rrgestgroup in private

healtbk ar e i n Europe, with a presence in six countries.

through the acquisition of 5 healthcare facilities. It also entered into exclusive negotiations to acquire the
Confluent Private Hospital in Nantesonsidered to be the largest private healthcare facility in France.

The environment is also more favourable for healthcare operators due to medical fees which have been trending
upwards for the first time in 5 years (+0.5% for acute care facilities%-@1 PAC facilities and +0.7% for PSY
facilities, excludiy t henfipaubdeoefficientdo of 0.7 pp which is app

Consolidation of the medicalocial sector has been on the rise due to thefremze on the numberf building
authorisations granted for new facilities since 2011. The Korian, Orpéa and DomusVi groups are now the main
private nursing home operators in France, with each counting more than 15,000 beds. In addition, their business

! See 2018 full year results presentation of Ic@delated 18 February 2019, page 20.
2 Sources: DREES Santé, Cushn&hvakefield, Your Care Consult
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has expanded internatially to such an extent that they have become the leaders in Europe, with more than half of
their capacity located outside France.

During the sixmonth period ended0 June 201&his trend has been confirm#éaough the acquisition in France
of Residalya2,600 beds) by DomusVi which consolidates its position among the top three.

The medicaks oc i al sector in France is also the particular f
in the autumn of 2019n September 2018, tHerenchPrime Minister asked Dominique Libaulfiormerheadof

the French Social Securityo conduct a consultation and make reform proposals, particularly with a view to a
legislationon the elderlyDrawing on he Libault report submitted inp8ing, it could provide n& resources and

expand the role of nursing homes as part of a more comprehensive approach to dependency.

Benefiting from the operatorsd growt h, real estate i
tenant operators to finance thgrals for expansion by freeing up capital through sale and leasebacks.

C. Competitive environment of the Group

The quest for attractive yields and letegm, secure rental income has attracted a growing number of investors:
asset management firms have bedring funds specifically to invest in this segment since 2014 by creating
dedicated investment vehicles, initially invested in nursing homes but also to be invested in international and
healthcare assets, despite their greater specificity.

The two mainine st or s which have emerged in France are Pri mo
under management in 2018 (with an additional 43.5 bil

In Europe,the two most significant property investment companies operating inetéhcare real estate sector
areCofinimmoand Aedifica Belgian property investment compasspecialised in nursing homes

The property investment company SisCare rank ahead ofthiee asset management firms present in the French
market (Axa REIM, Euryale, Cleaveland and Perial). By expanding into healthcare property starting in 2007 and
then on a regular basis each ygdeade Santdas confirmed its leadershimsition(in termsof portfolio value)in

France.

d. Limited supply of properties that attract strong interest, leading to value increases

The healthcare property market is now characterised by increased investor demand. Transactions used to be only
related to properties soloy their operators (in order to finance their acquisitions) and to doctors selling their
properties andractices (primgy market). There is now an active secondary market for transactions between
investors, capable of dealing with major portfolios suckkast al i aés (2015) or Geci medods

In France, aftem record yeain 2016 1. 6 bi Il |l i on) , the invest ment mar k e’
transactions totalling 0425 million. N Icads Samt§romh o me p o
Res dal y a, have nonetheless reinvigorated ItadeeSarf@rsench m
acquisition of 12 facilities (including 7 nursing hon
which was announced in April confirnise dynamismof the investment market the sixmonth period ended@0

June 2019

However, the scarcity of opportunities in France against a backdrop of fierce competition has spurred investors to
diversify their strategy through the signing of developthartnerships, like the framework agreement signed by
Korian, Icade Santénd Icade Promotion at the end of 2017 or by expanding into other countries.

2. Property portfolio and leasing activity
A) Portfolio of Icade Santé

As of 30 June 2019the property portfolio of Icade Santé represewarly 1.6 million sg. m of operating floor
area. It is comprisedf acute care facilities (medicine, surgery and obstetrics);gmsé care (PAC) facilities and
nursing homes (EPHAD).
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a. Geographicdistribution of the property portfolio by type of asset

Portfolio value Total floor area
In terms of total value and floor area ) % of total In terms of % of total
(in Om portfolio floor area portfolio floor
value (in sq.m) area

PARIS REGION 680 15% 177,190 11%
Occitanie 930 21% 360,546 23%
NouvelleAquitaine 576 13% 242,787 15%
AuvergneRhéneAlpes 451 10% 155,671 10%
Paysdela-Loire 448 10% 174,804 11%
Hautsde France 385 9% 138,917 9%
ProvenceAlpesC1 t e do6Azur 291 6% 71,421 5%
GrandEst 162 4% 51,233 3%
Bretagne 156 3% 54,630 3%
Normandie 155 3% 45,409 3%
CentreVal-de-Loire 142 3% 57,601 4%
BourgogneFrancheComté 136 3% 48,707 3%
Total OTHER FRENCH REGIONS 3,832 85% 1,401,726 89%
GRAND TOTAL 4,512 100% 1,578,916 100%

b. Description of the portfolio

Icade Santé has become a major player in the healthcare reallgstddgelopingsince 2007, a portfolio of 114
healthcare assetecated exclusively in Franciaturing:

1 cash flows that start immediately;

9 initial lease terms of 12 years with no break clause and a weighted average unexpired lease term of 7.6 years
as of30 June 2019

1 a high margin rate
9 afinancial occupancy rate of 100%.

For the development and management of this type of asset, Icade c&antély on a team and esqtise
recognised by its peers.

The value othe portfolio evolved as follows:
c. Value of the portfolio

i For the sixmonth period ended0 June 2019

RIS 6 Fair value as
(in million of euros) of 31 Fair value cg Investmené)s and Like-for-like  Like-for-like of 30 June
December assets sold other change change (%)
2019
2018
Change from31 December 4,484.4 (20.0) 33.4 141 +0.3% 4511.9

2018to 30 June 2019

@ Fair valueas of31 December 2018
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@ Including changes in value of assets acquired during the findryeiar, works to assets softhd change in Icade SA stake in Icade Santé
when appropriate.

The methods used by the Group for evaluating its portfolio are described in naté the? audited financial
statements of the Issuer for the years ended 31 December 2018, 2017 and 2016 included in this Prospectus

The overall value of th&roupd portfolioi n c r e a 27&nnilliom gexcliiding duties) 00.6% for the sixmonth
period ende®0 June 2019%rom 04,484.4million for the year ended1 December 201® 04,511.9million for the
six-month period ende80 June 2019

For the sixmonth period ende@0 June 2019 i nv e st me n t38.4na nhad u notne d( Ged@milier ed t o
as of30 June 2018 It includedul6.8mi | | i on i nvested in projects S5&Gd om the
million in the Greater Narbonne private hospital projedflontredordesCorbiéres (completion scheduled for Q4
2020)3 atdmial 1 i omMtilmnt h e u i@ e phdee in SainHarbtaim fcompletion scheduled

for Q4 2019).

On a likefor-like basis,excluding disposals and investments made during the period, portfolio value increased by
014. 1 mi.IPlovertha sixononth period ended0 June 2019

ii. For theyear ended 31 December 2018

Fair value as Fair value as
) - of 31 Fair value of Investments and  Like-for-like Like -for-like of 31
(in'million of euros) December assets sold" other @ change change (%) December
2017 2018
Change from31 December 4,035.7 (1.1) 306.2 1436 +3.6% 4,484.4

2017to 31 December 2018

@ Fair valueas of31 December 2017

@ Including changes in value of assets acquired during the findryeiar, works to assets sofldnd change in I cade SA® sta
whenappropriate.

The overall value of th&roupd s p o increfised byi$48.7 million (excluding duties) of1.1% for the year
ended31 December 2018rom 04,035.7million for the year ende@1 December 201 04,484.4million for the

year ended31 Decembr 2018 due in particular to acquisitions and the positive impact of the three healthcare
facilities completed in 2018.

Fortheyear ended1 December 2018 i nv e st me n t3%l.4miklam (intltideddutiesoandifeesdlated
to acquisitions, incluaig:

1T acquisition of a port 188.8miol |0 fo nl 40.1miliohfidaggisijbnoime s f o
costs); and

1 acquisition of a posacute care (PAC) facility located in Montévrain (Seatéarne) for a total of
017.7million.

This was in addit o n 47.9millign in investments made during theear ended31l December 201 the
development pipeline as part of the following projects:

T Courl ancy pol ycl 4.0million(dompleRakiz2diBhes for U
Three of thefour healthcare facilities under developmevdre completed during thgear ended31 December
2018 representing nearly 10% of value creation generated bgringp

On a lke-for-like basis,the value of the portfolilncrease by 1143.6million or by 3.6% and waddriven by yield
compression, mainly in the siwonth period ende@0 June 2018reflecting a premium over French -y8ar
government bonds and other asset classes that remained attractive.

iii. For the year ended 31 December 2017
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Fair value as Fair value as

e ceetTH of 31 Fair value of  Investments and Like-for-like  Like-for-like of 31
(o e 0 EUTee) December assets sold" other @ change change (%) December
2016 2017
Change from31 December o
201610 31 December 2017 3,582.9 (5.6) 341.0 117.4 +3.3% 4,035.7
@ Fair value as oB1 December 2016
@ Including changes in value of assets acquired during the finduyeiar, works to assets saddnd change in lcade SAO sta

when appropriate.

The overall value of th&roupd por t f ol i o 45h8&milliera(sexelutingbdytiesi od2.8% for the year
ended31 December 201 7rom 03,5829 million for the year ende@1 December 201® 04,035.7million for the
year ende®1 December 2017

For the year endedl December 201inve st ment s 2bMmomiliort (@dudirigdutie§ and fees)of
w h i @28.4ndillion related to acquisitions, including:

T Clinique de | 6Europe p-Mawviat emé)p s @/c/mpilidnyr ed Rowead (S
9 Saint Roch polyclinic in Cabestanyyi@néesOr i ent al e s )76.5miligngi r ed f or U

1 Ormeau polyclinic in Tarbes (Hautesy r ® n ® e s ) 43S aqillionfaadd f or U

1 Helios disability care home in Saite r m® ( Ger s )9.8milliaqqui red for 0

This was i 9.0andlliebn ih inv@stimentsnadeliin the development pipeline as part of the following
projects:

T Courl ancy pol ycl 312milion;i n Bezannes for U
1 La Croix du Sud polyclinic in QuiAf o n s e g r B20aendlionf amd U
1 Elsan Stoa projectin Saihte r b | al58milfion.r U

Other investments made during the year en8&dDecember 201a mo u n t &&l3 million. Tlhey mainly
consisted of extension works or redevelopments generating additional rental income.

On a likefor-like basis, after (i) exclusion of works for the yesyed 31 December 201% o 25.8million, (ii)

exclusion of acquisitions, and (iii) adjustment for acquisition duties and fees and change in value of assets acquired
during the yeaended31 December 2017 t he val ue of the por3t3% ovkritheycarose by
ended31 December 2017

iv. For the year ended 31 December 2016

. Fair value as
(in millions of euros) ;aizt\‘/]?ilxjaas Fair value of  Investments and Like-for-like  Like-for-like of 31
Y assets sold” other @ change change (%) December

2016 2016
Change fromJanuary 1%, 2016 o
to December 31, 2016 3,070.8 0.0 204.4 307.7 +10.0% 3,582.9
® Based on Fair value as dft January 2016
@l ncluding changes in value of assets acquired dur i nrglcadelSentéf i nanci a

when appropriate.

The overall value of the GroupO6s i ncr oatlseyedr edgdB8l512 . 1
December 2016 from1 3, 0 7 0 . 8s ofrfi JAnuary®?0l6o i 3, 5 8 2 . for thmiydard ended@1 December

2016

For the year endedl1 Decembe2 0 1 6 , invest ments amounted to 0203. 2 mi
whi c h U 6B reldted o dcduisitions. The Group acquisition of a portfolio of four metbum care

facilities operated by Ramsay Santé (the leader in the French private hospital industry) ateoiured . 9 mi | | i o1

and included the following assets:
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1 the fiChalonnaié follow-up and rehabilitation care facility in @enoyle-Royal (S@&neet-Loire
department);

1 the fiPont de Gieno private psychiatric hospital i
1 thefiOcéane private psychiatric hospital in Le Havre (Seidaritime department);
1 thefiRonsard private psychiatric hospital in Chambrbs-Tours (IndreetLoire department).

On a likefor-like basis, after (i) exclusion of works for the yesmded December 31,20460r (1128 . 6 mi | | i
exclusion of acquisitions, and (iii) adjustmdor acquisition duties and fees and change in value of assets acquired
during the yeaended31 DecembeR016 t he val ue of the portfolio rose by
ended31 Decembep016

d. Development pipeline

. Number of . -

: o AT Estimated date of Rental Yieldon Totalcost Remaining to be
PrefEe il & EIras) completion Sk b;:jascggd income cost® ofproject i nveste
Clinique de | Q42019 Q2 Ramsay GDS 100 20 21
private hospital Puilboreau 2020 (formerly Capio) ’
Santé Atlantique health
complex (Bromélia) Saint Q4 2019 Elsan 169 8.2 2.1
Herblain
Greater Narbonne private
hospitali Montredondes Q4 2020 Elsan 283 47.8 28
Corbiéres
Le Parc polyclinia Caen Q4 2021 Elsan 288 19.6 17.4
.I_Vlorr)aypostacute care facilit 01 2021 Korian 82 10.2 76
I Saintes
Jonc Marins posacute care
facility i Le Perreuxsur Q32021 Korian 136 21.9 21.9
Marne
SaintCharles private hospital -

i La RochesurYon Q1 2022 Sisio 210 14.1 135

TOTAL PIPELINE as of o

30 June 2019 1,268 7.3 5.4% 141.8 92.5

®YoC = headline rental income / cost of the project laslcespoproved b

works and carrying costs.

As 0of 30 June 201%heGroupdp d evel opment pi plkll.8milien (costsmoiithe tprejects)t with ain
average estimated yield on cost of these proje&s1%.

e. Assetdisposals

Assetsdisposalgluring the sixmonth period ende@0 June 201 @ mount ed to 0U17.5 million ¢
private hospital in Ploemer (Morbihan) and the Pasteur private hospital ins\it§eine (Valde-Marne).

In 2018, asset disposals completed duringgg@wa s not signi ficant, at 01.5 mil!/

In 2017, aset disposals completed during trear were mainly related to a private hospitalisposedof for an
amountofi 7. 6 mil |l i on.

No disposal occurreth 2016
B) Leasing activity

a. Financial occupancy rate

The financial occupancy rate of the Group for thersbnth period ended 30 June 2019 and the financial years
ended 31 December 2018, 2017 and 2017 remained stable at A08% particular to the absence of break
clauses in the lease agreements of the Group
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b. Lease expiry schedule in terms of annualized |ERSsrental income

The Group weightedaverageunexpiredease ternmteachedr.6 years as 080 June 2019 0.2-year improvement
compared t@1 December 2018n the sixmonth period ended0 June 20198 leases were renewed or extended,
which contributed to securing leases over the long term.

Weighted average unexpired lease term (in years)
30 June 2019 31 December 2018 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

7.6 7.4 7.6 8.2

The table below shows thease expiry schedule in terms of IFRS annualised rental income.

H2 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 Total

(in million of euros) 2019 and
beyond

0.6 15.9 3.4 4.8 27.6 14.4 17.6 28.3 51.9 31.2 61.6 257.2

The table below shows the lease expiry scheduié of the total IFRS annualisgpiossrental income:

24,0%

20,2%
0,
10,7% 11,0% 12,1%
9 6,8%
6,2% 5 6%
o 1,3%  1,9% .
0.2% l mm B

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 >2028

3. EPRA Triple Net Asset Value

|l cade BEPRANNDNAWSt ood at 0§43, 030LJune 20014 618008 per oshare), as
02, 968. 21 2mi6l0I7i. @&m,chi WRi 84 7. 5 mi | 131 Denembee20iBO dund 20E831ly as of
December 201and31 December 2016 82 . 0 per share, 076.7 per share and
31 31 31
(in million of euros) 326];3(3 December December  December
2018 2017 2016
Consolidated equity 1,678.2 1,683.8 1,596.4 1,527.0
Impact of dilution from securities convertible or exchangeable into Icade shai - - -
Unrealised capital gains on property assets 1,400.4 1,328.5 1,074.2 870.5
lIEPRA Triple Net Asseti sVadmuei ndiiEcPaRtAo rNNAfVot) he Groupbds value
di stribution of dividends, based on two par ameatueadfasset (i) ch

portfolios and liabilities. It includes debt and financial instruments at fair value.
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Revaluation of fixeerate debt (46.9) (44.1) (63.4) (50.0)

EPRA NNNAV 3,031.7 2,968.2 2,607.2 2,347.5
Changes in % 2.1% 13.8% 11.1%

Number of shares at closing 37,740,836 36,198,224 33,998,310 32,603,806
EPRANNNAYVY in G4 per share 80.3 82.0 767 72.0

The favorable trend in EPRA NNNAWalue on a yeaonyear basis results mainlfrom the significant increase
in the Group set cash flowesulting from itsacquisition policyandthe strong increase in value of the property
assets.

The evolution oEPRA NNNAYV value sinc&1 December 2018 as follows

31 December 2018 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

(in million of euros) VS. Vs. Vs.
30 June 2019 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
EPRANNNAViIi n U per share 82.0 76.7 72.0
Change irconsolidated equity 0.1) 24 2.0
- of which capital increase 3.2 4.4 2.9
- of which dividends paid during the 1st semester (4.1) (3.6) (.1
- of which Net profit 1.2 1.8 21
- of which change in fair value of derivatives (0.5) 0.1) 0.1
Change irfair value of assets 19 7.0 6.0
Change in fair value of fixetate debt (0.1) 0.5 (0.4)
Change in number of shares to the NAV per share (3.4) (4.7) (3.0)
EPRANNNAViIi n U4 per share 80.3 82.0 76.7
M. Analysis of the Groupbs financi al position and resu
The foll owing information on the Groupos resul ts s h«

condensed consolidated financial statements for thensixnt h peri od ended 30 June 2
consolidated financial statements for the yearded 31 December 2018, 2017 and 2@k5set out in sectign

fiFinancial statements of the Issuer for the-mignth period ende®0 June 2018 a n dAudited financial

statements of the Issuer for the years er@le®ecember 2018017 and 201&of this Propectus, respectively

The Groupbs interim condensed c-monthpdriideraedS@Jurfe20i@amd i al ¢

the Groupds consolidated financi al statements for the
prepared inaccordance with IFRSIfternational Financial Reporting Standaindsas adopted by the European
Uni on. The statutory auditorsdé report on the | imited

statements for the simonth period ended 30 June 8@la n b e f o u Rimancialrstatermeentd of tlherissuigr

for the sixmonth period ende®@0 June 2018 o f this Prtatenypaedt uer 6 sSThaudi t rep
Groupds consolidated financial st at eand?20il6sanfedoundinhe vy e a
s e ¢ t Audited firfancial statements of the Issuer for the years eBtidgecember 2018017 and 201&of this

Prospectus

Thefigures are preented in millionof euros, with one decimal place, and all amounts are rounded up or down to
the nearest million unless otherwise indicated

1. Key performance indicators

As a subsidiary ofhe IcadeGroup, some of the main key performance indicators foldy Icade Sant@ave
been prepared in accordance vilik best practices defined by EPRA (European Public Real Estate Association) in
its Best Practices recommendations guide. The updated guide is available on the EPRA website

(in million eurog 30 June 2019 31December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2016

L www.epra.com
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Gross rental i ncome 129.2 241.0 214.9 207.3
EPRA earnings (in @ 106.0 191.0 169.8 161.4
EPRA earnings per s 2.93 5.43 5.20 4.95
EPRA NNNAV (in 4am) 3,0: 2, 91 2, 6 2, 3:
EPRA NNNAV earnings 80.3 82.0 76.7 72.0
LoanTo-Value (LTV)ratio 30. 31. 32. 31.
Average cost of drawn debt after hedging 2.10% 2.26% 247% 2.82%

i Gross rental income

Gross rental income is the indicator of revenue of the Group. As in the IFRS consolidated accounts, it corresponds
to the revenue generated from operating lease contracts in which the Group operates as a lessor. Gross rental
income includes rents from insnent properties and rerglated income such as entry fees, early termination fees

or service charges recharged to tenants.-Gpepents and refftee periods come as an adjustment to Gross rental
income, respectively as an increase or as a decrease.

ii. EPRA earning

It is a measure of performance of the recurring operations of the Group. It excludes fair value adjustments, the
impact of asset disposals, and limited other-cash items considered as awore activities for the Group.

EPRA earnings is aequivalent to the recurring portion of Net profit/(loss).

EPRA earnings per share corresponds to the ratio of EPRA earnings of the pdmmaveighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the period

iii. EPRA Triple Net ABsSWa) Value (AEPRA N

It is an indicator of the Groupbs value creation. I
par ameter s: (i) changes in the companyds equity, and
includes debt andrfancial instruments at fair value

EPRA NNNAV per share corresponds to the ratio of EPRA NNNAV of the period to the number of ordinary
shares outstanding at the closing of the period.

iv. LoanTo-Value ratio

The LoanTo-Value (LTV) ratio is a key indicator ithe real estate industrit corresponds to the ratio oiet
financial debt (as shown imote 6.1.1.1 of the audited financial statements of the Issuer for the years ended 31
December 2018, 2017 and 2016 inclddethis Prospectudp the latest fair valation of the property portfolio by
independent appraisef@s shown imote 5.3of the audited financial statements of the Issuer for the years ended 31
December 2018, 2017 and 2016 included in this Prospettescludes duties.

V. Average cost of drawnetht

The Average cost of drawn debt represents the average effective rate that the Group pays on its borrowings
(including loans and other liabilities such as capital leases and current accounts). It corresponds to the ratio of
recurring financial expensés the average net drawn debt over the period.

2. Other indicators of the statement of consolidated income
i Net rental income

Net rental income is another indicator of revenue of the Group. It corresponds to Gross rentas afteme
deduction of nosrecoverable rental charges such as operating expenses, service charges not recharged to tenants
and real estate expenseesurred by the owner

ii. Margin rate

Margin rate corresponds to the ratio of Net rental income to Gross ireuaie.
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iii. Net operating costs

Net operating costs correspond to expenses from recurring operating excludiegoverable rental charges such
as property taxes and operating expenses, service charges not recharged to tenants and real estate expenses

iv. EBITDA

EBITDA stands for Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization. It is an indicator of performance
from recurring operating activities. It corresponds to Gross rental income after deduction of expenses from
recurring operating activis.

v.  Operating profit/(loss)

Operating profit is an indicator of wealth creation from operating the assets, either on a recurringecurrary

basis. It corresponds to the EBITDA after aecurring income and expenses, i.e. income and expensesdhat ar

not considered in the appraisal of operating performance-r&mnring income and expenses include depreciation
charges net of government investment grants, charges and reversals related to impairment of assets and profit/loss
from acquisitions or assdtsposals.

Vi. Finance income/(expense)

Financial income/(expenses) mainly include(s) interest expenses from financial liabilities and derivatives,
restructuring costs for financial liabilities, and net income from receivables and loans.

Vii. Net profit/(loss)

Net profit/(loss) is an indicator of wealth creation and results from the difference between all income and all
expenses. It corresponds to the Operating profit less finance income/(expense) and tax expense.

3. Analysis of results for the sixmonth periods ended30 June 201%nd 2018

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
(in million of euros) eg:jnﬁ;Ags rec':?rri]ng Total egﬁsrgs rec':?rri]ng Total
(@) (@)

GROSS RENTAL INCOME 129.2 - 1292 115.1 - 1151
NET RENTAL INCOME 129.1 - 1291 111.6 - 1116
Margin rate 99.9% - 99.9% 96.9% - 96.9%
Net operating costs (6.4) - (6.4 (5.6) - (5.6)
EBITDA 122.8 - 1228 106.0 - 106.0
Depreciation charges net of government investment grants - (56.1) (56.1) - (51.6) (51.6)
Charges and reversals relatedipairment of tangible, financial and other current as: - 22 (22 - 0.2) (0.2)
Profit/(loss) from acquisitions - - - R
Profit/(loss) on asset disposals - 22) (2.2 - (0.1) (0.2)
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 122.8 (60.5) 62.2 106.0 (51.9) 54.1
Cost of net financial debt (15.0) - (15.0) (14.3) - (143)
Other finance income and expenses (0.4) 0.4) (0.8) (0.2) (10.2) (10.5)
FINANCE EXPENSES (15.4) (0.4) (15.8) (14.6) (10.2) (24.8)
Tax expense (1.4) - (149 1.1) 0.6 (0.4)
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) 106.0 (60.9) 45.0 90.4 (61.5) 28.8
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP 106.0 (60.9) 45.0 90.4 (61.5) 28.8
(@ The #@&Mcrurringo column includes depreciation charges f or méntsvtodisancment prope

instruments.

i Gross rental income

The Groupds gross rent albyidd mibioner by 12.8% forf thesibamomth period ncr e a s
ended30 June 2019%rom 0115.1million for the six-month periodended30 June 2018 0129.2million for the

six-month periodended30 June 2019This is mainly due to the acquisitions of 14 nursing homes during the

second halyear 2018 and the completion of extension works and development projects occurred during 2018
(refer to section Il\Value of the portfolicof this document).
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On a likefor-like basis, rental income went up Py®6 due to rent indexation.

(in million of 30 June Asset Asset New builds / Leazlnr:jg rzt;]ttwlty 30June Total Like-for-
euros) 2018 acquisitions disposals Refurbishments calkE 2019 change like change
115.1 4.9 0.2) 6.5 29 129.2 14.1 2.7%

ii. Net rental income

The Groupds net reyntal?7.i 5 cmimel firdhe sixenenth patiod erded? Jine
2019 from G 1 1 illién for the sixmonth period ende@0 June 20180 G 1 2 9nillidn for the sixmonth
period ended30 June 2019This increase is driven by the Gross rental income growth and by two early
termination payments received during the first semester of.2019

iii. Margin rate

As a result of the evolution of the Gross and Net re
points,for the sixmonth period ended0 June 2019from 96.9% for thdor the sixmonth period ended0 June
2018 to 99.9% millian for the sixmonth period ende80 June 2019

iv. Net operating costs

The G ougt operatibmyg 8nb.bt s ondp3r ¢ mgend he h s p & r3i0o0 d uenred e d
2019 fad (5mi6l)l i on -nMoorrt ht hpee r3i0oxd) uented @niti4A) | i on -moorrt ht hpee rsii oxd
end3®@ Jun&ghk®lBncrease i s mai nbnyundbueer tfoo |tl hoewiinngc rtehaes ed
2018.

V. EBITDA
As a resul t of the evolution of t he Net rent al i Nncome
by 016. 7 mi | | forothe siemonthbpgriodlebde@®) %une 2019from G 1 0 énillién for the six

month period ende80 June 201& G 1 2 millich for the sixmonth period ende80 June 2019

Vi. Recurring portion of Finance income/(expense)

The recurring portion of finance fothgsemantd geriodande8 ased b
June 2019from0 ( 1 4millién)for the sixmonth period ended@0 June 2018 G ( 1 Hnillidn)for the sixmonth
period ende®0 June 2019This increase is mainly due to the new financial debt subscribed in 2018.

Vii. EPRA earnings

The @ oEIMPRA earnings increasefdorb ytnhied Gshi6xp eni3i0d dd aenred €D 4 WY
framomid4l |l i on -mont it hpe r8i0oxd] uenfedie2d0GBLB per share)Y heosiix06.
mont h per3diod uefed 2Za0®r9 share), for the reasons stated ab

viii. Nonrecurring pottion of Operating profit/(loss)

The Gr o urgchrring potion of Operating logsc r eased by U8 6.B%, fonithe simonth or by
period ende®0 June 2019from U ( 5 nilli®n)for the sixmonth period ende@0 June 20180 U ( 6 Onillidn)

for the sixmonth period ende®0 June 2019This is mainly due to an increase ms set s®é6 amorti zat
impairment of assetsainly due to the acquisitions of 14 nursing homes during the secorgehal?018 and the

completion of extension woskand development projects which occurred during 2iBto the disposals of Ter

private hospital and Pasteur private hospiteflef to section I1Assets disposalsf this document

iX. Nonrecurring portion of Finance expense

The Gr o wgodrring pdtmmof Finance expenselecreaseth y 0 9 . 8for the dixinonth period ended
30 June 2019from G ( 1 Omillign) for the sixmonth period ende®80 June 201&o U ( O milllop for the six
month period ende80 June 2019This decrease is due to the gadpayment penalty of financial debt to Icade
SA for (9. 5 thesdixmdnih peniod éndedd Jurge 2018
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X. Nonrecurring portion of Net profit/(loss)

As a result of the two above variatiorls,é¢ Gr o u-nredursing pootion ofNet lossdecreased y 0.6million or
by 1.0%for thesix-month periocended30 June 2019rom G(61.5)million for the six-month periocended30 June
2018to 1(60.9)million for the six-month periocended30 June 2019

4, Analysis of results forthe years ended1 December 208, 2017 and 2016

a. Analysis of results for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
(lniloplofietios) B Non recurring q Non recurring
EPRA earnings @) Total EPRA earnings’ @) Total

GROSS RENTAL INCOME 241.0 - 2410 214.9 - 2149
NET RENTAL INCOME 235.9 - 2359 211.3 - 2113
Margin rate 97.9% - 97.9% 98.3% - 98.3%
Net operating costs (12.5) - (12.5) (11.0) - (110
EBITDA 223.4 - 2234 200.3 - 200.3
Depreciation charges net of government investment grants - (107.8) (107.8) - (97.5) (97.5)
Charges and reversals related to impairment of tangible, financial and other current assets @7 (7.7 (0.8) (0.8)
Profit/(loss) from acquisitions - (1.3) (13 - (0.2) (0.2)
Profit/(loss) on asset disposals - (0.0) (0.0) - 0.2 0.2
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 223.4 (116.9) 106.5 200.3 (98.3) 102.1
Cost of net financial debt (29.6) - (29.6) (28.4) - (28.4)
Other finance income and expenses (0.6) (10.1) (10.7) (0.4) (0.4) (0.8)
FINANCE EXPENSES (30.2) (10.1) (40.3) (28.8) (0.4) (29.2)
Tax expense (2.1) 0.6 (15) a.7) -
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) 191.0 (126.3) 64.8 169.8 (98.7) 711
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP 191.0 (126.3) 64.8 169.8 (98.7) 711

(@ The #&Mcmurringo col umn charges foruirvestmentdpeopertiese praditt(lass) from disposals and fair value adjustments to financial
instruments.

i Gross rental income

The Groupbs gross r ent alby6ilandioneor by L291%,ifdr the yeear erddg81l | ncr e a
December 208, from 0214.9million for the year ende81 December 201ib U241.0million for the year ended
31 December 201 ®enefiting from the acquisitions completed in 2018. These include

- acqui si fl4i3milion, inclading thhe ¥ nursing home portfoliol( 4 nur s i n g4dmiiome s) f or

- the completion of extensi on 8Wonilidnsof (@ thd RetheBezarnnesp me n t
polyclinic (30,000 sg.m, }fear offplan leasewith no break option with Courlancy Saptgb) the
Atlantique medicahub in St Herblain16,000 sq.m, X8ear offplan lease with no break option with El3an
and (c) the Croix du Sud private hospital in Quint Fonsegri86$500 sg.m, 1¥ear offplan lease with no
break option with Capipand

- impact of rent escalationdn asset marBdmikoment for 0

On a likefor-like basis, rental income went up by8% due to rent indexation.

(in million of Dec\z}nber Asset Asset New builds / Lea;:l? raet;ttlwty Dec:’;nber Total Like-for-
euros) 2017 acquisitions disposals Refurbishments o i 5018 change like change
214.9 14.3 (0.4) 8.8 3.4 241.0 26.1 1.8%

ii. Net rental income

The Groupds net rleynwtak4i @6c mmk | fordhe yeareesdedd Deteinber 2018
from U 2 1 Milli@& for the year ende@1 December 201% 0 2 3 Bnillién for the year ende@1 December
2018 This increase is directly linked to the Gross rental income growth
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iii. Margin rate

As aresult of the evolution of ther@ss andNet r ent al i n Margirerate dedreasedshy 0.41 hgiss
points, for the year ende&dl December 2018rom 98.3% for the year end&d December 201id 97.9% million
for the year ended1 December 2018

iv. Net operating costs

The Groupds Net oper at iiongrby d4s3%,sfor thenyear end&l ®©ecentbgr 2048L . 6 mi |

from G(211.0) mil I3l B®ecember 2017toh el (yle2a.r5)e nield i on for the vy

2018 This increase is mainly due to theini20l8.r ease of as
v. EBITDA

As a result of the evolution of the Net rent al i ncome

by G23.1 million or BYDetehheb2#l8 foomt 209 edar mielhddiedn f or

December 2017 o 23#2nillion for the year ende’il December 2018

Vi. Recurring portion of Finance income/(expense)

The recurring portion of finance expenses3liDecemberased b
2018 from u(28. 8) mi | 31iDecamber @01t ¢« hé ( ¥y@a2) emidleldi 8n f or t
December 2018This increase is mainly due to the new financial debt subscribed in 2018.

Vii. EPRA earnings

The Groupbs EPRA earnings increased BlyDedeaber@ from | | i on

0169.8 million 3f@cemieh20l{yi®&ark Oepaeed share) to 01321.0 mil

December2018 5. 43 per share), for the reasons stated above
viii. Non-recurring portion of Operating profifloss)

The Gr o wgrdrrngpbttion of Operatindossincreasedoy (018. 6 million or by 18.9

31 December 2018 from a(98. 3) mi 31 Decemberf2017 ot id 1y éad®) emdédi on

ended3l December2018 Thi s i tem i s c @&aipnasdaentpairmént ohassete.t s6 amor t

iX. Nonrecurring portion of Finance expense

The Gr o weuring pdrtiom of Finance expensem cr eased by 09. 6 BfliDedeinbem f or f
2018 from a(0. 4) mi I31Deemberf20l¥ ot KH)emili@refa the yean endedl December
2018 This increase is mainly due to the early repayment penalty of financiaibdehtle SA o 8.5million.

X. Nonrecurring portion of Net profit/(loss)

As a result of the two adowrmgeportioaof Netlossomcs easled ByoupRds 6
or by 28.0% for the year end&d December 2018 from G (98. 7) mi 31IDecemmberf0d t he vy e
0(126.3) mill i cBhDetember201Be year ended

b. Analysis of results for the yeamnded 31 December 2017 and 2016

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
(in million of euros) EPRA Nor_1 EPRA Non
earnings rect(]ar‘;mg Total earnings rect(J;;mg Total

GROSS RENTAL INCOME 214.9 - 2149 207.3 - 207.3
NET RENTAL INCOME 211.3 - 2113 204.0 - 204.0
Margin rate 98.3% - 98.3% 98.4% - 98.4%
Net operating costs (11.0) - (11.0) (11.2) - (11.2)
EBITDA 200.3 - 200.3 192.8 - 1928
Depreciation charges net of government investment grants - (97.5) (97.5) - (95.0) (95.0)
Charges and reversatslated to impairment of tangible, financial and other curr - (0.8) (0.8) - 0.2) (0.2)
g?cffeittlszloss) from acquisitions - (0.2) (0.2) - 13 13
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Profit/(loss) on asset disposals - 0.2 0.2 - 0.3) (0.3)

OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 200.3 (98.3) 102.1 192.8 (94.2) 98.6
Cost of net debt (28.4) - (28.4) (29.4) - (29.9)
Other finance income and expenses (0.4) (0.4) (0.8) (0.6) (0.2) (0.9)
FINANCE EXPENSES (28.8) (0.4) (29.2) (30.0) (0.2) (30.3)
Tax expense @.7) - 1) 1.4) 0.3 (1.1)
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) 169.8 (98.7) 711 161.4 (94.1) 67.2
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP 169.8 (98.7) 711 161.4 (94.1) 67.2
(@ The #&Mcrurringo column includes depreciation char darvalué adjustniems/te flmanced Nt pr ope

instruments.

i Gross rental income

The Groupds gr oss byemhsmilibn or by 8.&anfer the yearrerdadd Batember 2017

from U @7.3 million for the year ende@1 December 20160 U 24.9 million for the year ende®1 December

2017

On a likefor-like bass, leasing activity rose by @6 due mainly to rent escalation.

Changes in scope of consol idibonindudingtr epresented an incr

1 U5.6million in additional rental income related acquisitions, in particular the Ormeau polyclinic in
Tarbes and the SaHRoch polyclinic in Cabestany, both purchased in 2017;

1 U 1 miBion in additional rental income as a result of extension works and completions;

T 4(0.5)million in loss of rentaincome due to the sale of the &les polyclinic.

S 31 . Leasing activity 31 .
gﬂr?s”)“on o PRIy ac ﬁlssslgf)ns di?sgseztils re’;lfrvk\)ligrl:rltlisn{s I 0 PEEEE] cIth:lle Iillz:ek(e;r-mf;r:-e
2016 a P escalation 2017 9 9
207.3 5.6 (0.5) 1.6 0.8 2149 7.5 0.6%

ii. Net rental income
The Groupds net rleywt@?. 3 nmiolmdir theryear endedlydd@Emberia01 from

G 2 0 4nillién for the year ende@1 December 2016 G 2 1 iillié for the year ende@1 Decembe017.
This increase is directly linked to the Gross rental income growth

iii. Margin rate

As a result of the evolution of tterossandNet r ent al i ncome, the Groupbs Marg
for the year ende8@1 December 201{98.4% for the yeagnded31 December 2037

iv. Net operating costs

The Group©6s Nedecreaspdeslightlp y n @ 0c 8 s ms | | for tha year endddl De@emiefo
2017, from 0 ( 1 Imillidn) for the year ende®1 December 2016 U ( 1 Imillidn for the year ende®1
December 2017

V. EBITDA
As a result of the evolution of t he Net rent al i ncome
by a47.5 million or b3t Demde¥20l7f dmmr otmh &l 19QamlB ennmd &d on f or
[

December@l7t o 0200. 3 mi | i 3l Decémber20lhe year ended

Vi. Recurring portion of Finance expense

The recurring portion of finan

ce ses3ldecemberased b
2017, from a(30.0) mi | 31iDecambdr @016 ¢ h &

Xpen
Y&a8) emidleldi 8n for t
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December 2017This is mainly due to the decrease of average cost of drawifrdfstto section I\M.iquidity and
capital resource®f this Prospectus)

Vii. EPRA earnings

The Groupds EPRA earnings increased 3yecdnber20ldmoml | i on o
0161.4 million 3f@cemieh20l6yida®5epaed share) to 01369.8 mil
December201l7 5. 20 per readorsbstadd pbofeor t he

viii. Nonrecurring portion of Operating profifloss)

The Gr o ugrdrring fdviam of Operatinipssincreasedy 04. 1 mil Il i on or BY 4. 3%,
December207 from 0(94.2) mi 3llDecemberf@®d 0l O8y8&8ar mehdedn for
31 December 2017his is mainly explained by the amortization of new properties.

iX. Nonrecurring portion of Finance expenses

The Gr o wgrd@ring pertiam of Finance expensesained nossignificant for the year erd 31 December
2017 amounted to 00.4 mil |l i 8lMecembér2®6 mi | 1 i on for the ye:

X. Nonrecurring portion of Net profit/(loss)

As a result of the two -sbuoingeportiomafNedlosmormeag s € ch eb yGr bd.p®d smi
by 4.8% for the year ende?ll December 2017 fr om G ( 94. 1) mi 131 Deoemberf 20¥6 t he ye
0(98.7) mill i o3lDécember20le year ended

IV.  Liquidity and capital resources

The foll owing i nf ®ofnanaa resourcesoand fihahceng nBed® shquidl be read in conjunction
with the Groupbs interim condens emonthmenod ented 80aJune 2D19f i n a n
and the Groupds consolidated fliDecamber 2G18, 2087t aad 201Beagdets f or
out i n HBnancial statements f the Issuer for the-wignth period ende@0 June 2018 a Audlitedi

financial statements of the Issuer for the years ergfedecember 2018017 and 201® of this Prospectus,
respectively.

The Groupbs interim condensed c-monthpdriideraeddS@Jurfe20iRamd i al ¢

the Groupds consolidated financi al statements for the
prepared in accordaa with IFRS [nternational Financial Reporting Standandsas adopted by the European
Uni on. The statutory auditorso6 report on the | imited
statements for the simonth period ended 30 June 2019 cafileu n d i rfrinamcaakstatements df the Issuer
for the sixmonth period ende®@0 June 201® of this Prospectus. The statuto
Groupds consolidated financial statement sanlledoundinhe vy e a

s e ¢ t Audited firfancial statements of the Issuer for the years eBtidgecember 2018017 and 201&of this
Prospectus.

The figures are presented in million of euros, with one decimal place, and all amounts are rounded up or down to
the nearest million unless otherwise indicated
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1. Description of tpbliey Groupd financi al

Until 2015, Icade Santé was financed by Icade. Since 2015, Icade Santé began to organize it financial autonomy
withaf i rst c¢cl ub deal of U150 mill i on. iM@reasadfrg@3% bféshel ast 3
total gross financial liabilities at 31 December 28467 % of the total gross financial liabilities at 30 June 2019

The main characteristicg$ the actual financial policy are the following:

- LTVratio at 40 %

- 100 % of external financial debt at the end of 2023

- Hedging minimum ratio at 80 %.

The issue of the Notes subject to this Prospastimplemented as paof this financial policy.
2. Description of the Groupd fnancial resources

The Groupbés main financi akand fmancaldeltsdgainst anbadkdiog ef marletp i t a |
volatility, lcade Santécontinued to optimizéts financial resources and carried out the felty major financial
transactions:

- In 2016, the Group signealtwoy e ar , U5 0 amdialcdsh amlvancé ageeement with Icade SA for a
maxi mum amount; of 04200 million

- In 2017, the Group secured new bank debt facilities and mortgage financing fecuned G208 . 4 mi | | i

new swaps purchased for 01198.6 million;
In 2018, the Groupisednew debt facilities, 0200 million in Corpol
031 million in the form of f i nanc-andloagiesnefizedratBsvaps de s, t

for a total of 0250 mi |.Alithese trangactions$ adlowedatire tGfouplta continogto d e r i
implement an appropriate and optimized funding policy, by lowering the average cost of debt, main&ining it
average debt maturity above 5 years and diversifying its funding sources.

a. Capital increass

Over the sixmonth period ende@0 June 2019 t he company proceeded to a capit
subscribed but unequally in cash by its shamelders.

In 2018, the company proceeded to capital i ncreases of
I n 2017, the company proceeded to capital increases of
In 2016,n0 capital incease occurred.

b. Financial debt

i. Debt by type
As of 30 June 2019 gr oss financi al l'iabilities stood at U0l, 75¢
01, 104.8 mil |l i @hDecemep281@201i7 and 20¥6. labsokealdwn as follows:

- 01,506.7 million of corporatt oans (01, 216. @i Imi il d9457 milliah fedpectlv@lylas 681
December 2018017 and 2016) f  wh i c hilliod &€& gtantdd byricade S;A

-0193.8 million of finance Il eases (0U208.3 mil3ion, u
December 2018017 and 2016);

-055.1 million of other (055.3 mill i @dhDecedler281@6171 | i on
and2016).

ii. Debt by maturity date
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The maturity schedule of debt drawn by Ic&#mté(excluding overdrafts) as 80 June 201% as follows:

260,0

47,4

315,8
200,0

189,2 194,7 146 8
50,0 )
10]0 ! 108,0 95'4
19.1 42,2 36,0 37,6

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 +

External debt ' Internal debt

Internal debtconsists of loangranted by Icade SAinder the intragroup lmaagreements and the cash advance
agreementescribedn notes 10.2.1.3 and 10.2.108 the audited financial statements of the Issuer for the years
ended 31 December 2018, 2017 and 2016 included in this Prospgdwusroup reduced its internal debt over the
last three financial years, r o 684.3million at 31 December 2016 (representBig4% of the total gross financial

l'iabilities 1R.5ntllibreat 33 Mecantbgr, 2017 (ceprasentd’ 8% of the total gross financial
liabilities of the Group)U571.1 million at 31 Decerner 2018 (representing8.6% of the total gross financial
l'iabilities o0571l1nhllon a6 80oJune 201% (represdinting 32.5% of the total gross financial

liabilities of the Group).

iii. Average cost of drawn debt

For the sixmonth period ended0 June 2019the average cost of debt wag 8% before hedging (2.8 for the
six-month period ende80 June 201&nd 1,95%, 2.2 and 2.626 respectively in 2018, 2017 and 2016) and
2.10% after hedging (2.38 for the sixmonth period ende®0 June 2018nd 2.28%, 2.4P6 and 2.82%
respectively in 2018, 2017 and 2016).

2,9%

2,7% ~.

2,5% \

. \
2,1% \

1,9%

1,7% T T T T )
12/31/2016 12/31/2017 06/30/2018 12/31/2018 06/30/2019

- Average cost of drawn debt after hedging——Average cost of drawn debt before hedging

This decrease in the average cost of debt between thaosith period ende80 June 201%nd the sixmonth
period ende®0 June 2018as well as compared to the exercise 2018, 2017 and 2016) was achieved through the
proactive management of existing debt and interest rate hedges.

iv. Management of interest rate risk exposure
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Excluding debt associated with equity interests and bank ovesdvaftiable rate debt represented nearly 63% of
the Groupds 30Jdunead01956%,b419% and 41% fespectively as3df December 2018017 and
2016), with a hedging ratio of 69% (84%, 78% and 75% respectively3sbécember 20182017 and 208).

The outstanding hedging positions ag80fJune 201% as follows:

576,6 560,6

445,3 433,8

287,9
278.8 248,4

160,8  157,3  153,6

15

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 +

Most of the debt§9% as of 30 June 2019 aBd%, 78% and75% respectively as of 31 December 2018, 2017 and

2016) was protected against an increase in interest rates (fixed rate datiéble rate debt hedged by interest rate
swaps)As of 30 June 2019, the hedged debt was 88%, including hedges starting iA 2iet&iled analysis of the
notional amounts of hedging instruments icensoidatedwn i n
financial statements for the ssont h peri od ended 30 June 2019 and in
financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2018, 2017 and 2016, as set®wt tniFinancgal A
statements of the Issuar the sixmonth period ende@0 June 2018 a Audlitedifinancial statements of the

Issuer for the years end&d December 2018017 and 201&o0f this Prospectus, respectively

For the sixmonth period ende80 June 201@nd in the financial years 2018017 and 2016, the Group continued

its prudent debt management policy, maintaining limited exposure to interest rate risk while taking advantage of

|l ow interest rates. The t ot38June®if pé lllior§ u NIt3eidon ed 9 5. 2 mi
U 1 9 milligh respectively during the financial years 2018, 2017 and 2016).

The average maturity is 5.5 years for variable rate debt 2@ &fine 20195.3, 4.7 and 4.3 years respectively as of
31 December 2018017 and 2016) and 4.7 years felated hedges as 8D June 20195.3, 3.8 and 4.3 years
respectively as a1 December 2018017 and 2016

Finally, l cade Sant® favours classifying 1its hedgi ngd
standards; this involves recognisinanges in fair value of these instruments in equity (for the effective part),
rather than in the income statement.

V. Financial structure ratios

LTV (Loan-To-Value) ratio

The LTV ratio, which is the ratio of net financial liabilities and the latest valuaifothe property portfolio
excluding dutiesstood at 30.8% as 80 June 201%compared with 31.7%, 32.6% and 31.2% respectively 383 of
December 20182017 and 2016These LTV ratios calculated as part of bardovenants are well below the
maximum levebf 52%.

The accelerating growth of the portfolio value since the last 3 years explains the higif thedLTV ratio.
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ICR (InterestCoverageRatio)

The interest coverage ratio corresponds to the rat&B&f DA (as shown in the consolidated imee stéement set

out in the condensed consolidated financial statements of the Issuer as of 30 June 2019 and the audited financial
statements of the Issuer for the years ended 31 December 2018, 2017 and 2016 included in this Pro#pectus)

cost of net finanal liabilities (as showrin note 5.1.40f the condensed consolidated financial statements of the

Issuer as of 30 June 2019 and note 6.1.4 of the audited financial statements of the Issuer for the years ended 31
December 2018, 2017 and 2016 included is Brospectus)Such ratiowas 8.2x for the skmonth period ended

30 June 20197.5x, 71x and 66x respectively for the financial years 2018, 2017 and 2016). The ratio remains at a

high level, demonstratin t he Companyds abi Iwthitybatkecovenantef or t abl y compl

See also note 6.2@ the audited financial statements of the Issuer for the years ended 31 December 2018, 2017
and 2016 included in this Prospectus.

All covenants were met as 80 June 201@nd as o81 December 2012017 and 2016.
3. Description of theGr o u p 6 sategaiés of use ofinancial resources

The Groupds ma iindudd gortfadiandevielopmennfieaaaihg, dividerfds the shareholders, interest
payments and repayment of financial debt

a. Portfolio development financing

The Groupbs capital expenditure to finance its portfol
acquisitions or construction work. For the-sironth period ended 30 June 2019, capital expenditure amounted to
03.4 million (0U311.4 million, 6354.7 million and 0203

2018, 2017 and 2016). Figures are detailed in the tables below:

Asset Projects under

in milli @
(in million of euros) acquisitions development Other capex Total
Six-month period ended30

June 2019 0.3 16.8 16.3 334
2018 2115 47.9 52.0 311.4
2017 229.4 79.0 46.3 354.7
2016 65.7 84.6 52.9 203.2

MIncluding transfer duties and fees.

The analysis of the portfolio development is describegharagraph? Property Portfolio and leasing activity
above

c. Dividends

Dividends paid by the Group to its shareholders in 2019, 2018, 2017 and 2016 (for respectively the years 2018,
2017, 2016 and 2015) , respecti velny am®dbntltednittd i @h5 &A.nH
(respectively 4.34 U per share, 3.88 0 per share, 3. 2:

d. Interest payments and repayment of financial debt

The Group uses a portion of the cash flows it generates to the service aymieapof its financial debts. During

the sixmonth period ended 30 June 2019 and during the financial years 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Group paid
interests in the amount of 016.21 million, 0432.2 mil
repy ment of its financi al debts, the Group also paid 0c¢
respectively, during the simmonth period ended 30 June 2019 and during the financial years ended 31 December
2018,2017 and 2016.
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V. Corporate structure

The chart below sets out the corporate structure of the Group and its principal subsidiarg® hmef201:9

& 594 %

ICADE HEALTHCARE
EUROPE (Intemnational)

ICADE 34 Pradica
Cardif
CHP Aszsurances
hacif
Sogecap
w5684 % Jr 43,16 %
ICADE SANTE
{France)
Izzuer of the Motes

100% SCI Tonnay Iovest

100% 5CI Pont du Chatean Invest

100% SHC Ssolanes Invest

100% SCI Saint Augnstinvest

100% SCI Chazal Invest

100% SCI Dyjon Invest

100%% S5CI Courchelattes Invest

100% SCI Orleans Invest

100%% 5CI Marseills Le Bove Invest

100% SCI Grand Batailler Invest

100% 5CI Saint Crers Invest

100% 3CT Saint Savast

100% 5CI Bonnet Invest

100% SCI Goulame Invest

100% SCI Club Sante Savest

VI.  Administrative, Management and Supervisory bodies

l cade Sant®oc¢is®ta® Fpamcdavée t ho ras CHricBrgt)lmafm df ea
general) . d® ®gu®

52

deeiprud oyt eClErO



| cagdea Froecnc®t ®, raergasymehedNant&drre Trade and Compani es
undneumbe D 7882, | @Fdat RdeatCamill e Desmoul ins,am®1wB0ode sy
shaare | isted on the regul aFRAOMMa)REGBEBDHheEChanexmanPaf i
|l cade is an integrated real esteatpeg oplluzy sr awhlliosla edvé cie®
ur ban lainfde shtaybli et ss .

Xavi er ,[Cihreevcatleur g®Me®eradaded E®QYU®, 36 Yeaddse Cledht riad ea dg
and I nsead. He began2Wwbit kbegmahagemadenSahe®]I nvest ment
I nvest mentsuwdddqgreenDIiHre bk e aandejga®Rinn@tr @d d e@ Sa@rid7® as hel d t
posiutnitoinl 2019, Dahreenc theeu rb ego@dhn®dr ad.d € ®8 @YU ®

VIl.  Conflicts

Thesshuasntered into services agreemeadaslthwmaln cienta qarge eome
with ,iltcadmaj ori fursharetdebderiatter napbhbebgtvapht X.

Excemt respect of the agsaementhe mdaft @rthoefdet tharsea Pweoesmpoetc
conflicter @t bet ween anynednbteiress odwea dellynadmy eonfpnt vat e
and/ or other duties.

VIIl.  Major shareholders

Asoft he date of, tthhes 39P&.98s4p¥ catvmnsed by Ibeaddag, otwmedr dma iFmc

majloirfe insurance companies (Pr®dica, (<ae dnobotfe QBhRl AZ s
audited financi al statements of the |Issuer for the ye
Prosp.ectus)
IX.  Statutory auditor
Thetatutoony abdidMaxsauer | i mited Isioahi®tft i® yaynoegpmengr édd wi

Nant é@&raeée and CompanNeart)eRergedetr @ BBLMRE@R5B having its re
addr @d9sratxal ti s,nabull tr,ued 2HeOOr iCoRlergpbev oi e, France

X. Material contracts

n 20mh8, | ssuer seny&geee wéentttoa dient r usti ng asset manage
anagemedn tb i tfkwcrect i ons and swehrivcihc easr et ed dscér dilgbOa. d2d.fIn. 2n ot e
he audited financi al stat e3ne nDasc erhb @2h0eR A Isé&nude r2 Of 106r itnh
his Prospectus.

For the purposes of financi hgshdsd sV elmepmendt sefveirtad
with banks pursuant to corporate | oans which are descHt
| ssuer for the years ended 31 DecembeAs 200f1 830, 2J0uln7e a2n0d]
| oans drawn by the Group under t he(ssee ea garl eseomema rsa gar naopuh
abowve)

The | ssuer hianss wa Irisndt reangtreoruepd laonadn aa go exklpe@ad¢wemeae &vi t h
which are deesesrilbe@. LoBntame 4d40di2t dd4financi al stat eme

end3®Xd Decembez20 R0 18nd 2016 i ndAlsudbt dJ u me thddsdaBreno sbpye ctt hues
Gr owmpdtehre i ntragr ougpmd wratadb @& ftr@ é¢ melel Bd 13 0 1l.pa.r(aig) agpho v &)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE ISSUER FOR THE SIX-MONTH PERIOD END ED 30 JUNE 2019

The financial statements appearing below are the English translation ainthelited interim condensed
consolidatedinancial statements of the Issuer for #ig-month period ended0 June 201%&sreviewedby its
statutory auditoand free English translatiaf its review reporthereon appear on pagé of this Prospectus.

|. Unaudited interim condensed consolidatedinancial statements of the Issuer for the skmonth period
ended30 June 2019

1. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF JUNE 30, 2019 55
Consolidated income statement 55
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income 55
Consolidated statement financial position 56
Consolidated cash flow statement 57
Statement of changes in consolidated equity 58
2. NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 60
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1. Condensed onsolidated financial statements as afune 30,2019

Unless otherwise stated, the condensed consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of euros,
rounded to the nearest hundred thousand euros. Rounding differences may therefore occur between the different
statements presented.

Consolidated income statement

(in millions of euros) Notes 06/30/2019 06/30/2018
Gross rental income 44 134.7 115.1
Other income from operations - 0,0
Income from operating activities 134.7 1151
Purchases used - 0.1)
Outside services 8.3) (7.0)
Taxes,duties and similar payments (0.3) (0.3)
Other operating expenses (3.4) (1.7)
Expenses from operating activities (12.0) (9.1)
EBITDA 122.7 106.0
Depreciation charges net of government investment grants 411 (56.1) (51.6)
Charges and reversatslated to impairment of tangible, financial and other current assets ~ 4-1.1 (2.2) (0.2)
Profit/(loss) on asset disposals (2.2) (0.1)
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 62.2 54.1
Cost of net financial liabilities (15.0) (14.3)
Other finance income arekpenses (0.8) (10.5)
FINANCE INCOME/(EXPENSE) 514 (15.8) (24.8)
Tax expense 7.1 (1.4) (0.4)
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) 45.0 28.8
Net profit/(loss) attributable to necontrolling interests - -
Net profit/(loss) attributable to the Group 45.0 28.8
Net profit/(loss) attributable to the Gr /3 a 1. ua 0.
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

(in millions of euros) Notes 06/30/2019 06/30/2018
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 450 288
Other comprehensive income:

Other comprehensive income recyclable to the income statement: cash flow hedges 51.3.2 (175) (22)
- Changes in fair value recognised directly in equity (17.1) (1.7)
- Transfer of norhedging instruments to the income statement (0.4) (05)
Other comprehensive income not recyclable to the income statement 0.0 0.0
Total comprehensive income recognised in equity 00 00
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Including transfer to net profit/(loss) (175) (22)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (04) (05)
- Attributable to theGroup 275 26.7
- Attributable to norcontrolling interests 275 26.7
Consolidated statement of financial position

(in millions of euros) Notes 06/30/2019 12/31/2019
ASSETS

Net investment properfy 411 31134 3,1559
Financial assets &ir value through profit or loss 5.15.2 00 00
Financial assets at amortised cost 5152 13 13
Derivative assets 5.1.3 01 -
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 3,1149 3,1573
Accounts receivable 5151 157 6.8
Tax receivables 0.0 -
Miscellaneouseceivables 7.7 41
Other financial assets at amortised cost 5.15.2 77 -
Cash 5.1.6 4001 759
CURRENT ASSETS 4312 8638
TOTAL ASSETS 3,5461 3,2441
(a) Net investment property includes rigifiuse assets relating to building leasesgatordance with IFRS 16)see note 4.1.2

(in millions of euros) Notes 06/30/2019 12/31/2018
LIABILITIES

Share capital 8.1.1 5755 5520
Share premium 9864 9922
Revaluation reserves 5.1.3.2 (297) (122)
Other reserves 1010 86.9
Net profit/(loss) attributable to the Group 450 648
Equity attributable to the Group 1,6782 1,6838
EQUITY 16782 1,6838
Provisions 7.2 0.1 01
Financial debt at amortised cost 511 1,7026 1,4274
Lease liabilitie® 6 19 -
Tax liabilities 101 6.1
Other financial liabilities 5.15.2 72 6.3
Derivative liabilities 5.1.3 323 150
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,7542 1,4548
Provisions 7.2 - 0.0
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Financial liabilities at amortised cost 5.1.1 530 522
Lease liabilitie&) 6 01 -
Taxliabilities 109 148
Accounts payable 54 31
Miscellaneous payables 437 345
Derivative liabilities 5.1.3 0.7 08
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1137 1054
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 3,5461 3,2441
(b) The lease liability is recognized as a regiithe application of IFRS 16, which became effective January 1, 2019
Consolidated cash flow statement
(in millions of euros) Notes 06/30/2019 12/31/2018 06/30/2018
1) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit/(loss) 45.0 64.8 28.8
Net depreciation angrovision charges 61.7 114.5 53.5
Unrealised gains and losses due to changes in fair value (0.3) (1.3) (0.1)
Other norcash income and expenses 0.1 21 0.5
Capital gains or losses on asset disposals 21 (0.0) 0.0
Cash flow from operating activities after cost of net financial liabilities 108.6 180.1 82.7
and tax
Cost of net financial liabilities 14.7 30.8 15.8
Tax expense 14 15 0.4
Cash flow from operating activities before cost of net financial liabilities 124.7 212.4 99.0
and tax
Interest paid (16.1) (32.2) (15.8)
Tax paid (a) (1.6) (23.9) (1.6)
Change in working capital requirement related to operating activities 0.2 10.2 20.3
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 107.3 166.4 101.9
II) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Tangible and intangible fixed assets and investment properties
- acquisitions (38.0) (133.4) (64.6)
- disposals 17.5 2.2 1.8
Change in security deposits paid and received (6.9) 04 (0.6)
Operating investments (27.4) (130.7) (63.4)
Fully consolidated subsidiaries
- acquisitions - (82.7) 0.2)
- impact of changes in scope of consolidation - 3.7 -
Financial investments - (79.0) (0.2)
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (27.4) (209.8) (63.6)
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I1) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Amounts received from shareholders on capital increases 120.0 159.9 160.0
Dividends paid during the financial year -
- final and interim dividends paid by Icade Santé during the financial year (153.1) (132.0) (132.0)
Change in cash from capitalactivities (33.1) 27.9 28.0
Bond issues and new financial liabilities 301.6 228.6 -
Repayments of lease liabilities (0.0) - -
Bond redemptions and repayments of financial liabilities (24.3) (98.8) (22.4)
Current financial liabilities (0.0) (41.3) (31.2)
Change in cash from financing activities 5.1.1 277.2 88.6 (53.6)
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2441 116.6 (25.6)
NET CHANGE IN CASH (1) + Ity + (IlI) 324.1 732 12.7
OPENING NET CASH 75.5 2.3 2.3
CLOSING NET CASH 399.6 75.5 14.9
Cash (excluding interest accrued but not due) 400.1 75.9 17.1
Bank overdrafts (excluding interest accrued but not due) (0.5) (0.4) (2.1)
NET CASH 399.6 75.5 14.9
(a) Tax paid primarily includes the exit tax and CVAE
Statement of changes ionsolidated equity
Other reserves .
(in millions of euros) g;)?{:l pr?rﬁlrﬁn Rerzgggsggn prgztc}(lrl)ests) attirziglzjtlgyble cpr"n\tlr%rl]l-ing ;;Jljie;;
attributable to  to the Group interests
the Group
01/01/2018 5185 9410 6.8) 143.8 1,596.4 1,596.4
Net profit/(loss) - - - 28.8 28.8 28.8
Other comprehensive income:
- Changes in value of cash floy - - @.7) - @.7) @.7)
hedges
Somsovemeane g . os 09
statement
Comprehensive income for the - - (2.2) 28.8 26.7 26.7
financial year
Dividends paid - (75.2) - (56.8) (132.0) (132.0)
Capital increase 335 126.4 - - 160.0 160.0
06/30/2018 5520 9922 9.0) 115.8 1,651.0 1,651.0
Net profit/(loss) - - - 36.0 36.0 36.0
Other comprehensive income:
- Changes in value of cash flo - - (2.6) - (2.6) (2.6)

hedges
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- Revaluation reserves for cash flo

hedges recycled to the incomr ) ) ©05) . 05 (0.5)
statement

Comprehensive income for the - - 3.2) 36.0 32.8 32.8
financial year

Dividends paid - - - - - -
Capital increase - (0.0 - - (0.0) (0.0)
Other - - - (0.0) (0.0) (0.0)
12/31/2018 552.0 992.2 (12.2) 151.8 1,683.8 1,683.8
Net profit/(loss) - - - 45.0 45.0 45.0
Other comprehensive income:

- Changes in value of cash flo - - (17.2) - (17.1) (17.2)
hedges

- Revaluation reserves for cash flo

hedges recycled to the incomrr N - (0.4) - 0.4) (0.4)
statement

Comprehensive income for the - - (17.5) 45.0 275 275
financial year

Dividends - (102.3) - (50.8) (153.1) (153.1)
Capital increase 235 96.5 - - 120.0 120.0
Other - - - (0.0 (0.0) (0.0)
06/30/2019 5755 986.4 (29.7) 145.9 1,678.2 1,678.2
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Note 1. Accounting methods, rules and principles

1.1. General information
| c aSdaen(ttih e CaOmpsanay Fr enc h-sg iomk!| icfoimpd njyo i( IBtAS) . l'ts regi s
27 rue Camille DéeMowlliimsguxX2lB®dic®891ARAs oft was 56. 84¢

companySAl déde 77% a3l of2DeE&)e.mbler i s B | yoroanlsiod datdead efdi
statements.

The condensed consolidated finad@, ak®fElQectte memea sf ifroan di
and profits and | osses offfihteh & JTChaepp awmeyr ea npdr @ pt asr esdu bisn de u
Comp@&@nyunctional <currency.

As 0f30,un2019, the Group consi staetde sofa sl 5a cpornospod ritdya tiend\
healthcare sememat crey varces providers with the ownershi
across France.

1.2 Accounting standards

The Groupds condensed c ons didlfiyghrehdedIurdd 2019 have badn preparedt e me n
in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union as of
June30, 2019, pursuant to European Regulation No0.1606/2002 datedQJuR002, and includeomparative

information (Z' half of2018 or Decembe31, 2018) prepared under the accounting standards applicable at the
reporting date.

The international accounting standards are issued by
haven beedopttheedr bgean Uni on. They (ilmcdlerdeatti loen all FRA®,c otulme
and their interpretaataiomdl eTliose viteawvn cdhayisbswetbrhéet Eur ope

The accounting methods and measurement bases by the Group in preparing the condensed consolidated
financial statements ardentical to those used for the consolidated financial statements as of De8dmbets,
2017 and 2016, subject to the specific provisions of 34% Interim financial reprting described in noté.3.3,

and except for those mandatory standards, interpretatiorsnagrdments to be applied for periods beginning on
or after Januarg, 2019, which are detailed in ndte?.1 below.

1.2.1 Mandatory standards, amendments and inérpretations adopted by the European Union which
became effective on January 1, 2019

There were no new standards or interpretations avail al

1.2.1.1 IFRS167 Leases

Thi s new mandatory standard, 1whi2dHh 9b e csaln¥e rasredl e s € il 8ASe
interpretations. As f ar as |l essees are concerned, it
|l eases. Lessees aore alelquli € ade 4t hi(eaxeaxeepmmptt i bnd 6pr omi e d
manner similar to the €xi sftoirndf irnequwierelmeeanstéss-puhngdreart rlii AsS
asset and a |l ease liability paymerstaatingthe obhsght d
financial ©position, for the duration of the reasonabl

tlhttp://ec.europa.eu/internal _market/accounting/ias/in
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For the Group, thelémbarecml sdh2@pPYyiys nded &¢rRiSbed bel ow. T
provided fi6arndi nt hlaRERSre applied to the c¢ar0so0l20dla%x ear ef
descri bedd 1i.n2 .naontde s

f Transitional measures adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following transitional me as

1 The Group has used the modified retrospective approach since Jan@aad. As a result, comparative
periods have not been restated,;

1 The Group has opted for the following practical expedients:

- A practical expedient making it possible not to apply IABSto contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease applying IABand IFRIC4;

- Exemption for leases with a remaining term ofi@nths or less;

- Exemption for leases for which the value of the underlying asset when it is newtisheasn 05, 00 O ;

1 The amount of the lease liability recognised as of JariaB019 is the present value of the lease
payments to be made over tigasonably certain lease term (see below for further details about lease
terms);

1 The rightof-use asset is maa®d at an amount equal to the lease liability adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid lease payments tlwetuld otherwise have been recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as of Decembat, 2018;

1 The rightof-use asset does riatlude initial direct costs;
1 Asof Januaryi, 2019, the rate used in calculating the present value of the lease payments to be made over

the reasonably certain | ease t eiThsisithe rate htdan@tyoup 6 s i
2019 forcontracts in progress at that date and it depends on the remaining lease term;

1 Rightof-u s e assets relating to assets hel d under | ea
propertieso on the asset si de o fon.tTheeassociatedsleasei d at e c
l'iabilities are shown under t he heading fiLease I

statement of financial position, broken down between commitments falling due within one year and
commitments falling due after eryear;

1 In the consolidated cash flow statement, principal repayments on lease liabilities affect cash flow from
financing activities, and interest paid on lease liabilities affects cash flow from operating activities;

1 In order to determine the reasohabertain lease term, management carries out an assessment that takes
into account the particular features of each lease tfegexistence of early termination clausesdso
referred to & svithfbwitlkoat lsignifidard pesadtisspthe existe of lease extension
clauses, etc.).

The leases identified by the Group consisted exclusively of building leases.

ati bl ectwvesmeef f commi tdnle,nt 80 1a& arfd Dtelcee

T Reconcili
ity relplriegatinit demagted tpmayknee nit sl ,a s2 001f9 January

i
i abil:i

in million of euros

Operating lease commitments as a lessee as of December 31, 2018 6.5

Leases not recognized in accordance with exemptions under IFRS 16

Undiscounted lease liabilities in accordance with IFRS 18&s of December 31, 2018 6.5
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Effect of discounting (4.6)

Total lease liabilities as of January 1, 2019 after applying IFRS 16 1.9

T Impact on the consolidated statémeg016f financi al
For the initiallé6tatpepl d¢ @rad oloind aotfed FsRtSat e mentl, of20fLi9n avacsi
i mpacted as foll ows:

- Rigohise assets relating to buildi mignJesatsmesndwepreo pge

1.2.1.2
The

1.2.2

for mi2a.l0 on;

A total amadrdti exdfownals. s9%ed wunder fiLee arseew Idi.iarbe liittd rm,s i
Interpretations and amendments

foll owing interpretation and ®2mMemMdments became eff

IFRIC interpretation 23" Uncertainty over income tax treatments. Thiseipretation clarifies how

IAS 127 Income taxes should be applied to determine the items related to income tax, when there is

uncertainty over the income tax treatments used by the Group under applicable tax rules. The application
of these guidelineshaso i mpact on the Groupébés condensed consol

Amendments to IFRS T Prepayment features with negative compensation. The application of these
guidelines has no impactontGer oup6s condensed consolidated financ

Amendments to IAR8 I Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures (not applicable to the
Group);

Amendments to IA2971 Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement (not applicable to the Group);

Annual improvements to IFRS Standards (2@(BL7 Cyck). The application of these guidelines has no
i mpact on the Groupds condensed consolidated finan

Standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the IASB (International Accounting
Standards Board) but not yet adopted by théeuropean Union

Effective from January 1, 2020:

Amendments to IAS 1 and IASi8Definition of material
Amendments to IFRS B Definition of a business

Amendments to references to the conceptual framework in IFRS standards.

Effective from January 2022:

Dz
1.3.
13.1

IFRS 171 Insurance contracts (not applicable to the Group).
Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements

Measurement bases

The financial statements have been prepared according to the amortised cost methbd,exitktion of certain
financial assets and liabilities which are recognised at fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measwent date. IFRS 1B Fair value measurement utilises a fair value
hierarchy across three levels:

63



Dz Level 1: fair value measured based on unadjusted prices quoted in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;

Dz Level 2: fair value measured based models using observable data, either directly (i.e. prices), or
indirectly (i.e. data derived from prices);

Dz Level 3: fair value measured based on market data not directly observable.

According to the principle of relevance and the ensuing materialiipm only information deemed relevant and
useful to the usersd understanding of the consolidat ec¢

The Group does not employ staff. It has delegated the management of its property assets as well as advisory and
assistancavork to its parent company Icade S2ee note 9.2 on related parties

1.3.2 Use of judgement and estimates

The preparation of financi al statements requires the
determine the carrying amount of certassets, liabilities, income and expenses, to assess any positive or negative
contingencies as of the reporting date, as well as the information provided in the notes to the financial statements.

The significant estimates made by the Group in preparingoitslensed consolidated financial statements are
identical to those described in the consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017
and 2016.

Due to the uncertainties inherent in any measurement process, the Group reviestisndges on the basis of
regularly updated information. The future revenues of the projects concerned may differ from estimates made at the
reporting date.

I n addition to using estimates, t he Gr oup Gascountiagn a g e me n
treatment for certain operations and transactions where current IFRS and their interpretations do not specifically
address the accounting issues raised. In particular, management has exercised its judgement in measuring the right
of-use assetand lease commitments that were used in applying IFRSL&ases and, in particular, in determining

lease terms (see notes 1.2.1.1 and 4.1.2).

1.3.3 Specific rules applying to the preparation of condensed consolidated financial statements

Condensed conddhted financial statements do not include all the financial information required for annual
consolidated financial statements and should therefo
financial statements as of DecemBér 2018, 2017 an2016.

In accordance with IA84, the tax expense for D19 was calculated by applying, for each company, the
average effective tax rate estimated for the full financial year to the profit/(loss) before tax for the interim period.
This rate was estimated basat2019 data approved by management.

I n addition, the Groupds real estate assets are value
methods described mote4.2.

Note 2. Highlights of the half years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
2.1 Half-year ended June 30, 2019

2.1.1 Investments and disposals completed

The Group made no significant acquisitimrglisposals during the period.
2.1.2 Finance

During the period, the Company made a (l1l2u0unévenigni | I i on
subscribed in cash by its shareholders.
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2.2 Half-year ended June 30, 2018
2.2.1 Investments and disposals completed
The Group made no significant acquisitions or disposals during the period.

2.2.2 Finance

During the period, the Company madeladl 6 0. 0 mi | | i on capit al i ncrease

subscribed in cash by its shareholders.
Note 3. Segment reporting
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

In accordance with IFRS 8 Operating segments, segment information must be structured accoodihg t

operating segments for which results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to
assess their performance and make decisions about resources to be allocated to such segments. Segment

information must be consistent withtémnal reporting to the chief operating decision maker.

The Groupbds activities consi st in assisting heal

development of healthcare properties across France. These properties includearshamedum-term care
facilities (private hospitals, rehabilitation centres) as well as-teng facilities (nursing homes).

During the half years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, the Group measured the performance of its operations taken

as a whole.

As a result,tionly reports on one operating segment.
Note4. Property portfolio and fair value

4.1 Property portfolio

411 Investment properties excluding rightof-use assets relating to building leases

t hca

The net carrying amount of i wHute @ s tamesrett spmaep eartti ings tex cobl

JuBeé@, 20109 amounnieldl i ba. 08t 11lclarbsi st ed exclusi vel
053mi Pl ion under financdl dwessterse naT mgertothpeef réctd messod € edmd n th
eases

financi al posi toHucsre satsesmest sf rroerh artiignlgd e lo. D)u.i | di ng |

Acquisitions Net Net reversals
S and . L of Other
(in millions of euros) 12/31/2018 RS Disposals depreciation impairment changes 06/30/2019
charges
work (a) charges
Gross value 3,761.8 33.4 (33.2) - - . 3,762.0
Depreciation (597.5) B 6.3 (56.1) - i (647.4)
Impairment (83) - 7.3 - (2.2) . (3.2)
rrl\lEvTE\s/?kAUEEr\ng " 3,155.9 334 (19.6) (56.1) (2.2) ) 31115

PROPERTIES (b)(c)

(@l ncluding capitalobmilikod finance costs for

)l n addition to the assets making up the property porrglit-ofuse assetstrdiaingtoe adi ng

building leases (in accordance withIFR6) f or 01.9 million.
(c) I ncludes investment properties under finance | e 2smillienadod06/3082019.et carrying
In H1 2019, i nv emilliomeciudisgptimardlyal ed 033. 4
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Dz Projectsi n t he devel opment pipeline for 016.8 million
and SaintHerblain;

Dz Ot her capex for 010.1 million.
41.2 Right-of-use assets relating to building leases

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Effective from January 1, 201

Dz In the consolidated statement of financiofuse posi ti
assets relating to building leases; and

Dz I n the consolidated income statement, fiDepreciati
includesdepredation charges on these assets.

Right-of-use assets relating to building leases are measured initially at cost, which includes the following amounts:
- Lease liabilities measured as described in note 6;

- Prepaid lease payments.

These assets are depiated on a straigitine basis over the course of tteasonably certain lease term.

Right-of-use assets relating to building leases may be remeasured over the reasonably certain lease term in any of
the following circumstances:

- Lease modification;

- An increase or decrease in the assessment of the lease term;

- An increase or decrease in the assessment of lease payments linked to an index or a rate;
- Any impairment losses.

Reasonably certain lease term

For each lease falling within the scope of IFRg the lease term is assessed by management in accordance with
the proceduresrpvided for under the standard.

The lease term used for each lease is the reasonably certain lease term. The latter-satheeiiable period of a
lease adjusted for thelfowing items:

- Any option to early terminate the lease if the Group is reasonably certain not to exercise that option;
- Any option to extend the lease if the Group is reasonataio to exercise that option.
Impairment tests on right-of-use assetselating to building leases

The collectibility of rightof-use assets relating to building leases is tested where events or changes in the market
environment indicate those assets may be impaired. If the net carrying amount of an asset becomes higher than
recoverable amount, the difference between those two amounts is recognised as an impairment loss.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and the value in use. The value in use
is measured based on the presentevalithe future cash flows expected tsarfrom the use of the asset.

If there is an indication that an impairment loss no longer exists and the recoverable amount again becomes higher
than the net carrying amount, impairment losses on -affose asds relating to building leases that were
recognised in previous financial years are reversed, up to the impairment amount initially recognised less any
additional depreciation that would have been recorded hatipairiment loss been recognised.
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Impact of the Depreciation o reversals of

S initial n charges / ; "

(in millions of euros) 12/31/2018 application of Disposals Finance expense |mcp|$$rrmssnt 06/30/2019
IFRS 16 for the period 9

Gross value . 2.0 N N 2.0

Depreciation B - ” 0.9 - 0.9

Impairment - -

Right-of-use assets . 2.0 ) °

relating to building ©9 1.9

leasesnet value

4.2 Valuation of the property portfolio: methods and assumptions

42.1 Valuation assignments

The Groupds property asset s peopeeyvaleels forethk publivatianefthe half e ar b )
year and annual financial statements, according to a framework consistent with the SIIC Code of Ethics published

in July 2008 by the French Federation of Real Estate Companies (Fédération des sociétékeigsnebi

foncieres).

Property valuations were entrusted to Jones Lang LaSalle Expertises and Catella Valuation FCC.

The valuers are selected through competitive bidding. The property valuers consulted are selected from among
members of AFREXIM (French Asciation of Property Valuation Companies) and are appointed for a maximum
period of three years.

In accordance with the SIIC Code of Ethics, after seven years the Group shall ensure that there is an internal
turnover of the teams responsible for the atibn of its assets in the selected property valuation company. The
valuer may not be appointed for more than two consecutive terms of four years except where the valuer has met the
requirement with regard to the internal turnover of the teams.

For all cortracts having expired on December 31, 2017, the Group invited the main property valuation firms to a
selection process in order to assign one or more of them theyeécky valuation of part of its assets. Property
valuers were selected based on critefiidndependence, qualification, reputation, expertise in property valuation,
organisational capacity, responsiveness and price. Following this selection process, the contracts of Catella
Valuation FCC and Jones Lang LaSalle Expertises were renewed.

Property valuation fees are billed to the Group on the basis of a fixed service fee that takes into account the
specificities of the properties (number of units, number of square metres, number of current leases, etc.) and that is
not based on the value thfe assets.

The assignments of the property valuers, whose main valuation methods and conclusions are presented hereafter,
are performed according to professional standards, in particular:

Dz The Property Valwuation Ch ar t iemr imnfokiligra)r fifte edidiom | 6 e xp
published in March 2017,

Dz The Barthés de Ruyter report from the French Securities and Exchange Commission (COB), which is
part of the French Financial Markets Authority (AMF), dated February 3, 2000, on the valuation of the
property assets of publicly traded companies;

Dz On an international level, the European Valuation Standards of TEGoVA (The European Group of
Val uersé Associations), published in Apri.l 2009 i
the Royal hstitution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).

These various texts specify the required qualifications for the property valuers, a code of conduct and ethics, and
the main definitions (values, floor areas, rates and main valuation methods).
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During each valuatio session and when valuers submit their valuation reports, the Group makes sure that the
methods used by the different property valuers to value its assets are consistent.

Valuations are calculated both inclusive and exclusive of duties, the values egauties being net of duties and
fixed legal expenses calculated by the property valuers.

Onssite visits are systematically conducted by the property valuers for all new assets added to the portfolio. Further
onsite visits are then organised according tmultiyear schedule or each time that a specific event in the life of
the building requires it (occurrence of significant changes in its structure or environment).

All the assets, including the land bank and projects under development, were valuddras 20, 2019 according
to the procedures currently in place within the Group, with the exception of:

Dz Properties subject to a preliminary sale agreement as of the end of the reporting period or those for
which an offer has been received and that areecabased on the price indicated in the agreement
excluding duties;

Dz Properties acquired less than three months before the end of thednalivhich are valued based on
their net carrying amount.

In 2015, the Group also established a process of iteahsations performed by its asset management teams, in
order to verify the asset values obtained by the property valuers, and to gain a better understanding of the future
performance of the portfolio on the basis of the business plans defined. Thisspiopdated on a yearly basis.
However, assets whose business plan changes materially are subject4gearalipdate.

42.2 Methods used by the property valuers
The methods used by the property valuers are identical to those used in the preaitzialfyear.

Private hospitals or other healthcare properties are valued by property valuers based on the mean of the values
obtained using the rent capitalisation method (also k
cash flow method.

The market value of a hospital is essentially dependent on its operation and its ability to generate sufficient income
to provide a reasonable return on the property investment. These buildings fall under the category-usesingle
buildings and their Vae determined by the property valuer is totally related to their operation and consequently to
the value of the underlying business. Also, since these premises are unsuitable for any other use without substantial
conversion works, they are not subjecteat ceilings upon lease renewals or rent reviews or to the traditional rules

for determining the estimated rental value.

The estimated rental value used by the property valuers thus takes into account a share of the average revenue or
EBITDA that the infitution has generated during the last years of operation, with or without adjustment for
category, administrative environment, quality of operating structure (price positioning, hospital fee agreement with

the French Social Security, income statement, ¢tc and competitive position. Al
premises can be valued by capitalisation of the gross rental income reported by the Group.

42.3 Main valuation assumpgions for investment properties

Market yields (income
capitalisation)

Rates fordiscounting

cash flows (DCF) Exit yields (DCF)

Methods generallyused

Paris region Capitalisation and DCF 5.3%- 6.5% 4.9%- 6.5% 4.5%- 6.0%
Outside the Paris region Capitalisation and DCF 5.1%- 8.4% 4.7%- 8.5% 4.4%- 8.0%
4.3. Fair value of the property portfolio

43.1 Unrealised capital gains on the property portfolio

Total unrealised capital gains on investment properties held by the Group as of June 30, 2019 are presented below:
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(in millions of euros) 06/30/2019 12/31/2018 Chg. June 2019 Dec.

2018

Fair value 45119 4,4844 275

Net carrying amount 31115 3,1559 (44.5)

Unrealised capital gains 14004 13285 719
Unrealised capital gains amounted to Ul,400.4 milliol
million compared to December 31, 2018.

4.3.2 Impact of impairment charges on the income statement

The impact of i mpair ment charges on the income stater
related to impairment of tangible, financialand@r current assetso of the consoli
For the half year ended June 30, 2019, a 02.2 million
For the half year ended June 30, 2018, net i mpair ment
0.9 million and a reversal of 040.7 million.

4.3.3 Sensitivity of the net carrying amounts of appraised assets to potential changes in fair value

The sensitivity of the net carrying amounts of appraised assets to potential changes in fair value ranging from
5.00% to +5.00% are shown in the table below:

Changes in fair value of investment properties

in millions of euros (5.0%) (2.5%) 2.5% 5.0%

Total as of 12/31/2018 (14.6) (8.5) 04 0.7

Total as of 06/30/2019 (11.2) (4.9) - 0.1
44 Gross rental income

The Group assists the major operators of healthcare and senior services facilities with the ownership and
development of healthcare properties in France. Leases are signed on abfadditility basis. Gross rental
income by operator was as follows:

(in millions of euros) 06/30/2019 06/30/2018

ELSAN 73.3 56.7% 69.1 60.0%

RAMSAY GENERALE DE SANTE(INCLUDED CAPIO) 36.3 28.1% 329 28.9%

OTHER OPERATORS 32.3 25.0% 23.1 20.1%

Total 129.2 100.0% 115.1 100.0%

I n H1 2019, the Group generated gross rental i ncome

increase on a yeamyear basis.

I n H1 2019, 75. 0% of the Groupb6s gross rental i ncom
propertiesheld by the Group. This percentage stood at 79.9% in H1 2018.

No individual tenant accounts for more than 10% of total gross rental income.
See note 5.2.5 for further information about credit risk.
Note 5. Financeand financial instruments

51 Financial structure and contribution to net profit/(loss)
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51.1 Change in net financialliabilities

5111

Breakdown of net financial liabilities at end of period

Net financial debt as of June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018:

(in millions of euros) 06/30/2019 12/31/2018

Medium and longterm financialiabilities (a) 17026 14274
Short-term financialiabilities (a) 530 522
GROSS FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 5.1.2 17557 1,4796
Interest rate derivatives (assets and liabilities) 51.3 329 157
GROSS FINANCIAL LIABILITIES INCLUDING DERIVATIVES 17885 1,4953
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5.1.5.2 (0.0) (0.0)
Cash 5.1.6 (4001) (75.9)
NET FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 13883 14193

(@i ncl udi mdlionid |ZatieSAas of Juneg O ,
G 5 7 fnillidh to IcadeSA as of Decemb@&r 1 ,

201M®i I(l1dilo3n. 7s h or t milioe mediuna and long %eBnj and
20 1mi I(lGilo3n. 7s h o r millibnemedium and tbnghednd 7 . 4

The change in gross debt (excluding derivajy@mpared to December 31, 2018 mainly resulted from:

enedbt fbnst

- Three new corporate |l oans taken out totalldi
million;
- The nor mal amortisation of l oans freml
million;

- The early termination of finance | eases for

5.1.1.2 Statement of changes in net financial liabilities

For the half year ended June 30, 2019, changes in net financial liabilities broke down as follows:

Changes with no impact on cash flow
(in millions of euros) 12/31/2018  Cash flow Cgfgg:zf'” Ftilrroﬁ;lﬁe i%':o‘azﬁe Other  06/30/2019
consolidation pr?;';sr reserves ClENTEEs
Financial liabilities 14796 2774 12) 17557
Derivative liabilities 157 02 171 (01) 330
Other financial liabilities and lease liabilitis 63 28 9.1
TOTAL LIABILITIES 15016 2774 0.2 171 16 1,7978
Derivative assets (0.0) (0.1) (0.1)
Other financiahssets (13) (7.7 9.1)
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 13) (0.1) @7 (92)
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 15003 2774 01 171 (62) 1,7886
Exclusion of deposits and guarantees:
- Deposits and guarantees received (6.3) (0.9) (7.2)
- Deposits and guarantees paid 13 e 9.1

TOTAL DEBTS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,4953 2774 0.1 171 0.7 1,7905
Other financial liabilities and lease liabilitfés (1.9)
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or fss (0.0 (0.0
Cash (759) (4001)
1,4193 1,3884

TOTAL NET FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(a) Lease Iliabi

ities recognised

(b) This item consists of unconsolidated subsidiaries.

5.1.2 Components of financialliabilities

at mldnudamy alnouda 4%

itro aldc ®&r dnanh d e o)

Gross financial liabilities at amortised cost, including issue costs and premiums and the impact ofgsgiread

by applying the effective interest method, stood
They broke down as follows:
Current Non-current
Balance .
sheet Porti Portion Portion Porti Portion Porti palgvalic

L value as of Ofton due in due in olton due in oon as of

(in millions of euros) due in due in due in 06/30/2019

06/30/2019  _'4'\ oy 1to 2to 2 i AR 4to SEvEE
Y 2 years 3years Y 5years Y

Fixed rate debt 6456 249 230 616 2117 93 3151 6879
Borrowings from credit institutions 129 29 29 31 32 08 0.0 139
Finance leases 992 84 102 86 8.5 85 551 1039
Liabilities to IcadeSA 5335 137 99 500 2000 - 2600 5701
Variable rate debt 1,1101 281 2128 302 264 592 7533 1,0965
Borrowings from credit institutions 9227 155 1634 138 141 374 6786 907.9
Finance leases 946 9.5 9.3 138 9.7 192 331 930
Other loans and similar liabilities 546 26 25 26 26 27 416 569
Liabilities to IcadeSA 376 00 375 - - - - 380
Bank overdrafts 05 05 - - - - - 05
GROSS FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 1,7557 530 2358 918 2381 685 1,0684 1,7844

AS OF 06/30/2019

The average debt maturity was 5.1 years as of June 30, 2019 and 5.1 years as of December 31, 2018.

As of June 30, 2019, the average maturity was 5.5 years for variable rate debt and 4.7 years for the related hedges,

allowing adequate hedging and anticipating coverage of future financing needs.

at

As of December 31, 2018, the average maturity was 5.3 j@avariable rate debt and 5.3 years for the related
hedges, allowing adequate hedging and anticipating coverage of future financing needs.

51.3 Derivative instruments

5.1.3.1 Presentation of derivatives on the balance sheet

The fair value of derivative liabilities, consisting primarily of interest rate derivatives designated as cash flow
u33.0

hedges, was

a

negative

mi |1

on as

of

June

Detailed changes in fair value of derivatinstruments compared to December 31, 2018 were as follows:
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GRS [T Changes in

Fair value Additions to fair value i vallue Fair value
as of the scope of  Acquisitions Disposals  recognised in Rt T as of
12/31/2018 consolidation the income eg vit 06/30/2019
statement quity

in milli (MN=@@)to
(in millions of euros) (6h) (@) () 4) ®) (&) (6) inclusive
Presentation of derivatives on the
balance sheet:
Non-current assets 0.0 - - - 0.1 - 0.1
Derivative assets 00 - - - 01 - 01
Non-current liabilities (150) - - - (0.1) 172) (323)
Current liabilities (08) - - - (0.1) 02 (07)
Derivative liabilities (15.7) - - - (0.1) (171) (330)
TOTAL (15.7) - - - (0.1) (171) (329)
Breakdown of derivative instruments
by type:
Interest rate swagsfixed-rate payer (157) - - - (0.1) (171) (329)
Cash flow hedges (15.7) - - - (0.1) (171) (329)
INTEREST RATE DERIVATIVES (15.7) - - - 0.2) (171) (329)
EXCLUDING MARGIN CALLS
TOTAL DERIVATIVES (15.7) - - - (0.1) (171) (329)

5.1.3.2 Changes in hedge reserves

Hedge reserves consisted exclusively of fair value adjustments to financial instruments used by the Group for
interest rate hedging purposes (effecti ve ilpmoasbfi on) f
December 31, 2018.

Hedge reserves as of June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 are shown in the table below:

(in millions of euros) Revaluation reserves

12/31/2018 (12.2)
Recycling to the income statement (a) 0.4)
Other comprehensive inconfie) (17,1
06/30/2019 (29,7)

(a) Cash flow hedge reserves recycled to the income statement during the period
(b) Changes in value of cash flow hedges
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5.1.3.3 Derivatives: analysis of notional amounts by maturity

The derivative portfolio as of June 319 and December 31, 2018 was as follows:

Portion due in Portion due in Portion due in
Average <1lyear > 1year and <5 years >5years
Total e
- Average Average Average
(in millions of euros) Amount e Amount e Amount e
Outstandingderivativesi Interest rate swaps 5766 0.71% 222 1.29% 3020 0.44% 2523 0.99%
Fixedrate payer
Forward start derivatives Interest rate swags 3186 0.03% 4.0 0.37% 303 0.54% 2844 (0.03%)
Fixedrate payer
TOTAL INTEREST RATE DERIVATIVES 8952 26.2 3323 5367
AS OF 30/06/2019
These derivatives are used as part of the Groupds int e

51.4 Finance income/(expense)

The Group recorded a net finance expense of 015.8 mil
consisted of interest expenses from financial liabilities and derivatives.

As of June 30, 2018, t he Gr oayringreasts elgting te pregpaymedt.pehalties | | i o
for financial liabilities which were paid to Icade SA.

(in millions of euros) 06/30/2019 06/30/2018
Interest expenses from financial liabilities (5.5) (4.6)
Interest expenses from derivatives (3.0) (1)
Recycling to the income statement of interest rate hedging instruments 04 05
Expenses on loans and advances from Icade (68) (81)
COST OF NET FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (150) (143)
Change in fair value of derivatives recognised in the income statement (0.) (0.4)
Commitment fees (0.3) (0.2)
Restructuring costs for financial liabilities - (94)
Finance income/(expense) from lease liabilities (0.) -
Other finance income and expenses 03) (0.4)
Total other finance income and expenses (0.8) (105)
FINANCE INCOME/(EXPENSE) (158) (248)

(a) This item relates to the finance expense for the period recognized under IFRS 16.
5 1. 50t her financi al assets and |l iabilities
5.1.5.1 Accounts receivable

Changes in accounts receivable, relating exclusitelyeceivables on gross rental income, were as follows
between December 31, 2018 and June 30, 2019:

(in millions of euros) Gross value Impairment Net value

12/31/2018 6.8 (0.0) 6.8
Change for the period 12.4 - 12.4
Impairment - (3.4) (3.4)
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06/30/2019 19.2 (3.5) 15.7

5. 12 50t her financial assets and l|liabilities
Ot her financi al l'iabilities comprised deposits and gu
million as of December 31, 2018). Deposits and guarantees paid forth2 gear8 f or 07 .7 mi |l |l i on

deposit paid in the context of the acquisition of Epion iieadter the reporting period).

Changes in other financial assets and liabilities broke down as follows between Decen#i83and June 30,
2019:

Acquisitions net

(in millions of euros) 12/31/2018 of disposals and 06/30/2019

repayments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (a) 0.0 - 0.0
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 0.0 - 0.0
PROFIT OR LOSS

Deposits and guarantees paid 1.3 7.7 91
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST 1.3 7 9.1
Deposits and guarantees received 6.3 0.9 72
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 6.3 0.9 7.2

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss consist of investments in unconsolidated companies

A maturity analysis of other financial assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 is shown in
the table below:

Current Non-current
(in millions of euros) : ; Portion due in 3 .
06/30/2019 Portion due in > 1 year and Portion due in
<lyear <5 >5years
years
Deposits and guarantees paid 9.1 e - 13
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT 9.1 7.7 - 13
AMORTISED COST
Deposits and guarantees received 7.2 - - 72
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 7.2 - - 72
5.1.6 Cash
(in millions of euros) 06/30/2019 12/31/2018
Cash on hand and demand deposits (including bank interest receivab 400.1 759
CASH 400.1 759

As of June 30, 2019 and Decemberh 30ln haOnldB , a ncda sche ncaomds i ¢k

5.2 Manageméhnhhanot€ti al ri sks
521 Liquidity risk

The Groupo6s undr avand mediuctuenrt m worfedsihtorliti nes t ot al G200.
available.
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The Group has continued to access liquidity on favourable terms and is still fully able to raistumdsréf

necessary.

The residual contractual maturities of financial liabilities as of June 30, 2019 can be analysed as follows:

06/30/2019
S . . Portion due in > 1 year Portion due in >3 years q .
(in millions of euros) Portion due in <1 year and <3years and < 5 years Portion due in >5 years Total
Repayments  Interests Repayments  Interests Repayments  Interests Repayments  Interests

Borrowings from credit institutions 19.0 6.8 184.8 10.6 56.9 134 680.1 17.5 989.0
Finance leases 17.1 4.0 40.7 6.6 45.2 5.3 88.0 55 212.3
Other loans and similar liabilities 24 11 4.9 2.1 5.1 1.9 41.0 6.5 65.0
Liabilities to IcadeSA 10.0 14.5 97.4 27.0 200.0 17.3 260.0 11.0 637.2
Bank overdrafts 05 - - - - - 0.5
Accounts payable artdx liabilities 16.3 - 101 - - - 26.4
Financial derivatives - .7 - 13.9 - 8.0 2.7 32.3
TOTAL 65.3 34.1 337.9 60.2 307.2 45.9 1,069.1 494 1,962.8

Future interest payments on loans and derivative instruments are determined based on anticipated market interest

rates.

52.2 Covenants and financial ratios
The Group monitors the following elements:
5.2.2.1 Financial covenants

The Group is required to comply with the following financial covenants:

Type of limit <or> Limit 06/30/2019 12/31/2018

LTV bank covenant < 05 30.77% 31.65%
ICR > 2 8.2x 7.5x
Value of the Property Investment portfoftb > G42bn 4511.9 44844
Security interests iassets < 30% of portfolio value 8.42% 8.95%

Loans taken out by the Group may be subject to covenants based on financigloatitée-value and interest
coverage ratios). All covenants were met as of June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018.

5.2.2.2 LTV bank covenant

The LTV (loanto-value) bank covenant, which is the ratio of net financial liabilities and the latest valuation of the
property portfolio excluding duties, stood at 30.77% as of June 30, 2019 compared with 31.65% as of December

31, 2018.

5.2.2.3 Interest coverage ratio

The interest coverage ratio based

on

EBI

TDAMaa s8 a2 x

a high level, demdnabilaitingt o heo @bmpalyly comply
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52.3 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk includes, in the event of increased interest rates, the risk of increased finance expenses related to
variable rate financial liabilities and, in the event of reduced interest rates, the risk of reduced finance income
related to variable rate financial assets.

To finance its investments, the Group uses variable rate debt, thus remaining able to prepaifHoahpenalty.

Net exposure before hedging  Interest rate hedging instruments Net exposure after hedging

(in millions of euros) A) (B) ©)=®)-(A)
Fixed rate Variable rate Fixed rate Variable rate (a) Fixed rate Variable rate
06/30/2019 645.7 1,110.0 - 576.6 (645.7) (533.4)

(a) Interest rate hedges only include outstanding derivativesOé#36f/2019 and 2/31/2018

As of June 30, 2019, the Groupds total debt, consi sti
69.0% hedgedgainst interest rate risk.

As of December 31, 2018, the Groupds tot al debt , cons.i
was 84.0% hedged against interest rate risk.

The Group favours <classifying hietdgeboéeda@qicetepridhsagr uame nltl
therefore, any changes in fair value of such instruments are recognised in equity (for the effective portion) rather
than in the income statement.

Due to the Groupbés hedgi ng s tthedasttfew firancial gedrs, thargesinfae nd i n
value of hedging instruments had a negative i mpact of

The accounting impacts of-4% or +1% change in interest rates on the value of derivatives are described below:

June 30, 2019

Impact on equity before tax Impact on the income statement
(am) before tax (
Impact of a +1% change in interest rates 46.3 0.2
Impact of &1% change in interest rates -50.2 -0.2

52.4 Currency risk
Since the Group does not enter into any foreigmency transactions, it is not exposed to currency risk.
525 Credit risk

In the course of its business, the Group is exposed to two major types of counterparties: financial institutions and
its tenants.

Regarding financial institutions, credit andmunterparty risk relates to cash, and more specifically to the banks
where this cash is deposited. The investments chosen have maturities of less than one year with a very low risk
profile and are monitored daily. A regular review of authorised investmemplements the control process.
Additionally, in order to limit its counterparty risk, the Group only deals in interest rate derivatives with banking
institutions which help fund its expansion. Furthermore, the Group only enters into financial tesrssagdth

major banking institutions and applies a principle of risk dispersion, avoiding concentration of exposure to any
single counterparty.

Regarding its tenants, the Group believes that it is not exposed to significant credit risk thanks to ifiedlivers

tenant portfolio in terms of location and individual size of lease commitments received. In addition, the Group has
introduced procedures to verify the credit quality of
companies guardee payment of any amount owed by the tenants.
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The Groupbs exposure to
received from tenants. As
2018.

5.3 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
5.3.1

Below is the reconciliation of the carrying amount and fair value of financial assetsahbifitids as of June 30,

2019 and December 31, 2018:

credi

of

t

June

ri sk c

30,

Reconciliation of the carrying amount and fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Carrying Amortised Fair value Fair value Fair value as
(in millions of euros) amount as of cost through through of 06/30/2019
06/30/2019 equity profit or loss
ASSETS
Financial assets at fair valtlerough profit or loss 0.0 - - 0.0 00
Financial assets at amortised cost 91 91 - - 91
Derivatives 01 - 0.1 - 01
Current and non-current financial assets and 9.2 9.1 0.1 00 92
derivatives
Accounts receivable 157 157 - - 157
Other operatingeceivable$? 32 32 - - 32
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 281 279 01 00 281
LIABILITIES - - - - -
Current and nomurrent financiatiebts 1,7557 1,7557 - - 1,7844
Lease liabilities 1.9 19 - - 19
Other current and necurrent financial liabilities 72 72 - - 72
Derivative instruments 330 - 330 - 330
Accounts payable 54 54 - - 54
Other operating payabl&$ 26.7 26.7 - - 26.7
1,8298 1,7969 330 - 1,8585

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

(a) Excluding agency transactions, prepaid expenses/income and social security and tax receivables/payables

53.2

The three levels in the fair value hierarchy of financial instruments which are used by thdrGaocordance with

Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments

IFRS 13 are presented in note 1.3.1 on measurement bases.

The financial instruments whose fair value is determined using a valuation technique basedlosenable data

are investments in unconsolidated, unlisted companies.

Asoflin e

30, 2019

and

December

31,

2018,

t he

Groupbs fin

Derivative assets and liabilities measured based on observable data (level 2 of the fair value hierarchy);

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, medstiased on market data not directly

observable (level 3 of the fair value hierarchy).

These values appear directly in the consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2019 and December
31, 2018.
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As of June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2048,Group did not hold any financial instruments measured based on
unadjusted prices quoted in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 of the fair value hierarchy). As
of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, the Group did not hold anyifihamstruments measured based on
unadjusted prices quoted in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 of the fair value hierarchy).

Not e Le.ase | iabilities

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Effective from January 1, 2019:

- In the consolidated t at ement of financi al p o s i tcurent ljabilifies)e ase | i
refers to lease commitments under building leases;

- In the consolidated income statement, i Ot her fina
arising fom lease liabilities;

- Within the AFinancing activitiesodo section of the
l'iabilitiesd comprises principal repayments on | ea
the consolidated as h fl ow st atement, fpayménts ondeade liapildiesd 6 i ncl ud

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of future lease payments. These future lease payments
include:

- Fixed lease payments less any lease imeesprovided by the lessor;

- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;

- Residual value guarantees;

- The price of any purchase options where management is reasonably certain that they will be exercised;

- Early termination penalties whe management is reasonably certain that an early termination option
entailing significant peaties will be exercised.

The present value of future | ease payments is obtaine
dependig on the remaiing lease term.

Lease liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. In practice, lease
liabilities are determined at their net carrying amount plus any interesgsmdny lease payments made.

Lease lialities may be remeasured in the course of the reasonably certain lease term in any of the following
circumstances:

- Lease modification;

- An increase or decrease in the assessment of the lease term;

- An increase or decrease in the assessment of leasepisylinked to an index or a rate.

Note 7. Other items of the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of financial position
7.1 Income tax

The tax expense recognised in the consolidated income statement consists primarily of the galopaiged
contribution (CVAE).

The tax expense for the periods ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 is detailed in the table below:

(in millions of euros) 06/30/2019 06/30/2018
Tax expense at the standard rate - (0.8)
AExit taxo (SIIC status) - 0.3
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Companyvalueadded contribution (CVAE) 1.4) 1.1)

TAX EXPENSE RECOGNIZED IN THE INCOME STATEMENT 1.4) (0.4)

The profit generated as of Juné& 3I&X)x nphl S ecgameente xucnlduesri \
tax regime. As a waes uletc,ogmd scedr.pdrhaet @ atxax xpense of 0l
related to CVAE.

7.2 Provisions and contingent liabilities

As of June 30, 2019, the amount of provisions for liabilities and charges recognised by the Group was not material.
Norwaste Group aware of any contingent I|iabilities 1ikel
financial position, assets or business.

Note8. Equity and earnings per share

8.1 Share capital and shareholding structure

8.1.1 Share capital

Chasgén the number of shares 3d21@018 hag@®@, r@améd 9 avebet ave ef

Number Capital
Share capital as of 01/01/218 33,998,310 518.5
Capital increase 2,199,914 335
Share capital as of 12/31/2018 36,198224 5520
Capital increase 1,542,612 23,5
Share capital asof 06/30/2019 37,740,836 575.5

As of June 30, 2019, share capital consisted of 37,74
the shares issued are fully paid up.

8.1.2 Shareholding structure

The Companyds shareholding structure (number of share
December 31, 2018 was as follows:

06/30/2019 12/31/2018
(in millions of euros)
Number of shares % stake Number of shares % stake

Icade SA 21,450167 56.84% 20550856 56.77%
Messidor 6,230545 1651% 5,969326 1649%
C Santé 3,364,305 8.91% 3,223255 8.90%
Holdipierre 1,953401 5.18% 1,871504 517%
ME Santé 946744 251% 946744 262%
Sogecapimmo 3,795674 1006% 3,636539 10.05%
Total 37,740836 10000% 36,198224 10000%
8.2 Dividends

Dividends distributed by the Company to its shareholders in H1 2019 in respect of profit for the financial year 2018
totalled 0153. 1 mi Dilidermadistributecein 2018 4 reSpéct qf jerafit fos theafinaacial year
2017 amounted to 0ul1l32.0 million, i.e. 03.88 per share.
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8.3 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are presented in the table below for the half years ended June 30, 2089 Anth20
Group issued no equity instruments with a dilutive impact in either of the periods presented, there is no difference

bet ween basic and diluted earnings per share. This in
2018.

(in millions of euros) 06/30/2019 06/30/2018

Net profit/(loss) attributable to the Group (A) 450 288

Opening number of shares 36,198224 33,998310

Increase in the average number of shares as a result of the capital increase 25,568 97,2338

Average numberof shares (B) 36,223792 34,095544

NET PROFI T/ (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE (AB) a2z, R

Note9. Other information
9.1 Off-balance sheet commitments

Commitments made by the Group consisted primarily of commitments retatfittancing activities (mortgages,
promises to mortgage property and assignments of claims). Commitments received mainly included commitments
relating to operating activities and, in particular, security deposits received for rent payments.

The initial agplication of IFRS 16, which became effective on January 1, 2019, resulted in the recognition of right
ofuse assets in the Groupds statement of financi al p o
leases previously classified as operatiegses and in which the Group was the lessee under IAS 17, with the
exception of leases that qualify for the exemptions provided for in IFRS 16 (see note 1.2.1.1).

As a r esul t ;baldnteeshedd commipnénss retating to leases as of Junel¥oAlY included future
lease payments to be received under operating leases in which the Group is the lessor.

No other events occurred during H1 2019 had a significant impact tralaffice sheet commitments.
9.2 Events after the reporting period

The man event that occurred after the reporting period was the acquisition, finalised on July 31, 2019, of seven
nursing homes and five healthcare facilities for a to
Asset Managers France.
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.St atutory audi t or Oirgerim e@ndensed conselidatedinancial statémerds (for the six

month period ended30 June 2019

This is a free transl ati &n rievti®@ wEnmneglpiosh ofsstuderao vi)tndaardr te o
solely for the convenience of English speaking rleaders
in accordance with, French | aw and professional |standal
To the President,

I n our capgwchaudi aer sbht ther company I cade Sant® and at
securities to trading on the regulated market of Eurone
interim financpati ediaf edmn tIBhEL B0 phepared for the purp
accordance wunder I nt er nat(ilidrBdal s Faidnoapntceida | b yRetploe t E migo [Bd an
attached to this report.

These coadsoabkkedated interim financi al statements are tt
conclusion on these condensed consolidated financial st
We conducted our review indacappldiacak!l eviitihh pPrafessi dna
information consists of making inquiries, primarily of
analytical and other review pcroopcee diuhraens .a nA aruedviite we o nsd uscutk
professional standards applicable in France and consequ
aware of all significant matter s diohatot mieglptr ebes iadhe mtuidfi it
Based on our revi ew, nothing has come to our attentio
consolidated interim financial statements 4irsed amdtarpr efda
the | FRSs as adopted by the European Union applicable t

Paris La D®f'er2del,9 October 7

MAZARS

French original signed by Johanna DARMON and
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE ISSUER FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER
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1. Consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016

Unless otherwisetated, the consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of euros, rounded to the
nearest hundred thousand euros. Rounding differences may therefore occur between the different statements
presented.

Consolidated income statement

(in millions of euros) Notes 2018 2017 2016
Gross rental income 55 2410 2149 2073
Purchases used (0.2) - -
Outside services (151) (14.0) (14.2)
Taxes, duties and similar payments (0.6) (0.4) (0.3)
Other operating expenses (1.8) (0.2) (0.2)
Expenses fromoperating activities (17.6) (14.6) (14.5)
EBITDA 2234 2003 1928
Depreciation charges net of government investment grants 5.1 (107.8) (97.5) (95.0)
Charges and reversals related to impairment of tangible, financia 5.1 (7.7) (0.8) (0.2)
other current assets

Profit/(loss) from acquisitions (1.3) (0.2) 13
Profit/(loss) on asset disposals (0.0) 0.2 (0.3)
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 1066 1020 98.6
Cost of net financial debts (29.6) (284) (294)
Other finance income and expenses (10.7) (0.8) (0.9)
FINANCE INCOME/(EXPENSE) 6.1.4 (40.3) (29.2) (30.3)
Tax expense 7.1 (1.5) (1.7) (1.1)
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) 64.8 711 67.2
Net profit/(loss) attributable to the Group 64.8 711 67.2
Net profit/(loss) attributable to necontrolling interests - - -
Net profit/ (loss) attributable 9.3 18 4 218 206

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

(in millions of euros) Notes 2018 2017 2016
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 64.8 711 67.2
Other comprehensiveincome:

Other comprehensive income recyclable to the income statement: cash flo 6.1.3.2 (5.3) 33 (2.4)
hedges

- Changes in fair value recognised directly in equity (4.3) 44 (0.9)
- Transfer of norhedging instruments to the income statement (1.2) (1.2) (1.5)

Other comprehensive income not recyclable to the income statement - - -

Total comprehensive income recognised in equity (5.3) 33 (2.4)
Including transfer to net profit/(loss) (1.2) (1.2) (1.5)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 595 743 64.8
- Attributable to the Group 595 743 64.8

- Attributable to norcontrolling interests - - -
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Consolidated statement of financial position

(in millions of euros) Notes 12/31/2018 12/31/2017 12/31/2016 01/01/2016
ASSETS

Investment properties 51 3,1559 2,9614 2,7124 2,604.4
Financial assets at fair value through profit or los 6.1.5.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Financial assets at amortised cost 6.1.5.3 13 13 13 13
Derivative assets 6.1.3 0.0 0.8 - 0.2
Other noRcurrentassets - - - 24
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 3,157.3 2,9635 2,7138 2,6083
Accounts receivable 6.1.5.1 6.8 55 55 42
Tax receivables - - 0.3 0.1
Miscellaneous receivables 6.1.5.2 4.1 153 4.9 7.2
Cash 6.1.6 75.9 41 24 79.2
CURRENT ASSETS 86.8 249 131 908
TOTAL ASSETS 3,2441 2,9884 2,7269 2,6991
(in millions of euros) Notes 12/31/2018 12/31/2017 12/31/2016 01/01/2016
LIABILITIES

Share capital 9.1 5520 5185 4972 4972
Share premium 9922 9410 9182 9564
Revaluation reserves 6.1.3.2 (122) (6.8) (10.1) (7.7)
Other reserves 86.9 727 545 444
Net profit/(loss) attributable to the Group 64.8 711 67.2 589
Equity attributable to the Group 1,6838 1,5964 1,527.0 1,5492
EQUITY 1,6838 1,5964 1,5270 1,5492
Provisions 8.1 0.1 - - -
Financial debt at amortised cost 6.1.1.1 1,4274 1,1880 1,0415 1,0113
Tax liabilities 6.1 6.8 178 122
Other financial liabilities 6.1.5.3 6.3 37 4.0 38
Derivative liabilities 6.1.3 150 113 152 146
Other nonrcurrentliabilities - - - 0.5
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,4548 1,2098 1,0785 1,0424
Provisions 8.1 0.0 0.0 - -
Financial debt at amortised cost 6.1.1.1 522 1195 634 522
Tax liabilities 148 14.8 111 29.7
Accounts payable 31 37 2.6 31
Miscellaneous payables 6.1.5.2 345 433 434 218
Derivative liabilities 6.1.3 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.8
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1054 1821 1214 1075
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 3,2441 2,9884 2,7269 2,6991
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Consolidated cash flow statement

(in millions of euros) Notes 2018 2017 2016

1) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit/(loss) 64.8 711 67.2
Net depreciation and provision charges 1145 984 953
Unrealised gains and losses due to changes in fair value (1.3) (1.4) (1.6)
Other norcash income anelxpenses 21 1.0 (0.9)
Capital gains or losses on asset disposals (0.0 (0.3) -
Cash flow from operating activities after cost of net financial debt 1801 1689 1601
and tax

Cost of net financial debt 308 291 309
Tax expense 15 17 11
Cashflow from operating activities before cost of net financial debt 2124 1997 1920
and tax

Interest paid (32.2) (30.7) (31.0)
Tax paid (a) (239) (14.5) (15.9)
Change in working capital requirement related to operating activities 102 (8.3) (0.9)
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1664 1463 1442

II) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Tangible and intangible fixed assets and investment properties

- acquisitions (1334) (2705) (1213)
- disposals 2.2 6.9 -
Change in security deposits paidd received 0.4 (0.3) (0.0)
Operating investments (1307) (2639) (1213)
Fully consolidated subsidiaries

- acquisitions (82.7) (28.3) (13.9)
- impact of changes in scope of consolidation 37 8.1 0.1
Financial investments (79.0) (20.3) (13.8)
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (209.8) (2842) (135.2)
I11) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Amounts received from shareholders on capital increases 1599 1000 (0.0)

Dividends paid during the financial year

- final and interim dividendpaid by Icade Santé during the financial ye (1320) (1050) (87.0)
Change in cash from capital activities 279 (5.0) (87.0)
Loans issues and new financial debts 2286 2084 50.0
Loans redemptions and repayments of financial debts (98.8) (32.4) (334)
Current financial liabilities (41.3) (328) (15.7)
Change in cash from financing activities 6.1.1.2 88.6 1432 0.9
NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1166 1382 (86.1)
NET CHANGE IN CASH (1) + (II) + (Ill) 732 0.3 (77.0)
OPENING NET CASH 2.3 2.0 79.0
CLOSING NET CASH 755 23 2.0
Cash (excluding interest accrued but not due) 75.9 4.1 24
Bank overdrafts (excluding interest accrued but not due) (0.4) (1.8) (0.4)
NET CASH 755 2.3 2.0

(a) Tax paid primarily includes the exit tard CVAE
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Statement of changes in consolidated equity

Other reserves

; and net Equity Non-
(in millions of euros) cSaheiltraeI rSe?rﬁ[Jem Ei\ggﬁg profit/(loss)  attributable to  controlling JOJ%
P P attributable to the Group interests q
the Group
Equity as of 01/01/2016 4972 9564 (7.7) 1033 1,5492 1,5492
Net profit/(loss) for the financial year - - - 67.2 67.2 67.2
Other comprehensive income:
- Changes in value of cash flo\ - - (0.9) - (0.9) (0.9)
hedges
- Revaluation reserves for cash flo - - (1.5) - (1.5) (1.5)
hedges recycled to the incon
statement
Comprehensive income for the - - (2.4) 67.2 64.8 64.8
financial year
Dividends paid for the financial yea - (39.0) - (48.0) (87.0) (87.0)
2015
Capital increase - - - - - -
Other - 0.9 - (0.9) - -
Equity as of 12/31/2016 4972 9182 (101) 1217 1,527.0 1,5270
Net profit/(loss) for the financial year - - - 711 711 711
Other comprehensive income:
- Changes in value of cashow - - 4.4 - 4.4 44
hedges
- Revaluation reserves for cash flo - - (1.2) - 1.2) (1.2)
hedges recycled to the incom
statement
Comprehensive income for the - - 33 711 743 74.3
financial year
Dividends paid for the financial yea - (57.1) - (47.9) (1050) (1050)
2016
Capital increase 213 787 - - 1000 1000
Other - 11 - (1.1) (0.0) (0.0)
Equity as of 12/31/2017 5185 9410 (6.8) 1438 1,5964 1,5964
Net profit/(loss) for the financial year - - - 64.8 64.8 64.8
Othercomprehensive income: , , , , , ,
- Changes in value of cash flo\ - - (4.3) - (4.3) (4.3)
hedges
- Revaluation reserves for cash flo - - (1.1) - (1.1) (1.1)
hedges recycled to the incom
statement
Comprehensive income for the - - (5.3) 64.8 595 595
financial year
Dividends paid for the financial yea - (75.2) - (56.8) (1320) (1320)
2017
Capital increase 335 1264 - - 1599 1599
Other - - - (0.0) (0.0) (0.0)
Equity as of 12/31/2018 5520 9922 (12.2) 1518 1,6838 1,6838
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Note 1. Accounting methods, rules and principles
1.1. General information

l cade Sant® (fAthe Comp a nstock)ompasy (BAS)Hiregistared office isnptuatedat e d | o
27 rue Camille Desmoulins, 92130 Idsg-Moulineaux, France. As of December 31, 2018, it was 56.77% owned

by the company Il cade SA (56.51% as of December 31, 2
consolicated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the financial years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 reflect the
financi al position and profits and [ osses of the Comp
euros, which is the Companyés functional currency.

As of December 31, 2018, the Group consisted of 15 consolidated entities (respectively 2 and 2 consolidated
entities as of December 31, 2017 and 2016). It operates as a property investor, assistirayehepkators and
senior services providers with the ownership and development of healthcare properties across France.

1.2 Accounting standards

The Groupds consolidated financi al statements for the
have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union as of December 31, 2018 pursuant to European Regulation N0.1606/2002 dated July 19, 2002.
They were approved by the Chairman of ie&hnté SAS on October 1, 2019.

The international accounting standards are issued by the IASB (International Accounting Standards Board) and
have been adopted by the European Union. They include the IFRS, the IAS (International Accounting Standards)
andt heir interpretations. These standards aréd available

These are the Il cade Sant® Groupbs first consolidated
with IFRS 17 Firsttime adoption of international financial reporting standards, with the date of transition to IFRS
being January 1, 2016. &hstatement of financial position as of January 1, 2016 is presented as the opening
balance sheet.

Icade Santé has prepared its first IFRS financial statements by applying IFRS retrospectively and by using, in
particular, paragraph D16.B provided for FRS 1, which makes it possible to measure the carrying amounts of its
assets and liabilities as required by IFRS 1 based on the date of transition to IFRS. The Group has applied all the
standards, amendments and interpretations in force as of Decemt2§181to all the periods presented in the
consolidated financial statements starting on the date of transition to IFRS, i.e. January 1, 2016.

These are the Groupbs first complete consolidaibhed fi n:é
the notes to the consolidated financial statements as a reconciliation of statutory financial statements to
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS is of no interest for the reader of the financial
statements.

1.2.1 Mandatory standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the European Union which
became effective on January 1, 2018

1.2.1.1 IFRS 15i Revenue from contracts with customers

This standard supersedes IAS 18, IAS 11 and related interpretations. It introduiicgke anodel for recognising
revenue based on the transfer of control of the promised good or service. This standard applies to all contracts with
customers with the exception of leases which fall within the scope of IAS_&&ses.

Since all of the Grow6s revenue is derived from | eases, this sta
statements.

! http://ec.europa.eu/internal_market/accounting/ias/index_en.htm
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1.2.1.2 IFRS 9i Financial instruments

This standard supersedes IAS 39. It is based on three main pillars: classification and measurementabf finan
instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.

Dz Classification and measurement:

The classification and measurement of categories of financial assets set out by IFRS 9 relies on the joint analysis of
the inherent characteristics thie financial instrument and the business model implemented by the Group.

Dz Impairment model for financial assets:

IFRS 9 introduces a new impairment model based on expected losses rather than incurred losses as per IAS 39.
Dz Hedge accounting:

The Groy complies with the requirements of this pillar. The main changes compared to IAS 39 are as follows:

- The designation of a hedging relationship is assessed on the basis of the risk management practices
implemented by the Company, aligning the accourttilge at ment wi th management és i

- The eligibility conditions for hedged items cover AHomancial items;

- The criteria for hedge effectiveness testing do not include thresholds. Therefore, even in the case of hedge
ineffectiveness, the hedginglationship is not disqualified.

The application of I FRS 9 has had no significant 1|1 mpac

1.2.1.3 Interpretations and amendments

The foll owing amendments and i ntoansgidaed fiaandiabstatemehtaa ve no i
Dz IFRIC interpretation 22 Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration;

Dz Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and measurement of shased payment transactions;

Dz Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers ofnvestment property;

Dz Amendments to IFRS I5Clarifications;

Dz Amendments to IFRS @ Applying IFRS 9 Financial instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance contracts (not

applicable to the Group);
Dz Annual improvements to IFRS Standards (2@016 Cycle).

1.2.2 Mandatory standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the European Union which
became effective on January 1, 2017

The following amendments and interpretations have no i
Dz Amendments to IAS 1P Income taxes: recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses;

Dz Amendments to IAS 7 Cashflow statements;

Dz Annual improvements to IFRS Standards (2016 Cycle).

1.2.3 Standards, amendments and interpretations adopted by the European Uniofut not yet
applicable as of December 31, 2018

No standards or interpretations for which early adoption is permitted have been applied by the Group for the
financial years 2018, 2017 or 2016.

1.2.3.1 IFRS 16i Leases
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On October 31, 2017, the European Unamopted IFRS 16 which supersedes IAS 17 and related interpretations.
This new standard, which became effective on January 1, 2019, with earlier application permitted, no longer makes
a distinction between finance leases and operating leases. It wil resuln t he recognition on
sheet of a righof-use asset with a corresponding lease liability, for all types of contracts qualifying as leases.

The leases identified by the Group as falling within the scope of IFRS 16 relate to blgidirg. Icade Santé shall

apply this new standard in its consolidated financial statements for financial years starting on or after January 1,
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. This should result in the Group recognisingfusghassenf

G42.0 million with a corresponding |lease Iliability.

1.2.3.2 Interpretations and amendments
The following interpretation and amendments became effective on January 1, 2019.

Dz IFRIC interpretation 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments. This intdgiien clarifies how IAS
12 7 Income taxes should be applied to determine the items related to income tax, when there is
uncertainty over the income tax treatments used by the Group under applicable tax rules;

Dz Amendments to IFRS B Prepayment featuresithr negative compensation;
Dz Amendments to IAS 2B Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures;
Dz Annual improvements to IFRS Standards (2@BL7 Cycle).

1.24 Standards, amendments and interpretations issued by the IASB (International Accoumtg
Standards Board) but not yet adopted by the European Union

Effective from January 1, 2019:
Dz Amendments to IAS 1B Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement (not applicable to the Group).

Effective from January 1, 2020:

Dz Amendments to IAS 1 and IAST Definition of material;
Dz Amendments to IFRS B Definition of a business;
Dz Amendments to references to the conceptual framework in IFRS standards.

Effective from January 1, 2022:

Dz IFRS 17i Insurance contracts (not applicable to the Group).

1.3. Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements
131 Measurement bases

The financial statements have been prepared according to the amortised cost method, with the exception of certain
financial assets and liabilities which are recognisefdir value.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. IFRSFa8 value measurement utilises a fair value
hierarchy aross three levels:

Dz Level 1: fair value measured based on unadjusted prices quoted in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities;
Dz Level 2: fair value measured based on models using observable data, either directly (i.e. prices), or

indirectly (.e. data derived from prices);

Dz Level 3: fair value measured based on market data not directly observable.
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According to the principle of relevance and the ensuing materiality notion, only information deemed relevant and
useful to t he othecorsddaedfiidaadasstatamedts imrgported.

The Group does not employ staff. It has delegated the management of its property assets as well as advisory and
assistance work to its parent company Icade SA. All these services are detailed ib.2dtetiese consolidated
financial statements.

1.3.2 Use of judgement and estimates

The preparation of financi al statements requires the
determine the carrying amount of certain assets, liabjlitte®me and expenses, to assess any positive or negative
contingencies as of the reporting date, as well as the information provided in the notes to the financial statements.

The significant estimates made by the Group to prepare its consolidated firstagienents mainly relate to the
valuation of property assets carried out by independent property valuers in accordance with the methods described
in note 5.2.

Due to the uncertainties inherent in any measurement process, the Group reviews its estirtietesasis of
regularly updated information. The future revenues of the projects concerned may differ from estimates made at the
reporting date.

I n addition to using estimates, the Groupbs managemen
treatment for certain operations and transactions where current IFRS and their interpretations do not specifically
address the accounting issues raised. In particular, management has exercised its judgement to classify the types of
leases (opmiting leas®r finance lease).

Note 2. Highlights of the financial years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016
2.1 Financial year ended December 31, 2018

2.1.1 Investments and disposals completed

During the financial year 2018, the Company:

Dz Invested for the firstime in the nursing home sector on July 4, 2018 by acquiring the Patrimoine et
Santé group, made up of 15 legal entities owning 14 nursing home properties outside the Paris region
which are operated by the Residalya network;

Dz Acquired the Montévrain hehicare property on July 18, 2018.
See note 3.1 for further information about changes in
2.1.2 Finance

During the financial year 2018, the Company:

Dz Made a 0160.0 million capi buaunevéenly subserdbbeden casmbydtsu ne 2 ¢
shareholders;
Dz Prepaid, in June 2018, the loan taken out with Icade SA in 2008;
Dz Took out a new loan for a50.0 million for a perio
Dz Took out two corporate loans in July 2018 maturing in June 2028@dn@026 from a banking pool for
a total of 01200.0 million;
Dz Signed a cash advance agreement with Il cade SA in

and a period ending on March 31, 2020.

See notes 6, 10 and 11 for further information abatthGr oupdés funding sources.
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2.2 Financial year ended December 31, 2017
2.2.1 Investments and disposals completed

During the financial year 2017, the Company:

Dz Acquired directly or indirectly five private healthcare properties;
Dz Sold the Les Chénes paljnic property on March 31, 2017.
See note 3.2 for further information about changes in

2.2.2 Finance

During the financial year 2017, the Company:

Dz Made a 0100.0 million capiwhiahwas fullicsubsaitedin aash bybte c e mb e
shareholders in proportion to their respective holdings;

Dz Took out two corporate loans in July 2017 maturing in July 2024 from a banking pool for a total of
0150.0 million;

Dz Took out two mortgages in Decembell2d mat uri ng i n December 2032 for

See notes 6, 10 and 11 for further i nformation about t

2.3 Financial year ended December 31, 2016

2.3.1 Investments and disposals completed

During the financial year 2®&] the Company:

Dz Indirectly acquired four healthcare properties from private investors on June 14, 2016;
Dz Acquired two plots of land for the construction of new healthcare facilities.
See note 3.3 for further information about changes in

2.3.2 Finance

During the financial year 2016, the Company:

Dz Signed a cash advance agreement with Il caden SA in
and a period ending on March 31, 2018.

Dz Tookoutamediust er m cor porate | oan in October 2016 for

See notes 6, 10 and 11 for further information about
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Note 3. Scope of consolidaon
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Consolidation principles

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of fully consolidated subsidiaries. The
Group does not hold any interests in joint ventures or associates, or any other entitighiit does not have

direct, indirect or joint control, or significant influence over their financial and operating policies. The
consolidation method is determined in accordance with the control exercised by the Group.

Dz Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is arntity that is directly or indirectly controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group:
- Has power over the entity in terms of voting rights;

- Has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity;

- Has the ability to use its powtr affect the amount of these returns.

Potential voting rights as well as the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the entity are also part
of the factors taken into account by the Group in order to assess control.

Subsidiaries are fyll consolidated from the date the Group acquires control over them until the date that such
control ceases.

Al intragroup transactions and balances between the

Non-controlling interests represent theash of interest which is not directly or indirectly attributable to the Group.
These are presentcochtirol egongtynaer éifNtosnndo and in the in
attributabletonost ont r ol I i ng i nt er elsyd¢ass presenfed, icade Baaté hadh fullecentrof avar a n ¢ i
all its subsidiaries.

Business combinations

To determine whether a transaction is a business combination under the revised IFRS 3, the Group analyses
whether a business has been acquired and not jysentyoThe criteria used may include the number of property
assets held, the scope of the business acquired or the degree of autonomy of the target.

The consideration transferred must include any contingent consideration, which must be measureduat. fair val

According to the acquisition method, the acquirer must, at the acquisition date, recognise the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree at fair value at that date.

Goodwill is measured as the difference betweenthenone hand, the fair value of the consideration transferred

and, on the other hand, the net of the acquisitiaie amounts of the identifiable assets and the liabilities assumed
measured at fair value. | f podiwiilJve, agnao dawiplelariss o:i mp
bal ance sheet. | f negati ve, goodwi || may be referred
immediately in the income statement.

As of December 31, 2018, the Group did not recognise any goaisilthg from business combinations that took
place during previous financial years.

Additions to the scope of consolidation carried out during the financial years ended December 31, 2016, 2017 and
2018 have been recognised in accordance with the reNa&&8 31 Business combinations. For each acquisition

made, the Group measured the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date. Based on this
measurement, the acquisition of these companies did not result in the recognition of anyl.goodwi
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in millions of euros 2018 2017 2016

Acquisition price of subsidiaries 82.5 29.2 11.9
Net assets acquired 82.5 29.3 13.7
Goodwill/(badwill) - (0.1) (1.9)

The companies acquired during the financial years 2016, 2017 and 2018 are fully consblidated t he Gr o u
consolidated financial statements from the acquisition date.

The impact of these acquisitions on the main line items of the consolidated statement of financial position for the
three financial years reported is shown in the correspormitgs. The contribution of the companies acquired

bet ween 2016 and 2018 to the Groupébés gross rental i n
which these companies were acquired {aar impact for the period from the acquisition datddecember 31

and on a fullyear basis) was not significant.

A list of the companies included in the scope of consolidation is presented in note 14.
3.1 Main transactions completed during the financial year 2018

As part of its diversification strategy, tli&roup made its first investment in the nursing home sector on July 4,

2018 through the acquisition of al |l of SAS Patrimoin
Residalya network, a subsidiary of the Ackermans & Van Haaren group. Theghottmpany SAS Patrimoine et

Santé owns all the shares of 14 SCls (sociétés civiles immobilieres, i.d@radowg property investment
companies) and SNCs (sociétés en nom collectif, i.e. general partnerships), each owning a different nursing home

propery . These 14 facilities were valued at the acquisiti
The measurement of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in accordance with the revised IFRS 3 resulted in

particular in the recognitvomi bfi onyvefSimenti progebt $ el
liabilities net of other assets for 018.3 million, in
3.2 Main transactions completed during the financial year 2017

Dz Acquisition of SAS Carrére

Inline with its strategy to expand its business in the
MAS) , on April 13, 2017 the Group acquired all/l t he s

Carrére owns all the shares of SClrs@ermoise, which, in turn, owns the Hélios disability care home property.

The measurement of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in accordance with the revised IFRS 3 resulted in
particul ar in the recognit i lomanddtheriassetenettoirothertliabiltiesdop er t i e
5.9 million in the Groupbs consolidated financi al St
nonr ecurring gain net of acquisition)cosats$sheh&r owadsna
income statement in 2016.

Dz Acquisition of SAS Fonciére MSR

In line with its strategy to expand its business in the private healthcare property sector, on September 22, 2017 the
Group acquired all the shares of SAS Fonciel@® f or a total of 013.7 million
Fonciére MSR owns the real estate of the SRoth polyclinic.

The measurement of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in accordance with IFRS 3 resulted in particular in

the recognitionofivest ment properties for 076.5 million, financ
of other assets for U4.2 million, in the Groupds cons
3.3 Main transactions completed during the financial year 2016

In line with its strategy to expand its business in the private healthcare property sector, on June 14, 2016 the Group
acquired all the shares of SAS VAGUIL for a total of
the shares of 4 companies, each ogrardifferent private healthcare property.
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The measurement of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in accordance with the revised IFRS 3 resulted in
particular in the recognition of i nvest mdliontandptherperti e
l'iabilities net of ot her assets for a3.1 million, i n
purchase resulted in the recogniton ofa-noecur ri ng gain net of acquisition c
consoltated income statement in 2016.

Note 4. Segment reporting
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

In accordance with IFRS 8 Operating segments, segment information must be structured according to the
operating segments for which results are regularly reviewed by the apéediting decision maker in order to

assess their performance and make decisions about resources to be allocated to such segments. Segment
information must be consistent with internal reporting to the chief operating decision maker.

The Gr oup® consiatdnt dssisiing healthcare and senior services providers with the ownership and
development of healthcare properties across France. These properties includearshamediurterm care
facilities (private hospitals, rehabilitation centres) as welbagterm facilities (nursing homes).

During the financial years covered by these consolidated financial statements, the Group measured the performance
of its operations taken as a whole.

As a result, it only reports arne operating segment.
Note 5. Property portfolio and fair value

5.1 Property portfolio

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Investment properties

IAS 40 defines investment property as property held by the owner to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
both. This category of property cannot bddhfr use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Furthermore, the existence of building rights, leasehold rights or a building lease also falls
within the definition of investment property.

Property that is beingleveloped for future use as investment property, as well as advances paid on those
properties, are classified as investment property.

In accordance with the option offered by IAS 40, investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciatiorand less any accumulated impairment losses (see note 5.3.2).

The cost of investment properties consists of:

Dz The purchase price stated in the deed of acquisition or the construction costs, includiefyndable
taxes, after deducting any trade disasyunebates or cash discounts;
Dz The cost of restoration work;
Dz All directly attributable costs incurred in order to put the investment property in a condition to be leased

in accordance with the use intended by management. Thus, transfer duties,feeissmmns and fixed
legal expenses related to the acquisition, and commissions related to leasing are included in the cost;

Dz Costs of bringing the property into compliance with safety and environmental regulations;
Dz Capitalised borrowing costs (see beJow

Any government investment grants received are deducted from the value of the corresponding assets. These grants
are therefore recognised as income over the useful life of the asset depreciable by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.

The gross value ain investment property is split into separate components which each have their own useful lives.
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Investment properties are depreciated using the striightmethod over periods which correspond to their
expected useful life. Land is not depreciated. @&preciation periods used by the Group (in years) are as follows:

Components Healthcare

Roads, networks, distribution 80
Structural works 80
External structures 20-40
General and technical equipment 20-35
Internal fittings 10-20
Specific equipment 20-35

Useful lives are revised at each reporting date, particularly in respect of investment properties which are the subject
of a restoration decision.

In accordance with IAS 36, where events or changes in the market environment, or internalifiditats, a risk
of impairment of investment properties, these are tested for impairment (see below).

The methods and assumptions used to value the property portfolio are described in note 5.2.
The fair values shown in note 5.3 are appraised values exglddtres.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the construction or production of an asset are included in the cost of that
asset until work is completed.

The borrowed funds are used to build several assets. The borrowing costs #lagilzlee for capitalisation are
determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the construction costs. This capitalisation rate is equal to the
weighted average of current borrowing costs for the year other than those of borrowings taken out for $kee purpo
of building specific assets. The capitalised amount may not exceed the amount of costs actually borne.

Impairment test for investment properties

IAS 36 requires investment properties to be tested at least annually to see if there is any indicatien thay
have been impaired.

Indications of impairment include:

Dz A substantial decline in the market value of the asset;

Dz A change in the technological, economic or legal environment.

Impairment of an asset is recognised where its recoverable amoesg thén its carrying amount.

The recoverable amount of investment properties is the fair value less any costs to sell. The fair value is the market
value excluding duties, determined by independent property valuers (see note 5.2).

If there is any indicén of impairment, and where the estimated recoverable amount is less than the net carrying
amount, the difference between those two figures is recognised as an impairment loss. Recognising an impairment
loss entails a review of the depreciable amount asdihe case may be, of the depreciation schedule for the
investment properties concerned.

If there is no longer an indication of impairment or if there is an indication that an impairment loss may have
decreased, the impairment relating to the investrpeoperty may subsequently be reversed if the recoverable
value again becomes higher than the net carrying amount. The value of the asset after reversal of the impairment
loss should not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (neteofatiep) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
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Although carried out by independent property valuers, it should be remembered that valuing a property asset is a
complex estimation exercise, which is also subject from orfeybal to the next to the changing economic climate
and the volatility of some of the market parameters used, particularly yields and discount rates.

Therefore, in order to take into account the inherent difficulties of valuing a property assetwoid teecognising

an impairment loss that might need to be fully or partially reversed in the next financial statements, the Group only
recognises an impairment loss if the unrealised capital loss on the property assets is more than 5% of the net
carrying amount before impairment. If this threshold is exceeded, the impairment loss recognised is the total
amount of unrealised capital losses.

This impairment loss is adjusted upwards or downwards at each reporting date to reflect changes in the value of the
property asset and its net carrying amount, remembering that if the impairment loss is less than 5% of the net
carrying amount before impairment, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed.

For properties acquired less than three months befoneploeting date and recognised in the financial statements
at their acquisition price including transfer taxes, the unrealised capital loss corresponding to transfer taxes and
other acquisition costs is not recognised as an impairment loss.

As of DecembeB 1 , 2018, the net carrying amount of the prope
exclusively of investment properties including 0U515. 6
Acquisitions Net Net Impact of
S and ; | d € i reversals of changes in Other 12/31/2018
(in millions of euros) 12/31/2017 S Disposals epreciation impairment scope of changes
charges S
work (a) charges consolidation

Gross amount 34527 1217 2.3) - - 1897 - 3,7618

Depreciation (4900) - 0.2 (107.8) - - - (597.5)

Impairment 1.2) - 05 - 7.7) - - (8.3)

NET VALUE OF 2,9614 1217 (1.5) (107.8) (7.7) 1897 - 3,1559

INVESTMENT

PROPERTIES (b)
(a) Including capitallionsed finance costs for 0l. 4
(b) Includes investment properties under finance leases foranetcaayingunt aonfi | 44 6. & s of 1 diliodh as/oR10/31/201& nd G515. 6
In 2018, investments totalled 04311.4 million, includir
Dz The acquisition of the Patrimoine et Sant® group
Dz Theacqui sition of the Mont®vrain facility for a17.
Dz Projects under development for 0U47.9 million incl

during the financial year;
Dz Ot her works and investmenlos. in operating assets f
As of December 31, 2017, the net carrying amount of t
exclusively of investment properties including U456. 3
Acquisitions and Net Net reversals Impact of Other
(in millions of euros) 12/31/2016  construction Disposals  depreciation  of impairment changes in scopt 12/31/2017
P changes
work (a) charges charges of consolidation

Gross amount 31114 2684 (135) - - 86.3 - 3,4527

Depreciation (396.0) - 35 (97.5) - - - (4900)

Impairment (3.0) - 2.6 - (0.8) - - (1.2)

NET VALUE OF 27124 2684 (7.4) (97.5) (0.8) 86.3 - 2,9614

INVESTMENT

PROPERTIES (b)

(a) I ncluding capitallionsed finance costs for Ga1.6
(b) Includes investment properties under finance leases fon et car ryi ngni d howmt acf od 3 d Wili@ as/oR10/31&01and U456. 3
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In 2017, invest ments totalled 0U354.7 million, incl udir

Dz Operating asset acquisitions for 022 %hedompanyl | i on
SAS FONCI ERE MSR for 0207.4 million;

Dz Projects under development for (4120.4 million inc
million for extension works to facilities currently in operation;

Dz Other investments inoperatngd et s for 04.9 million.

As of December 31, 2016, the net carrying amount of t
exclusively of investment properties including 0U395. 8
Ach;isgions Net Net reversals of  Impact of Other
(in millions of euros) 01/01/2016 ) Disposals  depreciation impairment  changes in scope 12/31/2016

construction o changes

charges charges of consolidation

work (a)
Gross amount 2,9083 1463 - - - 56.9 - 31114
Depreciation (3011) - - (95.0) - - - (396.0)
Impairment (2.8) - - - (0.2) - - (3.0)
NET VALUE OF 2,6044 1463 - (95.0) (0.2) 569 - 27124
INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (b)
(a) Including capitallionsed finance costs for 00.7

(b) Includes investment properties under finahceas es f or a net o rlirlyiiomg asmou n to hdith asBRAIEDIGNd 0395. 8

I n 2016, investments totalled 0203.2 million, includi

Dz Operating asset acquisitions for U 6li6 of 7ffournmew | i on i
facilities and u8.8 million for the payment of a

Dz Projects under development for 0484.6 million incl
3.8 milliorspithhor a private ho

Dz Works to healthcare facilities currently operatin

5.2 Valuation of the property portfolio: methods and assumptions

5.2.1 Valuation assignments

The Groupds property assets are val aading twa fagnewark year |
consistent with the SIIC Code of Ethics published in July 2008 by the French Federation of Real Estate Companies
(Fédération des sociétés immobilieres et foncieres).

For the three financial years, property valuations were entrustdones Lang LaSalle Expertises and Catella
Valuation FCC.

The valuers are selected through competitive bidding. The property valuers consulted are selected among members
of AFREXIM (French Association of Property Valuation Companies) and are appfontadnaximum period of
three years.

In accordance with the SIIC Code of Ethics, after seven years the Group shall ensure that there is an internal
turnover of the teams responsible for the valuation of its assets in the selected property valuatioy.cbnepa

valuer may not be appointed for more than two consecutive terms of four years except where the valuer has met the
requirement with regard to the internal turnover of the teams.

For all contracts having expired on December 31, 2017, the Groupdirtkiéemain property valuation firms to a
selection process in order to assign one or more of them theyteacky valuation of part of its assets. Property
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valuers were selected based on criteria of independence, qualification, reputation, expertigerty paluation,
organisational capacity, responsiveness and price. Following this selection process, the contracts of Catella
Valuation FCC and Jones Lang LaSalle Expertises were renewed.

Property valuation fees are billed to the Group on the basisfiek@d service fee that takes into account the
specificities of the properties (number of units, number of square metres, number of current leases, etc.) and that is
not based on the value of the assets.

The assignments of the property valuers, whose nalimtion methods and conclusions are presented hereatfter,
are performed according to professional standards, in particular:

Dz The fourth edition, published in October 2012, of
en évaluation immobilierdpr the financial year 2016, and the fifth edition published in March 2017 for
the financial years 2017 and 2018;

Dz The Barthes de Ruyter report from the French Securities and Exchange Commission (COB), which is
part of the French Financial Markets Autitp{AMF), dated February 3, 2000, on the valuation of the
property assets of publicly traded companies;

Dz On an international level, the European Valuation Standards of TEGoVA (The European Group of
Val uersd Associati ons) , lugpBodklas weh as dthe Red Bodkpstandardsdf0 0 9 i
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).

These various texts specify the required qualifications for the property valuers, a code of conduct and ethics, and
the main definitions (values, floor aggaates and main valuation methods).

During each valuation session and when valuers submit their valuation reports, the Group makes sure that the
methods used by the different property valuers to value its assets are consistent.

Valuations are calculatdabth inclusive and exclusive of duties, the values excluding duties being net of duties and
fixed legal expenses calculated by the property valuers.

Onssite visits are systematically conducted by the property valuers for all new assets added to the partfur
on-site visits are then organised according to a ryaléir schedule or each time that a specific event in the life of
the building requires it (occurrence of significant changes in its structure or environment).

All the assets, including thehd bank and projects under development, were valued as of December 31, 2018,
2017 and 2016 according to the procedures currently in place within the Group, with the exception of:

Dz Properties subject to a preliminary sale agreement as of the end optence period or those for
which an offer has been received and that are valued based on the price indicated in the agreement
excluding duties;

Dz Properties acquired less than three months before the end of the annual reporting period, which are
valued lased on their net carrying amount.

In 2015, the Group also established a process of internal valuations performed by its asset management teams, in
order to verify the asset values obtained by the property valuers, and to gain a better understandiotuod the
performance of the portfolio on the basis of the business plans defined. This procedure is updated on a yearly basis.
However, assets whose business plan changes materially are subject-gearalipdate.

5.2.2 Methods used by the property valiers
The property valuers used the same valuation methods for the financial years 2018, 2017 and 2016.

Private hospitals or other healthcare properties are valued by property valuers based on the mean of the values
obtained using the rent capitalisatmme t hod (al so known as fiesti mated renta
cash flow method.

The market value of a healthcare facility is essentially dependent on its operation and its ability to generate
sufficient income to provide a reasonable returthenproperty investment. These buildings fall under the category
of singleuse buildings and their value determined by the property valuer is totally related to their operation and
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consequently to the value of the underlying business. Also, since tlessesgs are unsuitable for any other use
without substantial conversion works, they are not subject to rent ceilings upon lease renewals or rent reviews or to
the traditional rules for determining the estimated rental value.

The estimated rental value uskeg the property valuers thus takes into account a share of the average revenue or
EBITDA that the institution has generated during the last years of operation, with or without adjustment for
category, administrative environment, quality of operating giraqprice positioning, hospital fee agreement with

t he French

Soci al

Security,

ncome

statement , et c.

premises can be valued by capitalisation of the gross rental income reported by the Group.

523

Financial year 2018:

Main valuation assumptions for investment properties

Methods generallyused

Rates for discounting
cash flows (DCF)

Exit yields (DCF)

Market yields (income
capitalisation)

Paris region

Outside the Paris region

Capitalisation and DCF
Capitalisation and DCF

5.3%- 8.0%
5.1%-8.1%

4.9%-7.7%
4.7%- 8.5%

4.5%-7.4%
4.4%- 8.0%

Financial year 2017:

Methods generallyused

Rates for discounting
cash flows (DCF)

Exit yields (DCF)

Market yields (income
capitalisation)

Parisregion

Outside the Paris region

Capitalisation and DCF
Capitalisation and DCF

5.3%-7.0%
5.7%-8.1%

5.0%- 6.8%
5.2%-7.8%

4.7%- 6.5%
4.9%-7.2%

Financial year 2016:

Methods generallyused

Rates for discounting
cash flows (DCF)

Exit yields (DCF)

Market yields (income
capitalisation)

Paris region

Outside the Paris region

Capitalisation and DCF
Capitalisation and DCF

5.3%-6.4%
5.7%-11.2%

5.3%- 6.5%
5.55%- 12.05%

4.95%- 6.15%
5.1%-10.75%

5.3 Fair value of the property portfolio
5.3.1 Unrealised capital gains on the property portfolio

Total unrealised capital gains on investment properties held by the Group as of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016
are presented below:

(in millions of euros) 12/31/2018 12/31/2017 12/31/2016 01/01/2016 Chg.2018  Chg.2017  Chg. 2016
2017 2016 2015

Fair value 4,4844 4,0357 355829 3,0708 4487 1945 2542

Net carrying amount 3,1559 2,9614 2,7124 2,6044 4528 2490 2038

Unrealised capital gains 1,3285 1,0742 8705 4664 5121 1080 4041
Unrealised capital gains amounted to 01,328.5 million
31, 2017 and u870.5 million as of December 31, 2016)
million, respectively) compared to tipeevious financial year.
5.3.2 Impact of impairment charges on the income statement
The impact of i mpair ment charges on the income stater

related to impairment of tangible, financial and othercurreréa@® t s @ of the consolidated i1
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In 2018, net i mpairment | osses of 07.7 million resul
a0.7 million.

In 2017, a 00.8 million impairment | oss was recorded.
In 2016, a Grthenlossnivasrecorded. | mp a i

5.3.3 Sensitivity of the net carrying amounts of appraised assets to potential changes in fair value

The sensitivity of the net carrying amounts of appraised assets to potential changes in fair value ranging from
5.00% to +5.00%r& shown in the table below:

Changes in fair value of investment properties

in millions of euros (5,0%) (2,5%) 2,5% 5,0%

Total as of 12/31/2016 (0.3) (0.2) 0.2 0.3

Total as of 12/31/2017 (111) (7.7) 0.7 0.7

Total as of 12/31/2018 (14.6) (8.5) 04 0.7
54 Leases

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

In the course of its business activities, the Group uses assets taken or given under leases.

These leases are classified as either operating leases or finance leases based on the situations described and criteria

provided in IAS 17.

Finance leases are leases which transfer virtually all the risks and rewards of the asset concerned to the lessee. All

leases which do not fall within the definition of a finance lease are classified as operating leases.
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Accounting by lessees
Dz Finance leases

When first recognised, an asset used as part of a finance lease is accounted for as investment property with a
financial liability as the corresponding entry. The asset is recorded at the fair value of the leased asset at the
inception of the lease or the present value of the minimum lease payments if that is lower.

Dz Operating lease

For operating leases, lease payments (other than costs for services such as insurance and maintenance) are
recognised as an expense in the incontersiant over the lease term on a straigte basis.

Accounting by lessors

The accounting treatment of income from operating leases is described in note 5.5. Icade Santé has not entered into
any finance leases with its tenants.

See:

- Note 5.1 for assets under finance leases;

- Note 5.5 for detailed gross rental income from operating leases;

- Note 11.2 for detailed information on operating |
5.5 Gross rental income

ACCOUNTING PRINCIP LES

The Groupbs revenue consists of gross rental i ncome f
income includes rents from healthcare facilities.

Lease income is recorded using the straligie method over the remaining terms of tkades (to break option or
expiry). Consequently, any specific clauses and incentives specified in the leasé®drgeatriods, progressive

rent) are spread over the shorter of the entire lease term and the period to the next break option, without taking
indexlinked rent reviews into account. The reference period used is the shorter of the entire lease term and the
period to the next break option.

Any expenses directly incurred and paid to third parties to set up a lease are recorded as assetsheadiergthe
il nvest ment propertieso, and depreciated over the sho
option.

Uncollected lease income as of the end of the financial year is recognised in accounts receivable.

The Group assists the majoperators of healthcare and senior services facilities with the ownership and
development of healthcare properties in France. Leases are signed on abfadditility basis. Gross rental
income by operator was as follows:

(in millions of euros) 2018 2017 2016
ELSAN 140.9 58.5% 133.9 62.3% 129.4 62.4%
RAMSAY GENERALE DE SANTE 46.4 19.3% 45.7 21.3% 43.9 21.2%
OTHER OPERATORS 53.6 22.2% 35.3 16.4% 34.0 16.4%
Total 241.0 100.0% 214.9 100.0% 207.3 100.0%
I n 2018, the Group generated gross rental i ncome of

million in 2016), a 12.1% increase (3.6% and 22.3%, respectively) on-@ygaar basis.

I n 2018, 77.8% of the Gr tanggstéoperaiors of investmeatpnogerties hetd oy theh et v
Group. This percentage stood at 83.6% in 2017 and 83.6% in 2016.
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No individual tenant accounts for more than 10% of total gross rental income.
See note 6.2.5 for further information about credit.risk

Note 6. Financing and financial instruments

6.1 Financial structure and contribution to net profit/(loss)

6.1.1 Change in net financial debt

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Financial debts

Borrowings and other interebearing financial liabilities are valued, éfttheir initial recognition, according to the
amortised cost method using the effective interest rate of the loan. Issue costs and premiums affect the opening
value and are spread over the life of the loan using the effective interest rate.

In the case ofinancial debts resulting from the recognition of finance leases, the financial liability recognised as
the corresponding entry of the asset is initially measured at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum leaseapments.

Hedging instruments

The Group uses financial derivatives to hedge its exposure to market risk stemming from interest rate fluctuations.
Derivatives are used as part of a Group policy on interest rate risk management. The financial risk management
strategies and methods used to determine the fair value of financial derivatives are set out in notes 6.2.3 and 6.3.

Financial derivatives are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value.

The Group uses derivatives to hedge its fixed or variable rateadalvist interest rate risk (cash flow hedging) and

applies hedge accounting where documentation requirements are met. In this case, changes in fair value of the
financi al derivative are recognised net trandactionaoccurs n A Ot |
in respect of the effective portion of the hedge. The ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income
statement for the period. Gains and losses accumulated in equity are reclassified to the income statement under the
same Bading as the hedged item for the same periods as those during which the hedged cash flow has an impact on
the income statement.

Where financial derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting under the standard, they are classified under the
category oftrading instruments and any changes in their fair value are recognised directly in the income statement
for the period.

The fair value of derivatives is measured using commonly accepted models (discounted cash flow method, Black
and Scholes model, etc.)dabased on market data.
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6.1.1.1

Breakdown of net financial debt at end o

f period

Net financial debt as of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 broke down as follows:

(in millions of euros) 12/31/2018 12/31/2017 12/31/2016

Gross mediumand longtermfinancial debts (a) 1,4274 1,1880 1,0415
Gross shorterm financial debts (a) 522 1195 634
GROSS FINANCIAL DEBTS 6.1.2 14796 1,3074 1,1048
Interest rate derivatives (assets and liabilities) 6.1.3.1 157 113 161
GROSS FINANCIAL DEBTS INCLUDING DERIVATIVES 14953 1,3187 1,1209
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 6.1.5.3 (0.0) (0.0) (0.0)
Cash 6.1.6 (75.9) (4.1) (2.4)
NET FINANCIAL DEBT 14193 1,3146 1,1185

(a)

i nc | unliom © Icad&8SA bhs df Decembé&rl ,

0 6 1 millidh to IcadeSA as of Decemb& 1, 20 1rdi I(
IcadeSA as of Decemb& 1, 20 1n6i |(lGi303n. 1s h o

201@i I(ldilo3n 7s h or t milioe mediunaand long EeiBny, . 4
[Gi3oln. 9s hor tmitldrin na mde di 5480 .aédmdlionltoong t er m)
r tmillibnemedium and tbngdeér) 1 . 3

The yearon-year change in gross debt (excluding derivatives) mainly resulted from:

Dz

December 31, 2018 compared to December 31, 2017

- loass taken out f
- Two new corpor a
t28.6 million;

- A 082.9 million

14 nursing home properties to the
- Loan repayments

- The nor mal amor
repayment of a

- Early repayment
million.

rom | cade SA for 050.0 million;
te Il oans taken out totalling 02
increase in loans fromoEredit

scope of consolidation;
to lcade SA for 083.9 million;

tisation of |l oans from credit
maturihgioo)pamndt éi haacef beaé®B6

of |l oans from credit institutdi

December 31, 2017 compared to December 31, 2016

- New |l oans taken out forsti22w&.ionmi | liinccd ufdi om ¢
corporate debt;

- A 0U45.2 million increase in finance | eases dl
healthcare facility;

- Loan repayments to |l cade SA for 020.2 million;

- The normal amortisation of loafisr om cr edi t institutions for (G10.
621.3 million;

- The early termination of finance | eases for 00.

December 31, 2016 compared to January 1, 2016

- A new corporate

|l oan taken out for U50.0 mil |l i

- A 034 .d inecreadelin finance leases due to the acquisition of a portfolio of private

healthcare facilities;
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- Loan

- The
U 2 Omill®n;

- The ear |l

nor mal

y

repayments to

|l cade SA

amortisation

ter mi

nat

6.1.1.2 Statement of changes in net financial debt

For the three financial years covered by these consolidated financial statements, changes in net financial liabilities

broke down as ftlows:

of

on of fi

for

|l oans

nance

§19.6 milli
from credi
|l eases for

Changes with no impact on cash flow

Fair value

(in millions of euros) 12/31/2017" Cash flow Cgs:gg me through Ft%irro\{gﬁe Other 12/31/2018
consolidation prclmcfg SO r reserves Chances
Financial debts 1,307.4 887 865 - - (3.0) 1,4796
Derivative liabilities 121 (0.1) 0.3 (0.2) 35 0.1 157
Other financial liabilities 3.7 0.0 21 - - 0.4 6.3
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 1,3232 88.6 89.0 (0.2) 35 (2.5) 1,5016
Derivative assets (0.8) - - (0.0) 0.8 - (0.0)
Other financiakhssets (1.3) - (0.0) - - - (1.3)
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS (21) - 0.0 (0.0) 0.8 0.0 (1.3)
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 1,3212 88.6 89.0 (0.2) 4.3 (2.5) 1,5003
Exclusion of deposits and guarantees: s s , s ) s s
- Deposits and guarantees received 37 - (2.1) - - (0.4) (6.3)
- Deposits and guarantees paid 13 - 0.0 - - - 13
TOTAL DEBTS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,3187 88.6 86.9 (0.2) 4.3 (2.9) 1,4953
Financial assets at fair value through profitass (0.0) s , s s s (0.0)
Cash 4.1) s , s ) s (75.9)
TOTAL NET FINANCIAL DEBT 1,3146 s , s s s 1,4193
Changes with no impact on cash flow
- 1213172016 Cashfiow ~ Changesin  FOIYALE  Fairvaue o 127312007
(in millions of euros) scope of 5 through
consolidation pr?;';sr reserves Cl2ides
Financial debts 1,1048 1432 589 - - 0.5 1,3074
Derivative liabilities 161 - - (0.2) 3.7) (0.1) 121
Other financial liabilities 4.0 - - - - 0.3) 37
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 1,1249 1432 589 (0.2) 3.7) 0.1 1,3232
Derivative assets - - - - (0.8) - (0.8)
Other financial assets (2.3) - - - - - (1.3)
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS (1.3) - - - (0.8) - (2.1)
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 1,1236 1432 589 (0.2) (4.4) 0.1 1,3212
Exclusion of deposits and guarantees: , , s s ) ) ,
- Deposits and guarantees received (4.0) - - - - 0.3 3.7)
- Deposits and guarantees paid 1.3 - - - - - 13
TOTAL DEBTS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,1209 1432 589 (0.2) (4.4) 0.3 1,3187
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (0.0) , s s s s (0.0)
Cash (2.4) , s s s s (4.1)
TOTAL NET FINANCIAL DEBT 1,1185 , s s s s 1,3146
01/01/2016  Cash flow Changes with no impact on cash flow 12/31/2016
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Fair value

(in millions of euros) Cgs:gg ?)_fm g:;cf)i?%}: Ft?]Irro\:Jaglﬁe cﬁ;}:'n:re g
consolidation i reserves

Financial debts 1,0635 0.9 398 - - 0.6 1,1048
Derivative liabilities 153 - 0.0 (0.1) 0.8 0.0 161
Other financial liabilities 38 - 0.3 - - (0.0) 4.0
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 1,0826 0.9 401 0.1) 0.8 0.7 1,1249
Derivative assets 0.2) - - - 0.2 -
Other financial assets 1.3) 0.0 (0.0) - - - 1.3)
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS (1.5) 0.0 (0.0) - 0.2 - (1.3)
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 1,0811 0.9 40.1 (0.1) 0.9 0.7 1,1236
Exclusion of deposits and guarantees:

- Deposits and guarantees received (3.8) - (0.3) - - 0.0 (4.0)

- Deposits and guarantees paid 13 - - - - - 13
TOTAL DEBTS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,0786 0.9 398 (0.1) 0.9 0.7 1,1209
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (0.0) s , s s s (0.0)
Cash (79.2) , , , , , (2.4)
TOTAL NET FINANCIAL DEBT 9994 s , s s s 1,1185

6.1.2 Components offinancial debts

Gross financial debts at amortised cost, including issue costs and premiums and the impact of spreading them by
applying the effective interest met hod, stood at al,
December 31, 2018017 and 2016, respectively.

They broke down as follows for the three financial years:

Current Non-current
B:Lirgie Portion Porti(_)n Porti(_)n Portion Porti(_)n Portion Fai;sviiue

(in millions of euros) ‘1";'/‘;‘; s f; due in d;et(;” d;et(;” due in dzeu;” duein  12/31/2018

< 1lyear 2years 3years 3 to 4years 5years > 5 years
Fixed rate debt 6544 26.3 240 619 2117 11.0 3195 6932
Borrowings from credit institutions 14.2 2.8 29 30 31 24 0.0 155
Financelease liabilities 1067 100 111 8.9 8.6 8.6 595 1096
Debt to IcadeSA 5336 136 100 50.0 2000 - 2600 5681
Variable rate debt 8251 259 2122 290 214 238 5129 8286
Borrowings from credit institutions 6307 117 1616 108 111 114 4240 6316
Finance lease liabilities 1016 111 107 157 7.8 9.9 465 1022
Other loans and similar liabilities 549 25 24 25 25 26 424 56.2
Debt to IcadeSA 375 0.1 374 - - - - 382
Bank overdrafts 0.4 0.4 - - - - - 0.4
GROSS FINANCIAL DEBT AS OF 1,4796 522 2361 909 2331 34.8 8325 1,5218

12/31/2018

106



































































































